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Introduction

The ARB Holdings 2014 Integrated report covers the period 

from 1 July 2013 to 30 June 2014. The previous year’s report 

was published in September 2013, and does not materially 

differ from this report. This report deals with the Group’s 

annual fi nancial statements, operational and strategic 

overview, as well as non-fi nancial highlights. 
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More information on the Group and its operations can 

be found on the website, www.arbhold.co.za, as well as 

the King III compliance checklist, which can be found 

under the Investor Relations tab.
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ARB at a glance

Incorporates ARB Electrical Wholesalers, ARB Connect, ARB Global, Elektro 

Vroomen and CED

ARB Electrical Wholesalers is southern Africa’s largest independent distributor of 

electrical products

Operates out of 18 branches across South Africa, with a presence in all nine 

provinces

Provides a wide range of internationally recognised and SABS approved products 

across three main categories: power and instrumentation, overhead line equipment 

and conductors, and general low-voltage products

ARB Holdings holds a 100% interest in ARB Global and CED and a 74% interest in 

ARB Electrical Wholesalers, which in turn owns 100% of Elektro Vroomen

Electrical division

Incorporates ARB Holdings and ARB IT Solutions

ARB Holdings is an investment holding company for businesses involved in the 

trading and distribution of electrical, lighting and related products

ARB’s property portfolio, which includes 15 properties valued at approximately 

R163 million, is housed under the Corporate division 

The Corporate division fulfils a centralised treasury function for the underlying 

operating subsidiaries and provides strategic leadership to the Group

ARB Holdings holds a 100% interest in ARB IT Solutions, which provides the Group 

with specialist IT hardware, software, services and support

Corporate division

Incorporates Eurolux and Cathay Lighting

Eurolux is a leading importer and distributor of incandescent, energy saving, LED 

and fluorescent lamps, light fittings, electrical accessories and ancillary products 

including fans and lighting components

Operates out of two custom designed distribution centres in Johannesburg and 

Cape Town and sells to retail chains, independent DIY and hardware chains, as well 

as resellers such as specialist lighting shops and electrical wholesalers

ARB Holdings holds a 60% interest in Eurolux, which in turn owns 100% of  

Cathay Lighting

Lighting division
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Getting to know ARB

Our history

ARB established a branch in Cape Town. ARB expanded its national footprint 
by opening a branch in East London.

ARB sold a 26% stake in its key 
operating subsidiary, ARB Electrical 
Wholesalers, to Batsomi Power to 
enhance its empowerment status. 

‘04» ‘05»‘03»

ARB relocated the Cape Town branch 
to newly developed 7 300 m² premises 
in Montague Gardens. 

ARB entered Limpopo through the opening 
of a branch in Polokwane.

ARB acquired Paragon Electrical, 
a leading electrical wholesaler operating
in the Pretoria and Centurion areas.

The fi rst two ARB Connect stores were 
opened in Bellville and Durban North.

‘10» ‘11»‘09»

Founded by Chairman, Alan R Burke, 
operating from a shipping container in 
Richards Bay, with a single employee 
and a bakkie.

Alan moved the operations from the 
shipping container and opened the 
doors to the Richards Bay branch. 

ARB opened a branch in Durban. 

‘81» ‘88»‘80»

The acquisition of 100% of ICS was 
completed in July 2012. 

ARB signed exclusive distribution 
agreements with CTC Global and 
Fushi Copperweld.

CED was incorporated to house the 
exclusive CHINT distribution agreement.

Nexans Olex exclusive distribution 
agreement signed for certain 
specialised cable products.

‘12» ‘13»

‘13»

ARB acquired a 60% controlling
interest in Eurolux, a leading importer 
and distributor of light fi ttings, 
lamps and ancillary electrical 
products in January 2012.

ARB acquired 100% of Elektro Vroomen, 
with branches in Bloemfontein and Kathu. 
Following this acquisition, ARB is 
represented in all nine provinces in 
South Africa.

‘01»
ARB relocated its head offi ce to 
a new 23 500 m² site in Prospecton, 
effectively expanding the facility 
six-fold. 

ARB established a branch 
in Johannesburg.

‘00»
The Pietermaritzburg operation 
was acquired.

‘02»

ARB acquired the operations of Xact Business 
Solutions to ensure the redevelopment of 
ARB’s ERP software solution. 

ARB listed on the “Main Board” of 
the JSE.

‘07»‘06»
The Johannesburg branch relocated 
to newly built 13 000 m² premises in 
Alrode as the base for servicing 
neighbouring regions across both 
provincial and international borders.

‘08»
Entered Mpumalanga through the 
opening of the Nelspruit branch.

‘14»
New fi ve-year exclusive distribution 
agreements signed with CTC Global and 
Fushi Copperweld.

ICS’ branches in central Johannesburg 
and Rustenburg divisionalised into ARB 
Electrical and rebranded accordingly.

ARB Electrical relocated its Nelspruit 
branch to newly developed 4 700 m2 
premises in Riverside Industrial Park.

ARB Integrated report 20144 // 



Highlights for the year

Growth and expansion strategy

ARB’s growth and expansion strategy is focused on the following:

•  Market consolidation and 

new branch openings to 

further expand the branch 

network and enhance our 

proximity to market

•  Product extension through 

the introduction of higher 

margin exclusive agencies

•  Market share growth 

through securing 

additional customers

•  Entering new markets 

through broadening the 

product offering

•  Further diversifi cation 

through the acquisition of 

trading and distribution 

businesses in related 

industrial/consumer 

products

Related diversifi cationLighting divisionElectrical division

»  Excellent trading performances from both Electrical and 
Lighting divisions

»  Extended exclusive distribution agreements for ACCC® and 
Copperweld products

» Completion of new premises in Nelspruit

»  R2,3 million spent on Corporate Social Investment initiatives, 
up 21% from the previous year

// 5 ARB Integrated report 2014



Getting to know ARB

Share trading statistics

Market performance

Month
High 

(cents)
Low 

(cents)
Close 
(cents)

Volume 
(# of shares)

Value 
(Rands)

Volume 
weighted 

price (cents)

July 2013  475  450  455  359 780  1 651 172  459 
August 2013  515  463  515  4 109 817  20 523 014  499 
September 2013  515  490  490  327 491  1 647 681  503 
October 2013  530  490  530  901 330  4 571 737  507 
November 2013  655  530  560  364 362  2 104 910  578 
December 2013  580  502  580  653 961  3 589 676  549 
January 2014  620  550  585  1 748 557  9 954 421  569 
February 2014  624  555  620  2 420 092  14 110 387  583 
March 2014  620  565  570  2 012 338  11 756 903  584 
April 2014  725  576  675  3 877 324  23 679 232  611 
May 2014  680  629  670  2 207 524  14 830 575  672 
June 2014  680  605  671  2 171 564  14 179 758  653 

Total for the year  21 154 140  122 599 466  580 

Monthly average  1 762 845  10 216 622  580 

Total number of shares traded as a % of:
– publicly held free-fl oat 23%
– total number of shares in issue 9%

Market capitalisation at year-end (Rand)  1 576 850 000 

Total value traded as a % of year-end market 

capitalisation 8%

Share performance:
Opening share price on 1 July 2013 (cents) 465 Price earnings (PE) ratio  13,35 

Closing share price on 30 June 2014 (cents) 671 Total distribution yield on year-end share price 4.5%

% gain for the year 44% Earnings yield 7.5%

Year-end share price to net tangible asset value per share  2,4 

Highest traded price (on 23 April 2014) (cents) 725  Number of shares in issue  235 000 000 

Lowest traded price (on 23 July 2013) (cents) 450  Number of shareholders at year-end  1 401

ARB Holdings vs All Share Index (ALSI)
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ARB ALSI

ARB Holdings vs Electronic and Electrical Index
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ARB Electronic and Electrical Index
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A note from the Chairman 

Overview
It is with great pleasure that I present my seventh report as Chairman 

of ARB Holdings. This has been yet another successful year for the 

Group, despite the many challenges faced.

The country endured a fi ve-month strike in the platinum sector, one 

that would go down in the history books of South Africa as its most 

protracted labour action. As a Group, we were fortunate not to have 

been materially affected by the strike, although its impact was felt

by ARB Electrical Wholesalers’ branch in Rustenburg. 

As I write this report, NUMSA has recently ended its four-week 

strike in the metal and engineering sector, one which could have 

negatively impacted deliveries to ARB Electrical were it not for our 

decision to increase certain stock holdings in anticipation of the 

strike. I am pleased to report that none of ARB’s 849 employees 

participated in any strike action.

The past few years have seen a lot of corporate activity with the 

acquisitions of Eurolux, ICS and Elektro Vroomen. At ARB we have 

always endeavoured to ensure that we respond promptly and 

appropriately to changes in the economic climate. In this regard, 

we decided to adopt a “business as usual” approach focused on 

integrating the recent acquisitions and extracting further operational 

effi ciencies rather than pursue new acquisitions – a decision which 

has yielded improved operating margins in both the Electrical and 

Lighting divisions.  

Results for the year
Notwithstanding the tough market conditions, ARB reported a very 

good set of results. Revenue increased by 14% to R2,22 billion (2013: 

R1,94 billion) led by market share gains in both the Electrical and 

Lighting divisions. This marks the fi rst time ARB has broken through 

the R2 billion turnover level and is a direct result of the successful 

implementation of our growth and diversifi cation strategy over the 

past few years. 

Operating profi t increased by 27% to R203,0 million (2013: 

R160,5 million), with an improved operating margin of 9.2% 

(2013: 8.3%). 

Headline earnings per share increased by 27% to 50,28 cents per 

share (2013: 39,55 cents per share). 

Due to the continued strong cash generation and ungeared position 

of the Group, the Board increased the annual dividend by 24% to 

20,1 cents per share (2013: 16,2 cents per share) and further approved 

a special dividend of 10,0 cents per share (2013: 10 cents per share).

The Group ended the year with no debt and net cash resources of 

R197,6 million.

Alan R Burke
  Founder and Non-Executive Chairman

I am happy to report that ARB improved 

its ranking to 64th place from last year’s 

92nd place. Over the past fi nancial year, 

ARB shareholders achieved a total return 

of 50%. 

»  Revenue exceeds R2 billion for the 

first time

»  Net cash resources of R198 million

»  Annual dividend up 24% to 20,1 

cents per share + special dividend 

of 10,0 cents per share
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Shareholder returns
Each year the Financial Mail releases its Top Companies survey based 

on the internal rate of return achieved by shareholders over a rolling 

fi ve-year period. I am happy to report that ARB improved its ranking to 

64th place from last year’s 92nd place. Over the past fi nancial year, 

ARB shareholders achieved a total return of 50%. 

Outlook
Although the general outlook for the South African economy, at least 

in the short term, appears negative, ARB is well-placed to benefi t from 

the eventual implementation of the National Development Plan and 

the government’s various other infrastructural initiatives as well as 

any recovery in the mining, industrial and construction sectors.

Our national branch network, strong brands, capable management 

teams and robust balance sheet provide me, as Chairman and 

shareholder, with a strong degree of reassurance that not only will 

ARB weather the challenging times that lie ahead but will continue

to deliver growth and value to our shareholders.

Appreciation
I would like to thank my fellow Directors for their invaluable 

contribution, in both wisdom and support, which ensure that ARB 

maintains high standards of Corporate Governance.

On behalf of myself and the Board, I would like to take the opportunity 

to thank the executive management team as well as each of the more 

than 800 ARB staff members for their hard work in marking this 

fi nancial year such a success.

Lastly, to our customers, suppliers, business partners and shareholders, 

I thank you for your continued support.

Alan R Burke

Non-Executive Chairman

 I am pleased to report that none of 

ARB’s 849 employees participated 

in any strike action.
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A letter to shareholders from the CEO

(established in May 2013) overheads for a full year. Operating profi t 

increased by 27% to R203,0 million resulting in an improvement in 

the Group’s operating margin from 8.3% to 9.2%. 

Net interest received increased despite the payment of annual and 

special dividends totalling R71,0 million in September 2013.

Headline earnings per share increased by 27% to 50,28 cents (2013: 

39,55 cents). 

The Group’s operations remained strongly cash generative although at 

a lower level than in the prior period due to a R70,9 million investment 

in working capital in line with the increase in revenue. In the prior 

year, cash generation was enhanced by the unwinding of Industrial 

Cable Suppliers’ overstocked position inherited on the acquisition of 

that business.

Net working capital increased slightly to 20.3% of revenue (2013: 

19.5%). Inventory levels at year-end were slightly higher following a 

strategic decision to increase the stock holding of selected fast-

moving cable products ahead of the NUMSA strike which threatened 

to disrupt deliveries from our major cable suppliers. The trade 

receivables book continues to be well managed in an increasingly 

challenging credit environment.

Net capital expenditure for the period amounted to R24,7 million, a 

large portion of which related to the construction of ARB Electrical’s 

new premises in Nelspruit (completed in January 2014) and 

Rustenburg (commenced in April 2014).

The Group’s statement of fi nancial position remains robust refl ecting 

a net asset value per share of 303,15 cents (2013: 279,25 cents) and

a net ungeared cash position of R197,6 million.

The Group’s after-tax return on average equity improved to 17.3% in 

the current year from 15.4% in the prior year.

Byron Nichles
 Group Chief Executive Offi cer

The Group achieved revenue of over 

R2 billion for the fi rst time representing 

growth of 14% over the prior year. The 

revenue growth was predominantly organic 

refl ecting strong market share gains by 

both the Electrical and Lighting divisions.

»  4th consecutive year of top and 
bottom line growth

»  Total shareholder return of 
50% for the year

»  Strong trading performances 
from both Electrical and 
Lighting divisions

Dear Shareholders,

I am pleased to present my report for the year ended 30 June 2014. 

Market share gains and improved operational effi ciencies in both the 

Electrical and Lighting divisions ensured that the Group delivered 

excellent results for the year.

Financial overview
Results
The Group achieved revenue of over R2 billion for the fi rst time 

representing growth of 14% over the prior year. The revenue growth 

was predominantly organic refl ecting strong market share gains by 

both the Electrical and Lighting divisions. Improved trading disciplines 

saw the Group’s overall gross margin increase from 21.9% to 23.8%. 

Overheads were reasonably well controlled across the Group and 

increased due to the higher sales volumes as well as the fi rst time 

inclusion of Elektro Vroomen’s (acquired in January 2013) and CED’s 
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Further detail on the fi nancial results are set out in the Financial 

Director’s report on pages 12 and 13 and in the annual fi nancial 

statements and accompanying notes thereto.

Dividends
In view of the Group’s continued strong cash generation and its ungeared 

balance sheet, the Board approved an annual dividend of 20,1 cents per 

share (2013: 16,2 cents per share) representing an increase of 24%. In 

addition, the Board approved a further special dividend of 10,0 cents per 

share in order to return excess cash to shareholders.

Both the annual and special dividends will be paid to shareholders on 

Monday, 15 September 2014.

Operational review
Electrical division
The Electrical division remains the largest contributor to Group 

revenue (83%) and operating profi t (68%). 

After the slightly disappointing results in the prior year, the Electrical 

division produced much improved and very pleasing results in the 

current year. Although second half revenue growth was adversely 

impacted by heavy rainfall in Gauteng in March and the plethora of 

public holidays throughout April and early May, full year revenue 

grew by 12% to R1,87 billion (2013: R1,68 billion). Gross margins 

improved due to the leveraging of trading and procurement 

effi ciencies. Operating profi ts increased by 37% to R138,6 million 

(2013: R101,3 million) improving the Electrical division’s operating 

margin to 7.4% (2013: 6.0%).

A more detailed review of the Electrical division appears on page 19 of 

this Integrated report.

Lighting division
Buoyed by the introduction of new product categories and key 

customer gains, the Lighting division produced another sterling set 

of results. Full year revenue grew by 25% to R350,8 million (2013: 

R281,2 million). Although gross margins were lower, tight cost control 

contributed to the operating margin improving to 11.3% (2013: 10.8%) 

and a 30% increase in operating profi ts to R39,5 million from R30,5 

million in the prior year.

A more detailed review of the Lighting division appears on page 20 

of this Integrated report.

Corporate division
The Corporate segment represents the Group’s ungeared property 

portfolio, the centralised treasury function and ARB IT Solutions. 

Given the largely fi xed nature of its revenue and overheads (save for 

the non-recurring revenue relating to the implementation of the Xact 

II ERP solution across the Electrical division, earned in the prior 

period), the Corporate division’s results for the period were in line 

with expectations.

During the year, the investments in ARB Electrical's new branch 

premises in Nelspruit and Rustenburg contributed to an increase in 

the market value of the Group’s portfolio of 15 properties to 

R163 million (2013: R155 million).

A more detailed review of the Corporate division appears on page 21 

of this Integrated report.

Corporate activity
Although acquisitions remain an integral part of the Group’s growth 

and expansion strategy, no new corporate activity was undertaken 

during the year as management focused on driving organic growth 

and leveraging operational effi ciencies. 

Potential acquisitions continue to be evaluated but will only be 

concluded if the Board is convinced of the strategic fi t and merits of 

such acquisitions and provided that the terms and structure of such 

acquisitions are value accretive to ARB shareholders. 

Outlook
The combination of continued labour unrest, a slow down in consumer 

spending, moderating economic growth and subdued levels of fi xed 

investment activity suggests a continuation of the tough market 

conditions experienced over the past few years.

Given these headwinds, the Group will maintain its focus on driving 

operational effi ciencies in its existing businesses as well as continue 

to evaluate strategically aligned trading and distribution-related 

acquisitions.

Statements contained throughout this Integrated report regarding the 

prospects of ARB have not been reviewed or reported on by the Group's 

external auditors.

Market performance
Although we remain steadfastly focused on managing the business, it 

is pleasing to note that once again ARB shares outperformed the All 

Share Index as well as the Electronics and Electrical Equipment 

Sector during the year under review.

In addition, ARB improved its ranking from 92nd to 64th in the 

annual Financial Mail Top Companies survey. The ranking is based on 

the internal rate of return achieved by shareholders over a rolling 

fi ve-year period.

Appreciation
The very pleasing results and achievements highlighted in this 

Integrated report represent the combined efforts of our employees 

and managers under the guidance and leadership of our Board. They 

are all richly deserving of my and your appreciation as are our 

customers, suppliers and business partners for their ongoing support 

and our advisors for their guidance.

Byron Nichles

Group Chief Executive Offi cer
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Feedback from the Financial Director

year on year but ultimately proved their worth as profi t margins 

across the Group improved. 

Electrical division
The Electrical division grew its revenue by 12% to R1,88 billion with 

operating profi ts increasing by 37% to R138,6 million. This increase 

was as a result of improved effi ciencies in procurement and 

enhancements to gross margins as a result thereof. While still a 

relatively small contributor to this division’s turnover, CED was 

included for the full year and continues to attract better margins than 

the traditional electrical wholesaling business.

As part of our drive to continually improve operational effi ciencies, the 

two ICS branches were incorporated directly into ARB Electrical 

Wholesalers in March 2014. This eliminated certain duplicated costs 

associated with maintaining ICS as a separate legal entity and has 

further streamlined the day-to-day operations.

Elektro Vroomen, while profi table during the second half of 2014, has 

not yet produced the expected level of performance and greater 

emphasis needs to be placed on this operation to ensure that it soon 

starts generating the level of returns which we as a Group expect.

The management of working capital in this division has, to some 

degree, been hampered by the lack of reliability in respect of deliveries 

from suppliers, while the increasing credit risk remains the largest 

challenge to continued growth.

Lighting division
The Lighting division’s revenue increased 25% year-on-year to 

R350,8 million due to some market share gains with key retail and 

DIY customers. This revenue growth has been steady throughout the 

year and has necessitated a concomitant investment in inventory given 

William “Billy” Neasham
 Group Financial Director

Our constant focus on working capital 

ensured that the Group remained strongly 

cash generative ending the year with an 

ungeared balance sheet and net cash 

resources of R198 million.

»  Strong revenue growth

»  Improved gross and operating 
margins

»  Continued strong cash 
generation

For the second year running our CEO’s persistence requires me to 

write a Financial Director’s report. Although I prefer working with 

numbers rather than words, the good results produced by the Group 

have made this task that much easier. 

Financial performance
Group
The Group’s consolidated turnover grew 14% to R2,22 billion, without 

any new acquisitions during the period. Operating profi t and headline 

earnings both increased by 27%, to R203,0 million and 50,28 cents per 

share, respectively.

Being a trading business, and as I have repeated on many occasions, 

in simple terms, our business is all about managing people and 

managing working capital. As such, our overheads are predominantly 

fi xed with the majority of these costs relating to employees and to the 

rental of warehousing and distribution facilities. While salary increases 

for the year averaged 7%, greater emphasis was placed on variable 

incentives to reward performance at all levels. These performance 

based incentives contributed to the increase in total overheads of 22% 
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the relatively long lead times and the necessity to ensure the ability 

to service these newly acquired customers without disrupting supply 

to existing customers.

These market share gains have resulted in this division’s operating 

profi t rising 30% to R39,5 million and refl ects the continued 

commitment of management to expand the markets in which they 

operate and expand the product offerings to both existing and 

new customers.

Corporate division
This division owns the majority of the properties which are utilised by 

the Electrical division and also houses ARB IT Solutions. 

In line with the Group’s preference of owning its properties, capital 

expenditure during the year was incurred in:

•  the development of the new Nelspruit property for use by ARB 

Electrical Wholesalers, which opened in January 2014, at a total 

cost of approximately R7,8 million, and

•  the construction of new premises in Rustenburg, which are 

anticipated to be completed and ready for occupation at the 

beginning of October 2014.

Both these branches operated from leased premises.

The Group’s properties are valued every three years by an independent 

property valuer which valuations are updated by the same independent 

valuer in the intervening two years to take cognisance of any changes 

in yields, rentals and municipal charges. As set out in notes 3 and 4 to 

the annual fi nancial statements, for the current year the net 

revaluation adjustment on the property portfolio was a pre-tax, 

downward adjustment of approximately R1,3 million, which is included 

as other comprehensive income in the statement of comprehensive 

income and which adjustment is excluded from the calculation of 

headline earnings and headline earnings per share. 

Working capital and cash fl ow
The emphasis on disciplined working capital management within the 

Group remains a key priority in our regular internal management 

meetings and reviews. There have been many cases of good businesses 

being strangled by poor working capital management and we work 

very hard to ensure that we never fall into this trap. 

The challenges facing each division in trying to maintain their 

respective inventory levels within the Group’s targeted levels are very 

different as the electrical wholesaling business procures the majority 

of its product from local suppliers, whereas the Lighting division, and 

newly established CED, have to deal with longer lead times from 

foreign suppliers and high levels of volatility in exchange rates.

The credit risk environment is probably the most challenging it has 

been in many a year, certainly since I have been involved with the 

Group. Fortunately, the Lighting division and CED insure their debtors’ 

book which provides some security, but which also often acts as a 

restriction on growth. In the case of the electrical wholesaling 

business, credit insurance is not a viable option. Although there has 

been an increase in this division’s bad debts during the year, net bad 

debts remain  well below 1% of revenue and within acceptable levels. As 

mentioned previously, the challenge of trying to grow revenues and 

market share whilst at the same time not exposing the Group to undue 

credit risk remains one of the greatest threat to continued growth in 

the coming year.

Our constant focus on working capital ensured that the Group 

remained strongly cash generative ending the year with an ungeared 

balance sheet and net cash resources of R198 million.

Dividends
Given the continued strong cash generation, the Board approved an 

annual dividend of 20,1 cents per share representing the maximum 

pay-out in terms of the Group’s formal dividend policy, being 40% of 

after-tax profi ts. The Board further approved an additional special 

dividend of 10,0 cents per share in order to return excess cash to 

shareholders. The annual and special dividends will be paid to 

shareholders on 15 September 2014. 

Conclusion
This past year has been a rewarding one for the Group as a whole. 

Both the Electrical and Lighting divisions end the year having set a 

new benchmark in terms of operating performance, in a sound 

fi nancial position and having created a fi rm footing from which to 

aspire to new heights in the forthcoming year despite the numerous 

economic challenges that face us as a country.

I again would like to thank the fi nance teams throughout the Group 

for their commitment and dedication, the continued maintenance of 

the fi nancial disciplines expected in our Group and for ensuring that 

we continue to meet all our ongoing reporting requirements on a 

timely basis. 

William (“Billy”) Neasham CA(SA)

Financial Director
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1. Alan R Burke (60)

Founder and Chairman 
Non-Executive Director
Years of service to the Group: 34 years

Alan trained as an apprentice electrician which proved to be the 

springboard for his involvement in the electrical wholesale industry. 

He founded ARB in 1980 in Richards Bay and has been the driving 

force behind its success to date. Alan has played an integral part in 

formulating and executing the Group’s growth strategy and remains 

ARB’s largest shareholder.

2. Byron Nichles (43)

(CA(SA), CGMA)
Group Chief Executive Officer 
Years of service to the Group: 5 years

Byron was appointed CEO of ARB in February 2009, tasked with driving 

the Group’s growth strategy. He was previously the Group Chief 

Financial Officer of Amalgamated Appliance Holdings Limited and a 

founding shareholder and Director of Bridge Capital Group Limited. 

Byron has 14 years’ financial services and advisory experience with 

Deloitte & Touche and Bridge Capital. During his time at Bridge 

Capital, Byron advised ARB on its JSE listing in 2007. 

3. William (“Billy”) Neasham (56)

(CA(SA))
Group Financial Director 
Years of service to the Group: 14 years

Billy qualified as a Chartered Accountant in 1980 and has been involved 

with ARB Electrical Wholesalers since 1988 as the audit partner and 

professional advisor, initially with KPMG, and then with Griffith & 

Aitken. Billy joined ARB in June 2000 as Financial Director responsible 

for the high level of financial discipline instilled throughout the Group.

4. Ralph Patmore (62)

(BCom, MBL)
Lead Independent Non-Executive Director
Years of service to the Group: 5 years

Ralph holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree, a Master of Business 

Leadership degree, and has attended the Executive Programme at 

Stanford University, USA. Ralph is an accredited associate of the 

Institute for Independent Business International. Ralph was a co-

founder of Iliad Africa Limited and served as CEO from 1998 until his 

retirement in 2008.

Prior to joining Iliad, Ralph held various executive positions including 

as Managing Director of subsidiaries within the Unihold and Malbak 

groups, and as a Director of Everite Limited and Group Five Limited. 

Ralph currently serves on the boards of several listed companies 

including Mustek Limited, Calgro M3 Holdings Limited, Accentuate 

Limited and Sentula Mining Limited.

5. Gerrit ("Boel") Pretorius (66)

(B.Sc, B.Eng, LLB, PMD)
Independent Non-Executive Director
Years of service to the Group: 3 years

Boel holds Bachelor of Science, Bachelor of Engineering and LLB 

degrees. Boel joined Fuchs Electronics as a development engineer in 

1973. Fuchs Electronics was later acquired by the Barlow Rand Group 

out of which the Reunert Group was unbundled. Boel held many senior 

positions within the Reunert Group and was appointed to the Reunert 

Board in 1991 and as CEO in 1997, a position he held until his 

retirement in 2010. He currently serves on the boards of several listed 

and unlisted companies including Digicore Holdings Limited, RECM & 

Calibre Limited, Capitec Bank Holdings Limited and Pioneer Food 

Group Limited.

6. Simon Downes (55)

(CA(SA), FCMA, MBA)
Independent Non-Executive Director
Years of service to the Group: 7 years

Simon qualified as a Chartered Accountant and completed his articles 

at Pim Goldby (now Deloitte). In 1984 he achieved an MBA from the 

Graduate School of Business at the University of Cape Town. Simon is 

the CEO, Chairman and sole shareholder of Shave & Gibson Group 

(Pty) Limited, an independent manufacturer of board packaging and 

the largest manufacturer of cheques and other security printed 

products in Africa. Simon is the Chairman of the Board of Directors 

and a Trustee of Clifton College as well as the Chairman of Centenary 

Homes for Aged (incorporating Bartle House and Blaine House). He 

holds directorships in various investment companies.

7. Jacob Modise (48)

(CA(SA), MBA)
Non-Executive Director
Years of service to the Group: 9 years

Jacob is the founder and Chairman of Batsomi Investments Holdings 

(Pty) Limited. He qualified as a Chartered Accountant and later 

supplemented this with an MBA. Jacob held senior executive 

positions with the Road Accident Fund and Johnnic Holdings Limited, 

amongst others. Jacob has served on several boards including 

Eskom Holdings Limited, MTN Group Limited, the Nelson Mandela 

Children’s Fund, the Land Bank and Agricultural Bank of South 

Africa and currently serves on the boards of Allied Electronics 

Corporation Limited and Arcelor Mittal South Africa Limited, 

amongst others. Jacob is currently the Non-Executive Chairman of 

the National Energy Regulator of South Africa (NERSA). 
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Financial highlights

Operating profi t (R million)

NAV per share (cents)

Revenue (R million) Gross profi t (R million)

Headline earnings per share 
(cents)

Annual dividends per share (cents)
excluding special dividends
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 Revenue

up 14% to R2,2 billion

 HEPS

up 27% to 50,28 cents

 Dividend

20,1 cents per share and special 
dividend 10 cents per share

  Operating profi t

up 27% to R203,0 million

 Operating margin

up to 9.2%

 Ungeared with 
R197,6 million net cash on hand
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Performance review

Five-year review 

5 year
Year ended 30 June CAGR* 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Profitability
Revenue (R'000) 20%  2 216 659  1 944 541  1 565 294  1 256 330  1 086 507 
Gross profit (R'000) 27% 526 950  425 120  307 152  234 831  200 222 
Gross profit (%) 23.8% 21.9% 19.6% 18.7% 18.4%
Operating profit (R'000) 20% 203 030  160 475  127 504  110 245  96 634 
Operating profit (%) 9.2% 8.3% 8.1% 8.8% 8.9%
Profit after tax (R'000) 17%  154 574  123 680  100 980  88 678  83 124 
Profit attributable to equity holders  

of the parent (R'000) 15% 118 191  95 130  80 589  72 016  68 692 
Headline earnings per share (cents) 15% 50,28  39,55 34,25  30,64  29,22 
Solvency and liquidity
Net asset value (R'000) 9%  712 396  656 232  582 369  527 327  511 260 
Net tangible asset value per share (cents) 6% 275,94  252,42 225,82  223,20  216,05 
Solvency ratio (Total assets: Total liabilities)  3,8 3,6 3,9  4,9  4,6 
Current ratio (Current assets: Current liabilities)  3,2 3,1 3,5  4,5  4,2 
Net working capital as a % of revenue (%) 20% 19% 21%** 18% 20%
Inventory days 85 82 69**  61  75 
Receivable days 49 51 57**  49  52 
Payable days 54 58 49**  42  51 
Cash flow
Cash generated by operating activities (R'000) 143 656  197 156  95 191  104 889  133 358 
Net cash on hand at year-end (R'000)  197 584  202 753  179 370  265 534  260 938 
Shareholder returns
Return on average shareholders' funds 17.3% 15.4% 14.5% 13.9% 14.2%
Operations
Number of staff at year-end 849 793 676  457  454 
Number of branches at year-end – Electrical 18 19 15  15  12 
Dividends and distributions
Dividend cover (times)  2,5 2,5 2,5  2,5  2,5 
Dividends (cents per share) 15% 20,1 16,2 13,7  12,3  11,5 
Special dividends (cents per share) 10,0 10,0 – – –
Capital distribution (cents per share) – – – –  13,5 
Share performance
Number of ordinary shares in issue ('000)  235 000  235 000  235 000  235 000  235 000 
Market capitalisation at year-end (R'000) 31%  1 576 850  1 092 750  916 500  813 100  540 500 
Share price:
– High (cents) 725 615 475  390  260 
– Low (cents) 450 380 270  225  155 
– Close (cents at 30 June) 31% 671 465 390  346  230 

* Compound annual growth rate
** Eurolux's revenue and/or cost of sales for the six months ended 30 June 2012 have been annualised to enhance comparability
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Divisional reviews

Incorporates 

•  ARB Electrical 
Wholesalers

•  ARB Connect

•  ARB Global

•  Elektro Vroomen

•  CED
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Key statistics

»  606 employees
»  Approximately 7 000 active customers
»  Approximately 20 000 products
»  18 branches nationwide

The Electrical division reported very pleasing results for the year. Revenue grew by 12% to R1,88 billion. 

A decline in Eskom projects as well as protracted labour unrest contributed to a disappointing fourth 

quarter taking the sheen off an otherwise very strong trading performance. Gross margins were higher 

driven by the leveraging of trading and procurement effi ciencies resulting in a 37% increase in operating 

profi t to R138,6 million.

Financial review

All three product categories delivered growth although the overhead line division experienced a marked 

decline in Eskom electrifi cation projects in the fourth quarter.

The exclusive distribution agreements for the ACCC® conductor and the Copperweld range of bimetallic 

products were extended for a further fi ve-year period during the year. These products continue to gain 

traction and the appointment, post year-end, of a senior executive responsible for the strategic market 

development of these products is expected to accelerate their adoption. CED, which houses the exclusive 

CHINT low voltage agency, returned a satisfactory performance in its fi rst year.

In March 2014, the Johannesburg and Rustenburg branches of Industrial Cable Suppliers were 

divisionalised into ARB Electrical Wholesalers and rebranded accordingly. Elektro Vroomen delivered an 

improved performance, particularly in the second half.

Operational review and strategic developments

The Electrical division is southern Africa’s leading independent distributor of a wide range of internationally 

recognised and SABS approved electrical products across three main categories; power and 

instrumentation cables, overhead line equipment and conductors, and general low-voltage products and 

lighting. ARB’s electrical division also holds exclusive distribution agencies for several major international 

brands. The Electrical division services the electrical contracting, construction, large industry, mining, 

domestic and public sectors in sub-Saharan Africa.

Overview
Contribution 
to Group

Revenue +12%

R
'0

00

Blayne Burke 
CEOElectrical division

The combination of a challenging credit environment, low levels of infrastructure activity and Eskom’s 

funding challenges provide for continued tough trading conditions in the year ahead.

To counter the diffi cult external trading environment, the focus on driving greater effi ciency from our 

existing operations through shared services in Finance, Administration, Procurement and Logistics will 

continue. The expansion of the current national branch footprint is being considered through the rollout of 

further ARB Connect branches in strategically identifi ed areas.

Outlook for FY2015
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Divisional reviews (continued)

Peter Willig  
Managing DirectorLighting division

Key statistics

» 229 employees
»  Over 1 600 customers
»  Over 4 500 products

Incorporates 

•  Eurolux

•  Cathay Lighting

0

50 000

100 000

150 000

200 000

250 000

300 000

350 000

400 000

35
0 

81
5

Revenue

R
’0

00

28
1 

17
7

FY
’13

FY
‘14

0
5 000

10 000
15 000
20 000
25 000
30 000
35 000
40 000
45 000

39
 5

11

Operating profit

R
’0

00

30
 4

98

FY
’13

FY
‘14

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

11
.3

Operating margin

%

10
.8

FY
’13

FY
‘14

Contribution 
to Group The Lighting division is a leading importer and distributor of light fittings, light sources and related 

electrical products and accessories servicing the retail, wholesale, commercial and industrial sectors of 
the market in sub-Saharan Africa. 

Overview

The Lighting division delivered very pleasing results increasing revenue by 25% to R351 million in spite of 
a slow down in consumer spending and a highly volatile currency. 

An increased stockholding and a high “in-stock ratio” led to fewer lost sales and a higher level of 
customer satisfaction. 

Gross margins were slightly lower due to a highly competitive marketplace that is becoming increasingly 
resistant to price increases.  

The combination of strong revenue growth and good cost control delivered a 30% increase in operating 
profit to R40 million.

Financial review

During the year, sales to the DIY sector of the market outperformed sales to the traditional retail chains. 
The implementation of an expanded listing of light fittings into one of the listed DIY chains was completed 
in the last quarter of the financial year. This boosted revenue for the quarter and ensures that we are well 
placed to continue the growth into the new financial year. 

New specialised products from Europe were secured during the year. The new products allow entry into 
market sectors not previously served. 

The testing and preparation for an information system upgrade in mid-August 2014 has been completed. 
This will enable product scanning and electronic ordering from our customers, as well as enhanced supply 
chain analyses and general ledger reporting. 

New and updated catalogues are expected to contribute to the anticipated growth in the new year as we 
introduce the new products to the market. The Eurolux website will also be updated shortly.

After a slow start, our range of pre-packaged electrical accessories is now gaining steady momentum, with 
the new electrical catalogue expected to add significantly to the growth of this relatively new product category. 

Operational review and strategic developments

Revenue +25%

R
'0

00

Operating profit +30%

R
'0

00

Operating margin +0.5%

%

Identified areas of growth for the year ahead include neighbouring countries where agents have recently 
been appointed. 

With a more efficiently laid out Johannesburg warehouse, an experienced management team, upgraded 
communications and information systems and very strong customer and supplier relationships I believe 
that the Lighting division is well positioned to deliver continued top and bottom line growth. 

Outlook for FY2015
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Byron Nichles 
Group CEOCorporate division

Key statistics

» ARB Holdings: 4 employees

»  ARB IT: 10 employees

»  15 properties with a market value of 
R163 million

Incorporates 

•  ARB Holdings

•  ARB IT Solutions 

0

10 000

20 000

30 000

40 000

50 000

35
 0

58

Revenue

R
’0

00

38
 6

98

FY
’13

FY
‘14

0

5 000

10 000

15 000

20 000

25 000

30 000

35 000

26
 7

32

Operating profit

R
’0

00

30
 0

52

FY
’13

FY
‘14

0

20

40

60

80

100

76
.3

Operating margin

%

77
.7

FY
’13

FY
‘14

Contribution 
to Group The Corporate division represents the Group’s ungeared property portfolio, the centralised treasury 

function and ARB IT Solutions.

Overview

The Corporate division reported a decrease of 9% in revenue to R35 million and a 17% decrease in 

operating profit to R25 million. The decline in revenue and therefore operating profit was due to the non-

recurrence of the Xact II implementation revenue earned in the prior year. Interest received was flat year-

on-year notwithstanding the payment of dividends in September 2013.

Driven mainly by the Nelspruit and Rustenburg investments discussed below, the market value of the 

Group’s property portfolio increased by R8 million to R163 million during the year. 

Financial review

During the year the Corporate division further enhanced its property portfolio with the following 

investments:

•  Development of new, more centrally located branch premises for ARB Electrical in Nelspruit, completed 

in January 2014, comprising approximately 1 100 m2 of trade counter, office and warehouse space on a 

4 687 m2 stand allowing for increased cable storage; and

•  Development of new branch premises for ARB Electrical in Rustenburg, commenced in April 2014, 

comprising approximately 1 000 m2 of trade counter, office and warehouse space on a 2 856 m2 stand. 

This premises is expected to be completed by end-September 2014.

Operational review and strategic developments

A significant portion of the Corporate division revenue, which comprises rentals received from its 

underlying subsidiaries, monthly IT charges and interest earned, is annuity-based and its overheads are 

largely fixed giving rise to a fairly predictable and consistent annual performance.

Outlook for FY2015

Revenue -9%

R
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Operating profit -11%
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Operating margin -1.4%
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Performance review

Value added statement

Figure in Rand % change  2014  2013 

Revenue  2 216 658 993  1 944 540 972 
Other income  4 878 033  5 807 081 
Less cost of products and services  (1 835 515 424)  (1 652 042 623) 

Value created 29  386 021 602  298 305 430 
Income from investments  11 442 210  10 418 170 

Total wealth created 29  397 463 812  308 723 600 

Wealth distributed
Employees 32  171 496 054  129 840 345 

Employees – salaries, wages and benefits  171 496 054  129 840 345 

Providers of capital 56  61 759 316  39 666 079 

Interest on borrowings  189 316  971 079 
Dividends to shareholders  61 570 000  38 695 000 

Government 42  63 918 382  44 862 522 

Taxation and levies  63 918 382  44 862 522 

Retained in the Group 6  100 290 060  94 354 654 

Reserves  93 004 215  84 985 294 
Deferred taxation  (4 210 132)  1 379 770 
Depreciation  11 495 977  7 989 590 

Total wealth distributed 29  397 463 812  308 723 600

98%
43% Employees

25% Retained in 
         the Group

16% Government

16% Providers of capital

Distribution of wealth 2014

98%
42% Employees

31% Retained in 
         the Group

14% Government

13% Providers of capital

Distribution of wealth 2013
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Sustainability report

At ARB we acknowledge the importance of prioritising social and 

environmental awareness practices alongside financial reporting, and 

are committed to sustainable transformation as a business imperative 

to ensure that we make a positive contribution to the South African 

economy, our stakeholders, the environment and the communities 

within which we operate.

We broadly define stakeholders as our employees, shareholders, our 

customers, suppliers, business partners, the government and the 

communities within which we operate. A report detailing stakeholder 

engagement can be found on page 29 of this Integrated report.

Economic
On page 22 of the Integrated report we have included a wealth 

distribution breakdown detailing the economic value generated and 

distributed by ARB during the 2014 financial year. The largest 

beneficiaries of the 29% increase in wealth created by the Group 

during the year were employees (in the form of increased headcount, 

remuneration and benefits), providers of capital (due to the additional 

special dividend paid) and the government (in the form of increased 

taxation and levy payments). Proportionately less wealth was retained 

in the Group (25% vs 31% in the prior year) due to the Group's ungeared 

balance sheet and significant cash resources.

ARB’s cash flow requirements to run its operations and pay for capital 

expenditure are funded internally from cash generated by its operations. 

ARB does not receive any financial assistance from the government.

Environment
ARB is committed to ensuring that we take preventative measures to 

protect the environment. A dedicated member of operational 

management at each of the Group's operations is responsible for the 

waste and environmental management at his/her respective operation. 

None of ARB’s operations have a harmful effect on the environment 

and no habitats need to be protected or restored due to our operations. 

Recycling of all hydrocarbons and the removal of dangerous substance 

wastes (eg fluorescent tubes) is undertaken by a registered waste 

management company, Interwaste. Ongoing “Cleaning and Greening” 

takes place at each branch to ensure that verges and approaches to 

properties are well kept.

Since 2009, Eurolux has been part of a lighting industry body which, in 

conjunction with Eskom and the Department of Environmental Affairs, 

is investigating various alternatives for the safe and environmentally 

friendly disposal and recycling of fluorescent and high-intensity 

discharge lamps containing mercury.

Until the above initiative is formalised, Eurolux has, over the past 

number of years, offered a free service to its customers, who are able 

to drop off all used lamps at Eurolux’s premises. These lamps are then 

safely crushed and deposited into custom manufactured recycling 

drums which are collected by an approved waste recycling company 

and delivered to the Holfontein Hazardous Waste Plant near Springs.

At this stage, we do not measure our use of water, energy or our 
carbon footprint as we believe that none of the ARB divisions or their 
respective subsidiaries has a major effect on the environment. We will, 

however, review this on an annual basis and should the circumstances 
change, the necessary processes will be implemented.

Labour practices and decent work
Employees ensure that ARB remains competitive, its service levels 
remain high and its business is conducted in an ethical and ultimately, 
profitable manner. Our commitment to our employees spans a variety  
of sustainability issues including employment equity, health and 
safety, basic human rights, HIV/AIDS and skills development, each of 
which is discussed below. We are further guided by prevailing 
legislation including the Basic Conditions of Employment Act, the 
Labour Relations Act, the Skills Development Act, the Occupational 
Health and Safety Act and the Employment Equity Act to name a few.

During the course of the year no incidents of human rights violations 
were reported. Neither ARB nor any of its subsidiaries make or made 
use of child labour. To the best of our knowledge, neither did any of 
our suppliers.

As at 30 June 2014, there were 849 employees (2013: 793) across all 
Group companies.

Employee gender, race and age breakdowns
Total employees by age group

98% 51% 30-45 years

  33% younger 
than 30 years

11% 45-55 years

5% older than 55 years

Total employees by gender

98%

24% Female

76% Male
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Performance review

Sustainability report (continued)

Total employees by race

98%
46% African

28% White

17% Indian

9% Coloured

Employment equity
ARB’s recruitment policies are codified in accordance with the 

Employment Equity Act to attract the necessary competencies while 

creating equal employment opportunities. Our policies are geared 

towards attracting, retaining and promoting our staff through career 

development and succession planning at all levels. To support these 

objectives, innovative recruitment strategies are used including 

psychometric testing and pre-employment assessments, where 

appropriate.

Skills development
ARB recognises the value of fostering an inspiring environment to 

ensure that each staff member is given the opportunity to achieve  

his/her maximum potential. An ongoing career promotion programme 

ensures that each staff member is afforded an equal opportunity to 

grow through business administration, management and commercial 

courses funded by the Group.

In addition, ARB provides study loans to qualifying employees to 

further their education.

We are not only committed to the ongoing training of employees, but to 

life skills teaching as well. To date, ARB has held training in the 

following areas: basic computer skills, primary healthcare, HIV/AIDS 

awareness and life orientation.

Our learnership programme provides opportunities to unemployed 

school leavers from a disadvantaged background. At year-end, the 

Electrical division supported 41 disabled learners, 54% of which 

were female and all of whom were from previously disadvantaged 

backgrounds. The learnership programme runs for a 13-month 

period during which the learners receive formal training in accredited 

programmes including domestic services, cleaning and hygiene and 

business practices, depending on the nature of their disability. For 

the duration of the programme, ARB pays each learner a monthly 

stipend. On the successful completion of the course, each learner 

receives a completion bonus from ARB as well as a NQF1 General 

Education and Training Certificate.

For the year ended 30 June 2014, ARB’s aggregate skills development 

spend amounted to R2,4 million (2013: R3,7 million). The decrease 

was as a result of the non-recurrence in the current year of the IT 

training following the upgrade to the Xact II ERP solution implemented 

in the prior year.

Health and safety
ARB is committed to ensuring a safe and healthy working environment 

and ensures strict compliance with the Occupational Health and 

Safety Act. 

Our internal audit function is tasked with the responsibility of 

maintaining health and safety policies and procedures and monitoring 

compliance thereto. To this end, a comprehensive health and safety 

manual is maintained in accordance with current legislation and best 

practices. In addition, health and safety committees have been 

established at each of our branches and all health and safety 

representatives receive external training to ensure that they are 

familiar with the legislative requirements and are equipped to 

discharge their responsibilities in this regard.

Each branch is assessed quarterly according to an assessment 

module to ensure that legal requirements as determined by current 

legislation are met and adhered to. 

“Toolbox Talks” are held on a regular basis to identify and deal with 

ongoing safety issues. Where risk issues are identified, appropriate 

measures are taken to mitigate such risk.

ARB’s commitment to health and safety is proving effective with no 

major incidences reported during the past year.

HIV/AIDS
As a responsible corporate citizen, ARB shares concern of the  

HIV/AIDS pandemic threatening South Africans and is committed to 

minimising the implications of the disease through proactive HIV/AIDS 

workplace programmes. At ARB we draw on the government’s policy 

on HIV/AIDS as a guideline for our HIV/AIDS awareness programme. 

(Broad-based) Black Economic Empowerment 
(“B-BBEE”)
ARB’s main trading subsidiaries have achieved the following B-BBEE 

ratings:

•  ARB Electrical Wholesalers – Level 4 Contributor verified by BEE 

Rated, a SANAS B-BBEE Verification Agency on 4 June 2014;

•  Elektro Vroomen – Level 1 Contributor verified by BEE Rated, a 

SANAS B-BBEE Verification Agency on 30 April 2014;

•  Eurolux – Level 8 Contributor verified by Moore Stephens BKV 

B-BBEE Verification and Consulting on 16 October 2013;

•  CED – Level 4 Contributor verified by BEE Rated, a SANAS B-BBEE 

Verification Agency on 14 August 2013;
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The Group’s main subsidiaries have each completed a gap analysis in 

order to assess the impact of the proposed revisions to the B-BBEE 

codes. Once these codes have been finalised, appropriate strategies 

will be implemented. 

B-BBEE ownership
Black-owned investment company, Batsomi Power, has held a 26% 

ownership interest in the Group’s main operating subsidiary, ARB 

Electrical Wholesalers, since 2005. Batsomi holds an indirect 

ownership interest of 26% in Elektro Vroomen. 

Corporate governance and ethics
The Board recognises that good corporate governance is vital to the 

sustainable growth of ARB. The Group’s corporate governance 

structures and procedures as well as its Code of Conduct and Ethics 

are detailed in the Corporate Governance report appearing on pages 

30 to 34 of this Integrated report. 

Corporate Social Investment (“CSI”) 
ARB is committed to the socio-economic development and 

empowerment of the local communities in which we operate.  

Through the Electrical and Lighting divisions, we actively support a 

number of initiatives aimed at improving living conditions which 

include supporting underprivileged schools, orphanages, shelters  

and HIV/AIDS programmes. 

iThemba Projects

iThemba Trust is a charitable Trust primarily committed to the funding of projects that assist in the development, treatment and 

rehabilitation of intellectually challenged and physically disabled children.

The iThemba Trust plays a role in assisting with the alleviation of problems such as a lack of knowledge, training, skills or diagnostic 

ability to effectively deal with the treatment of the intellectually disabled. The Trust funds skilled professionals to initiate socially 

empowering, multidisciplinary, hands-on training programmes for care workers within local communities involving the physical and 

intellectual development of each child.

Below is an extract from a letter received from iThemba Projects:

“…Thank you so much for being part of building a more hopeful South Africa. Even though it takes years to see a generation educated and 

making wiser choices, together we are making steady headway.

Thank you for the part you play in the two major educational projects (Educational upliftment and lifeskills education) – that you have 

been part of funding!

Without your support this would not have been possible. I trust you will be encouraged!

With much hope and thanks.

Stu Walker

iThemba Projects Director ...”

For more information about the iThemba Trust, please visit www.ithembatrust.org

Electrical division's CSI initiatives
Organisations which benefited directly from the Electrical division’s CSI programme during the past year include:
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The Domino Foundation 

A non-profi t organisation that creates essential structures geared 

to meet the needs of the vulnerable and impoverished in 

communities. The Domino effect is achieved through focused 

interventions including Domino Babies Homes, Domino Feeding, 

Domino Early Childhood Development and Domino Learning 

for Life.

For more information about The Domino Foundation, please visit 

www.domino.org.za

The Robin Hood Foundation

A non-profi t organisation that runs a series of projects each year aimed at providing some relief to poverty-stricken communities. 

Amongst the projects run by The Robin Hood Foundation are the following:

Love the babies – through this project, needy mums from AIDS affected communities are given a "Love the Babies" bag for the fi rst 

year of their new baby's life. A "Love the Babies" bag is essentially a baby shower in a bag.

Gogo Bags – the foundation decided to extend their support to not only help new needy mums but also to help the grannies who look 

after their orphaned grandchildren.

Bless a granny and grandpa – this project visited 16 different old age homes over the past year, bringing grannies and grandpa’s 

presents in an effort to make them feel loved and appreciated. Though they might have beds and food to eat many of them have no 

family or their families are far away and don’t often visit. 

Child headed homes – this project was created to assist the orphaned children affected by the AIDS pandemic, who are caring for 

their siblings.

For more information on The Robin Hood Foundation, please visit www.robinhoodfoundation.co.za

Sunfl ower House/St Nicholas Children’s Hospice

Elektro Vroomen once again supported the Sunfl ower House/St 

Nicholas Children’s Hospice. The Sunfl ower House is a safe house 

for street children and a blessing in their lives, getting them out of 

the cold and off the dangerous streets they live on. In total, Elektro 

Vroomen helped raise R23 000 for the Sunfl ower House/St 

Nicholas Children’s Hospice.
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Lighting division's CSI initiatives
The Lighting division’s CSI initiatives during the year benefitted the following organisations:

South Africans Riding for the Disabled Association (“SARDA”)

SARDA began 38 years ago and is run entirely by volunteers. It 

provides free horse riding lessons to over 200 disabled children 

each week. The motion of the horse has the potential to positively 

influence movement by inhibiting abnormal movement patterns 

and improve muscle tone. 

In order to raise awareness of SARDA, Eurolux once again co-

sponsored SARDA branded cycling shirts for this year’s Cape Argus 

Cycle Tour. The 66 participating cyclists all successfully completed 

the 109 km route raising much needed funding for SARDA.

Reuven Old Age Home

On 8 February 2014, Eurolux’s Johannesburg technical team went 

out to the Reuven Old Age Home, to do some maintenance work to 

ensure that the home has adequate internal and external lighting 

inside and out.

Siyazama Crèche

The Siyazama Crèche, situated in the Joe Slovo Settlement outside 

Cape Town, provides a safe haven for children from impoverished 

backgrounds. On Mandela Day 2013, Eurolux assisted by donating 

and installing new lighting across the premises, as well as treating 

the children and teachers to lunch.

“The bulkhead will provide much needed illumination especially 

during winter when children are collected in the late afternoon or 

dropped off in the early morning,” explained the crèche’s principal, 

Bulelowa Madolo. 

Other CSI initiatives
ARB Electrical has a school fee bursary scheme in place for the education of its employees' minor children. In terms of the scheme, school fees 

are paid for up to two minor children per qualifying employee on a non-recourse basis. During the current year, 42 children (2013: 47) benefited 

directly from the scheme, 81% of whom are from previously disadvantaged backgrounds (2013: 77%).

In addition to the above monetary donations, significant donations of stock were made to various FET colleges during the year.

From time to time, in lieu of corporate gifting over the festive season, the various companies within the ARB Group contribute to the upliftment 

of the communities in which they operate. 

For the year ended 30 June 2014, ARB Group companies’ aggregate CSI spend increased by 21% to R2,3 million (2013: R1,9 million).
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Engaging with stakeholders

ARB’s key stakeholders are identifi ed in the diagram below. Engagement with stakeholders includes various forms of communication such as 

telephone calls, meetings and presentations. A detailed outline of the stakeholders and the type of engagement to date is outlined below:

Regulators

Customers
Shareholders/

investment 
community

Employees

Suppliers

CommunitiesTrade unionsFinanciers

Government/
parastatals

Stakeholders Type of engagement

Shareholders/investment community

» SENS announcements

» Interim and fi nal results presentations

» Active website

» Dissemination of information to a detailed contact list

» Conference calls and meetings

» Investor site visits and open days

» JSE Showcase presentations

» RMB Morgan Stanley Off Piste Conference

» Bi-annual Investor Update newsletter

Customers
»  Formal business meetings, presentations relating to products, telephone calls, credit checks 

and reviews, trade shows

Employees

» Quarterly newsletter

» Internal staff meetings at Group and subsidiary level

» “Toolbox Talks” 

» Training and development

» Grievance procedures

» Performance reviews

Suppliers » Formal business meetings, presentations on products, trade shows

Government/parastatals » Meetings, industry body representation and conference participation

Regulators » Reporting, correspondence, formal meetings and feedback sessions

Financiers » Formal one-on-one meetings as well as telephonic discussions

Trade unions » Ad-hoc engagement

Communities » Active CSI initiatives and participation
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Corporate Governance report

Introduction
The Directors of ARB acknowledge the importance of good corporate 

governance and are committed to implementing the Code of Governance 

Principles (“the Code”) as set out in the King Code of Governance for 

South Africa 2009 (“King III”) as well as the Listings Requirements of 

the JSE Limited (“the JSE”) and all other applicable laws. In 

implementing King III, the Directors subscribe to the need to manage 

the Group based on the principles of integrity and accountability. The 

Group’s corporate governance structures and policies are evaluated on 

an ongoing basis and are amended, as appropriate, in response to 

changes within and external to the Group. In terms of the JSE Listings 

Requirements, all listed companies are required to apply the principles 

and recommendations set out in King III. 

Statement of compliance
The JSE Listings Requirements require listed companies to report on 

the extent to which they comply with the principles and 

recommendations set out in King III.

To the best of the Board’s knowledge and belief, the only areas of 

possible (partial) non-compliance with the recommendations set out 

in King III are as follows:

•  ARB’s Chairman, Alan R Burke, is not classified as being 

independent given his material shareholding in the Company.

   As per the recommendations of King III, ARB has appointed a Lead 

Independent Director to compensate for the lack of an Independent 

Non-Executive Chairman, as well as ensured that in terms of the 

composition of the Board, the number of Non-Executive Directors 

on its board exceeds the number of Executive Directors, and further 

that the majority of Non-Executive Directors are independent.

•  A formal induction programme for Directors is in the process of 

being developed. Regulatory updates and changes in laws and risks 

are circulated to the Board on a regular basis.

•  Not all aspects of the Company’s sustainability reporting and 

disclosure are independently assured. The Audit Committee, which 

comprises a majority of Independent Non-Executive Directors, is 

responsible for overseeing the reporting on sustainability and for 

reviewing the Integrated report. The Board has further adopted a 

combined assurance model with certain aspects of the Group’s 

reporting being independently assured while other aspects are 

internally, but independently, assessed and reported on by, for 

example, the internal audit function which reports directly into the 

independent Chairman of the Audit Committee.

Accordingly, the Board is satisfied that, to the best of its knowledge and 

belief, ARB has, where practical, complied with the aforementioned 

requirements.

The complete King III compliance checklist is available on the 

Company’s website – www.arbhold.co.za – under the Investor 

Relations section.

Memoranda of Incorporation
All companies forming part of the ARB group have either amended or 

adopted new Memorandum of Incorporation’s in compliance with the 

Companies Act and the JSE Listings Requirements.

The Board
The Group is led by an effective, unitary Board. Notwithstanding the 

delegation by the Board of certain powers and authorities to executive 

management and sub-committees, the Board is ultimately responsible 

for retaining full and effective control over the Group. Decisions on 

material matters are reserved for the Board. The Board currently 

comprises seven Directors; two Executive Directors, being the Group 

Chief Executive Officer and the Group Financial Director, and five Non-

Executive Directors, three of whom are independent. Consistent with 

the recommendations set out in King III, the Board comprises a 

majority of Non-Executive Directors, the majority of whom are 

independent. The Independent Non-Executive Directors ensure that 

no one individual has unfettered powers of decision making and 

authority so as to protect the best interests of all shareholders. The 

Non-Executive Directors have unrestricted access to management.

Directors are encouraged to stay abreast of the Group’s businesses 

through independent site visits and meetings with executive 

management. 

All Directors are entitled, at ARB’s expense, to seek independent 

professional advice on any matter pertaining to the Group where they 

deem this necessary.

All Directors have the requisite knowledge and experience required to 

properly execute their duties. 

A brief curriculum vitae for each Director is set out on pages 14 and 15 

of this Integrated report.

In terms of the Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation, one-third 

of the Non-Executive Directors are required to retire by rotation at the 

next Annual General Meeting and their reappointment is subject to 

shareholder approval.

The Board meets at least quarterly and more frequently, if required. 

Directors are provided in advance with all necessary information to 

enable them to discharge their duties. Any Director may request that 

additional matters be added to the agenda. Proceedings at Board 

meetings are properly minuted and all minutes are circulated to all 

Board members for review prior to being approved. In addition, Executive 

and Non-Executive Directors meet informally on a regular basis.
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Attendance at meetings
Details of Directors’ attendance at Board meetings held during the 

year are set out below. Figures in brackets indicate the number of 

meetings that each Director was eligible to attend.

Director

AR Burke (Chairman)* 4(4)

ST Downes** 4(4)

JR Modise* 3(4)

WR Neasham (Financial) 4(4)

B Nichles (CEO) 4(4)

RB Patmore** > 4(4)

G Pretorius** 4(4)

*  Non-Executive ** Independent Non-Executive 
> Lead Independent Director 

Chairman
The Board is chaired by Alan R Burke, founder and the largest 

shareholder of ARB. As recommended by King III, the role of Chairman 

is separate from that of Group Chief Executive Offi cer. The Chairman, 

a Non-Executive Director, is not independent as recommended by 

King III hence the appointment of a Lead Independent Director as 

discussed below. The Chairman provides leadership and guidance to 

the Board and encourages active debate and proper deliberation on all 

matters requiring the Board’s attention while obtaining input from the 

other Directors. The Chairman is further responsible for representing 

the Board to shareholders.

Lead Independent Director
In accordance with King III, a Lead Independent Director, Ralph Patmore, 

has been appointed.

Group Chief Executive Offi cer and Executive Directors
The Group Chief Executive Offi cer, together with the other Executive 

Directors, is responsible for implementing the Group’s strategic plan 

and operational decisions in respect of the day-to-day running of the 

business while the Non-Executive Directors provide oversight and 

guidance in this regard.

The Group Chief Executive Offi cer and Group Financial Director meet 

formally each month with each of the divisional and subsidiary 

Managing Directors and/or Group Chief Executive Offi cers to discuss 

fi nancial, operational and strategic matters. 

Each operating entity within the Group has its own executive 

management committee who meet regularly to discuss and attend to 

the day-to-day management of their respective businesses.

Company Secretary 
In compliance with the JSE Listings Requirements, Mario Louw 

replaced William (“Billy”) Neasham as the duly appointed Secretary of 

the Company with effect from 1 October 2013.

The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is approved 

by the Board. The Company Secretary advises the Board on the 

appropriate procedures for the management of meetings and 

implementation of governance procedures, and is further responsible 

for providing the Board collectively, and each Director individually, 

with guidance on the discharge of their responsibilities in terms of the 

legislative and regulatory requirements applicable to the Company. 

The Company Secretary is further responsible for ensuring regulatory 

and legislative compliance by the Group. All Directors have unrestricted 

access to the Company Secretary.

Furthermore, Mario Louw is not a Director, nor is he related or 

connected to any of the Directors, thereby ensuring an arm's-length 

The Board

Remuneration 
Committee

 Risk Committee Audit 
Committee

Social and Ethics 
Committee

Executive

(3 Independent)

Non-Executive

Sub-Committees

2 5
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relationship between the Company Secretary and the Board. On an 

annual basis, the Board considers and confirms that it is satisfied with 

the competence, qualifications and experience of the Company 

Secretary. This review was performed at the Board meeting held on  

19 August 2014 whereat the Board considered the performance of the 

Company Secretary during the past year, in light of his experience and 

qualifications and was satisfied therewith. The Board also reconfirmed 

that the arm's-length relationship between the Company Secretary 

and the Board remained intact.

The certificate required to be signed by the Company Secretary in 

terms of section 88(2) of the Companies Act, appears on page 45 of 

this Integrated report.

Appointment of new Directors
The Board constantly assesses its composition to ensure that it 

comprises the appropriate balance of skills, experience and 

competency levels required to effectively discharge its duties.

All Directors are required to assist in identifying and nominating 

potential Board candidates. The Board, chaired by Alan R Burke, is 

responsible for evaluating the suitability of any Board candidate and 

for formalising any appointment in this regard. All new Directors are 

subject to election by shareholders at the first Annual General Meeting 

following their initial appointment by the Board.

Board Charter
The Board is regulated by a formal Board Charter which sets out the 

role of the Board and the responsibilities of the Directors. The 

comprehensive charter addresses matters relating to Board 

composition, leadership, remuneration, evaluation, Group processes 

and procedures, key operational risks and corporate governance. 

The charter provides the Board with a mandate to exercise leadership, 

determine the Group’s vision and strategy and monitor operational 

performance.

The specific duties and responsibilities of the Board as codified by  

the charter include:

•  Strategy and planning, including the approval of annual budgets;

•  Defining of the required competencies as well as the number and 

profile of Board members, which includes reviewing the 

performance of the Group Chief Executive Officer, Executive 

Directors and the Company Secretary;

• Succession planning at senior executive level;

•  Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors and of Executive 

Directors;

• Executive short and long-term incentive schemes;

• Capital management and allocation;

• Performance monitoring;

• Risk management;

•  Audit and compliance, including the appointment of the external 

auditors as well as the definition and scope of their function;

•  Review of the internal control environment and compliance; and

•  Policies dealing with conflicts of interests and codes of conduct 

including related party transactions, share dealings by Directors, 

and insider trading.

Evaluation of the Board and Directors
The Board conducts a self-evaluation exercise on an annual basis 

reviewing its role, processes, sub-committees and performance in 

accordance with the Board Charter.

In addition, an assessment of each Director’s performance is 

undertaken annually by the Chairman.

Board sub-committees
The following sub-committees have been established to assist the 

Board in discharging its responsibilities:

Audit Committee
Members: Simon Downes (Chairman), Ralph Patmore, Gerrit (“Boel”) 

Pretorius

The Audit Committee is chaired by an Independent Non-Executive 

Director, Simon Downes, and comprises two further Independent Non-

Executive Directors, Ralph Patmore and Gerrit (“Boel”) Pretorius. The 

Group Chief Executive Officer and Group Financial Director as well as the 

external auditors and the internal auditor attend all Audit Committee 

meetings by invitation and management or independent third parties are 

invited to attend as appropriate. The external auditors and the internal 

auditor have unrestricted access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. 

The Company Secretary is the secretary of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is evaluated annually.

During the year the Audit Committee met three times, which the 

Directors believe is sufficient for the purpose of discharging the 

committee’s responsibilities. Additional meetings are convened as 

required. Details of Directors’ attendance at the Audit Committee 

meetings held during the year are set out on page 39.

The Audit Committee’s report for the year ended 30 June 2014 is set 

out on page 38.

Risk Committee
Members: Simon Downes (Chairman), Alan R Burke, Ralph Patmore, 

Gerrit (“Boel”) Pretorius, Byron Nichles, William (“Billy”) Neasham

The Risk Committee is chaired by Simon Downes, an Independent 

Non-Executive Director, and its members include Ralph Patmore and 

Gerrit (“Boel”) Pretorius (Independent Non-Executive Directors), Alan 

R Burke (Non-Executive Director and Chairman of the Board) as well 

as the two Executive Directors, Byron Nichles (Group Chief Executive 

Officer) and William (“Billy”) Neasham (Group Financial Director). The 

Chief Executives of the Group’s major operating entities attend the 

meetings by invitation. The Company Secretary is the secretary of the 

Risk Committee.
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The Risk Committee operates in terms of a formal charter approved by 

the Board. The Risk Committee is evaluated annually.

During the year the Risk Committee met four times, which the 

Directors believe is sufficient for the purpose of discharging the 

committee’s responsibilities. Additional meetings are convened as 

required. Details of Directors’ attendance at the Risk Committee 

meetings held during the year are set out on page 37.

The Risk Committee’s report for the year ended 30 June 2014 is set out 

on page 35.

Remuneration Committee
Members: Ralph Patmore (Chairman), Alan R Burke, Simon Downes, 

Gerrit (“Boel”) Pretorius

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Ralph Patmore, the Lead 

Independent Non-Executive Director, and its members include Gerrit 

(“Boel”) Pretorius and Simon Downes (both Independent Non-

Executive Directors) and Alan R Burke (Non-Executive Director and 

Chairman of the Board). The Group Chief Executive Officer and Group 

Financial Director are invited to attend Remuneration Committee 

meetings but may not participate in discussions regarding their own 

remuneration. The Company Secretary is the secretary of the 

Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee operates in terms of a formal charter 

approved by the Board. The Remuneration Committee is evaluated 

annually.

During the past year, the Remuneration Committee met three times, 

which the Directors believe is sufficient for the purpose of discharging 

the committee’s responsibilities. Additional meetings are convened as 

required. Details of Directors’ attendance at Remuneration Committee 

meetings held during the year are set out on page 41.

The Remuneration Committee’s report for the year ended 30 June 2014 

is set out on page 40.

Social and Ethics Committee
Members: Gerrit (“Boel”) Pretorius (Chairman), Simon Downes, 

Shannon Bester, Shanna Hechter (resigned after year-end)

The Social and Ethics Committee is chaired by Independent Non-

Executive Director, Gerrit (“Boel”) Pretorius and comprises one 

further Independent Non-Executive Director, Simon Downes, as well  

as Shannon Bester, the Financial Director of ARB Electrical 

Wholesalers, the Group’s largest operating entity, and Shanna 

Hechter, the Group’s Human Resources Manager. The Group Financial 

Director attends the meetings by invitation. The Company Secretary is 

the secretary of the Social and Ethics Committee. 

The committee is governed by a formal charter approved by the Board. 

The Social and Ethics Committee is evaluated annually.

During the past year, the Social and Ethics Committee met twice 

which the Directors believe is sufficient for the purpose of discharging 

the committee’s responsibilities. Additional meetings are convened as 

required. Details of Directors’ attendance at the Social and Ethics 

Committee meetings held during the year are set out on page 42.

The Social and Ethics Committee’s report for the year ended  

30 June 2014 is set out on page 42.

Beneficial shareholdings
The beneficial shareholdings of the Directors of the Company and its 

subsidiaries are set out in note 12 of the Directors’ Report on page 48 

of this Integrated report.

Share dealings
Directors are required to disclose their shareholdings and any dealings 

in shares of the Company to the Chairman and Group Chief Executive 

Officer or Group Financial Director, who together with the Company’s 

sponsor ensure that any such dealings are published on SENS in 

compliance with the JSE Listings Requirements. In addition, all 

Company Directors and all subsidiary Directors, including the 

Company Secretary, are prohibited from dealing in the shares of the 

Company during prohibited periods or at any time when they are in 

possession of unpublished price sensitive information in relation to 

those shares. The consent of the Chairman is required before any 

Director or member of senior management, including the Company 

Secretary, can deal in the Company’s shares. 

Interests in contracts
Directors are required to inform the Board timeously of conflicts or 

potential conflicts of interest they may have in relation to the Group 

and any of its businesses. Directors are obliged to recuse themselves 

from discussions or decisions on matters in which they have a conflict 

of interest.

Code of conduct and ethics
Every employee within the ARB Group is required to subscribe to a 

formal Code of Ethics (“the Code”) which stipulates the Group’s 

commitment to the highest standards of corporate governance and 

compliance with the laws of South Africa. The Code sets out standards 

of integrity and ethics in dealings with suppliers, customers, business 

partners, stakeholders, government and society at large. It requires 

all employees to act with honesty and integrity in all dealings with 

stakeholders and to interact with fairness, dignity and respect to 

create and protect a credible business reputation and a working 

environment free from harassment and discrimination.

In line with the Code, the Group recruits and promotes employees on 

the basis of their suitability for the job without any discrimination on 

the basis of race, religion, national origin, colour, gender, age, marital 

status, sexual orientation or disability unrelated to the task at hand.

Employees have been educated about the responsibility of reporting 

any actual, perceived or potential violation of the Code to management. 

Management bears the overall responsibility of monitoring compliance 
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with the Code. ARB takes the Code seriously and, where appropriate, 

employs disciplinary procedures and/or legal proceedings to address 

any transgression.

Stakeholder communication
The Group is committed to timely, consistent, honest and transparent 

communication with all stakeholders and encourages an open 

communication culture throughout the Group. This is carried through 

to all means of communication including advertising where all 

untruths, concealment or misleading descriptions are prohibited.

Company announcements are released on SENS and published in the 

press, if required. Regular presentations and meetings are held with 

investors and analysts to communicate the strategy and performance 

of the Group. During the year, the Group Chief Executive Officer 

presented the Company at several JSE showcases around the country 

as well as at the annual RMB/Morgan Stanley Off-Piste Conference. 

The Company also distributes a bi-annual Investor Update newsletter, 

copies of which can be downloaded from the Company’s website at 

www.arbhold.co.za under the Investor Relations section. Furthermore, 

the Group Chief Executive Officer is available to answer any queries 

from stakeholders including institutional shareholders and industry 

analysts, and wherever possible, engages with the financial media to 

ensure accurate reporting. Shareholders are also afforded the 

opportunity to put questions to the Board at the Company’s Annual 

General Meeting.

The Group’s website provides information on the Group and contains 

the latest and historical financial information.

The Group engages the services of Keyter Rech Investor Solutions CC 

to assist and advise it with all shareholder communications.

A table on stakeholder engagement can be found on page 29.

Fraud, bribery, corruption and illegal acts
The Group does not engage in or condone any form of fraud, bribery, 

corruption or any other illegal acts in the conduct of its business. 

Furthermore, employees are discouraged from accepting any gifts or 

favours from suppliers that obligate them in any way to reciprocate. 

The Group's policy is to actively pursue and prosecute the perpetrators 

of any fraudulent or other illegal activities should they become aware 

of any such acts. All Executive Directors, Divisional Directors and 

Regional, Branch and Sales Managers are required to sign a 

representation letter annually regarding illegal behaviour.

Insider trading
No employee may deal, directly or indirectly, in ARB shares based on 

unpublished price sensitive information regarding the business or the 

affairs of the Group.

In addition, comprehensive confidentiality agreements are in  

place with the Company’s sponsor, advisors, printers and investor  

relations agency.

Political contributions
The Group does not contribute to any political parties or politicians.

Competition and pricing
The Group supports and encourages free external and internal 

competition in all business units and subsidiaries. All Executive 

Directors, Divisional Directors and Regional, Branch and Sales 

Managers are required to sign a representation letter annually 

regarding anti-competitive behaviour.

Litigation
The services of external legal advisers are engaged by the Group 

when deemed necessary.

The Board is not aware of any legal or arbitration proceedings  

that may have or have had in the recent past, being at least the  

previous 12 months, a material effect on the financial position of the 

Company or any of its subsidiaries.

Sponsor
Grindrod Bank Limited is the Company’s sponsor and advises the 

Board on the interpretation of and compliance with the JSE Listings 

Requirements and with the review of all announcements and 

documentation required in terms thereof.
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Risk Committee report

The management of risk is a key 

driver in the way in which we run 

the business. 
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RISK MATRIX

Description of risk Level of risk Mitigation strategies

1 Strategic

Business model High/Moderate •  Main operating subsidiaries have robust models, proven effective for more than 

20 years

•  Ensure value proposition remains compelling

B-BBEE High/Moderate •  Evaluating ways to address weakness in current and revised scorecards

•  Board evaluating alternatives to address the ownership component across all 

operating entities

Failed acquisition Low •  Board approval required for all merger and acquisition activity

•  Retain external advisors where appropriate (attorneys, auditors, sponsor)

•  To date, acquisitions have been relatively small and successful

2 Financial

Credit risk Moderate •  Collections adversely affected by current economic climate but

– Strict credit vetting measures in place

– Net bad debt write-offs very low across all businesses

–  Eurolux and CED debtors' books covered by Credit Guarantee Insurance Corporation

Stock devaluation/loss Moderate •  Volatility in exchange rates and commodity prices increase risk

•  Implementation of appropriate stock holding policies to limit exposure

•  Maintain adequate stock provisions

Trading failure/cash

shortage

Low •  Operations are profi table and cash generative

•  Ungeared with net cash of R198 million on hand

•  Adequate unutilised bank facilities in place

Fraud Low •  Strict internal controls

•  Adequate segregation of duties

•  Internal and external audit reviews

•  Culture of ethical behaviour
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Risk Committee report (continued)

I have pleasure in presenting the Risk Committee report for the year 

ended 30 June 2014.

Members
The Risk Committee comprises the following members:

• Simon Downes (Chairman) – Independent, Non-Executive Director;

• Alan R Burke – Non-Executive Director and Chairman of the Board;

• Ralph Patmore – Lead Independent, Non-Executive Director

• Gerrit (“Boel”) Pretorius – Independent, Non-Executive Director

• Byron Nichles – Group Chief Executive Offi cer

• William (“Billy”) Neasham – Group Financial Director

In addition to the above members, the Group Chief Executive Offi cer and 

Managing Director of the Electrical and Lighting divisions attend Risk 

Committee meetings by invitation. The Group’s IT Director is also invited, 

from time to time, to present on matters relating to IT governance.

Description of risk Level of risk Mitigation strategies

3. Operational

Human capital Moderate •  Incentive and retention mechanisms in place for key staff

•  Ongoing succession planning

•  Fair and equitable labour practices

Labour unrest Low/Moderate •  Very low levels of union membership, with no union recognition, across the group

•  Indirect adverse impact on sales, stock availability and deliveries when various 

unions go on strike

IT system failure Low •  Duplicated fail over servers in place

•  Daily backups with offsite storage

•  Formal disaster recovery plans in place

Loss of key customer/supplier Low •  Very low customer concentration (Electrical)

•  Increase trade with all major customers and target new customers and markets to 

reduce potential concentration risk (Lighting)

•  Alternative suppliers available across all major product categories

Natural disaster Low •  Comprehensive insurance cover in place

•  Formal disaster recovery plans in place

•  National branch network/multiple locations reduce the potential impact

Supply chain failure Low •  Multiple suppliers available for most products

•  Minimal imported product (Electrical)

•  Adequate stock holdings maintained

Product failure Low •  Only stock and supply compliant products – ARB Electrical, Elektro Vroomen, CED 

and Eurolux are all members of SAFEhouse

•  Back-to-back guarantees with suppliers

•  Terms and conditions specifi cally exclude special, indirect and/or consequential 

damages or loss

•  Product liability insurance cover maintained

4. Reputational

Legal non-compliance Low •  Not a contractually driven industry

•  Retain experts (attorneys, sponsor, auditors) to advise as appropriate

•  All Directors and Managers required to sign annual undertaking in relation to illegal 

and anti-competitive behaviour

Loss of market confi dence Low •  Open, honest and timely communication with market

•  Shares are tightly held

5. Environmental

Environmental impact Low •  No manufacturing undertaken, operations are restricted to trading and distribution 

activities

•  Ongoing engagement with the Department of Environmental Affairs regarding the 

disposal and recycling of fl uorescent and high-intensity discharge lamps (Lighting)
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Role of the Risk Committee
The Risk Committee operates in terms of a formal charter approved by 

the Board.

Overall responsibility for the identification, evaluation, monitoring and 

management of risk vests with executive management. The Risk 

Committee provides independent and objective oversight of the 

information presented by executive management and reviews the risk 

philosophy, strategy and policies recommended by executive 

management.

The specific responsibilities of the Risk Committee include:

•  Assisting the Board in discharging its duties relating to corporate 

accountability and the associated risks. Risk in the widest sense 

includes, but is not necessarily limited to, strategic risk, financial 

risk, operational risk, reputational risk and environmental risk; and

•  Assisting the Board in discharging its duties relating to IT 

governance.

Meetings of the Risk Committee
During the year the Risk Committee met four times, which the 

Directors believe is sufficient for the purpose of discharging the 

Committee’s responsibilities. Additional meetings are convened as 

required. Details of Directors’ attendance at the Risk Committee 

meetings are set out below.

Director

AR Burke * 4(4)

ST Downes** 4(4)

WR Neasham (Financial) 4(4)

B Nichles (CEO) 4(4)

RB Patmore**> 4(4)

G Pretorius** 4(4)

* Non-Executive ** Independent Non-Executive

> Lead Independent Director

Conclusion
The Committee is of the opinion that it has adequately discharged its 

obligations during the course of the year. Furthermore, the Committee 

is of the opinion that all material risks facing the Group have been 

identified, quantified and, where possible, mitigated as prescribed by 

the Charter.

Simon Downes

Risk Committee Chairman
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Audit Committee report

I have pleasure in presenting the Audit Committee report for the year 

ended 30 June 2014.

Appointment
The Audit Committee is appointed at each Annual General Meeting as 

required by the Companies Act 71 of 2008 (“the Act”) Part D, Section 

94. This section requires the Audit Committee to prepare a report to be 

included in the annual financial statements for that financial year, 

specifying the matters set out below. The JSE Listings Requirements 

requires all listed companies to appoint an Audit Committee that 

“must fulfil the role as set out in the King Code”.

Members
The Audit Committee comprises the following members, who were 

appointed by the shareholders at the Company’s Annual General 

Meeting held on 23 October 2013:

• Simon Downes (Chairman) – Independent, Non-Executive Director

• Ralph Patmore – Lead Independent, Non-Executive Director

• Gerrit (“Boel”) Pretorius – Independent, Non-Executive Director

In addition to the above members, the Group Chief Executive Officer, 

Group Financial Director, Group Internal Audit Manager and the 

external auditors attend Audit Committee meetings by invitation.

The Audit Committee Report
The Act requires the Audit Committee to prepare a report which covers 

the following matters:

• Describe how the Audit Committee carried out its functions;

•  State whether the Committee is satisfied that the auditor was 

independent of the Company; and

•  Comment as appropriate on the accounting practices and the 

internal financial controls of the Company.

Duties of the Audit Committee
A formal charter tasks the Audit Committee with reviewing the interim 

results and annual financial statements and associated 

announcements as well as with understanding management’s 

accounting processes and policies and the external auditor’s 

involvement in these processes. 

The specific responsibilities of the Audit Committee include:

•  Internal control – reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of 

management information and internal controls to support the Board 

in the discharge of its responsibilities. This includes monitoring 

management’s responsibility for the security of the information 

systems and applications and the contingency plans for processing 

financial information in the case of a system breakdown;

•  Financial reporting – reviewing the accounting policies adopted or 

any changes made and the measures introduced by management to 

enhance the accuracy and fair presentation of all matters proposed 

for inclusion in the annual financial statements and any other 

reports prepared with reference to the affairs of the Company for 

external distribution or publication, including those required by any 

regulatory or supervisory authority;

•  External audit – recommending the appointment of external 

auditors for approval by the shareholders, reviewing their 

performance and monitoring their independence. The Audit 

Committee also sets the principles for recommending the external 

auditors to perform non-audit services; 

•  Group Financial Director – evaluating the performance of the Group 

Financial Director during the year under review and providing 

feedback in this regard to the Remuneration Committee;

•  Internal audit – overseeing the internal audit function which is 

responsible for performing independent assessments of the 

adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls and 

operations as well as monitoring each branch’s compliance with 

Health and Safety requirements. The internal audit department is 

further tasked with ensuring that Group policies and procedures are 

adequate, effective, appropriate and consistently applied across  

the Group; 

•  Sustainability and integrated reporting – overseeing the Group’s 

sustainability and integrated reporting and advising the Board on 

the need to engage an external assurance provider to review the 

accuracy and completeness of such reporting; and

•  Risk management and IT governance – although a separate Risk 

Committee exists, the Audit Committee liaises with the Risk 

Committee insofar as financial reporting risks, internal controls, 

fraud, IT governance and in respect of any areas of overlap. In 

accordance with the recommendations of King III, IT governance is 

addressed as a separate agenda item at Risk Committee meetings 

and reported back on at Board meetings. 

Activities and findings of the Audit Committee
With regard to the above:

•  The scope, independence and objectivity of the external auditors 

was reviewed;

•  The external audit firm, PKF Durban, and audit partner, Tania Marti-Warren, 

are in the Audit Committee’s opinion, independent of the Company and  

have been proposed to the shareholders for approval to be reappointed as 

the Company’s auditor for the 2015 financial year;

•  On an ongoing basis, the Audit Committee reviews and approves the 

fees proposed by the external auditor;

•  To the best of the Audit Committee’s knowledge and belief, the 

appointment of the external auditor complies with the Act, and with 

all other legislation relating to the appointment of external auditors;

•  The nature and extent of non-audit services provided by the external 

auditor have been reviewed to ensure that the fees for such services 

do not become so significant as to call into question their 

independence;

•  The nature and extent of non-audit services have been defined and 

pre-approved;

•  Nothing has come to the attention of the Audit Committee to indicate 

that there has been a material breakdown in the systems of internal 

control during the year;

•  The Audit Committee is satisfied with the appropriateness of the 

expertise and experience of the Group Financial Director and his 

performance during the year;
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•  The Audit Committee is satisfied with the Corporate Governance 

Report and the Sustainability Report featured on pages 30 and 23 of 

this Integrated report and recommended them to the Board for 

approval; and

•  As at the date of this report, no complaints have been received 

relating to the accounting practices of the Company or to the content 

or auditing of the Company’s financial statements, or to any related 

matter.

During the year the Audit Committee met three times, which the 

Directors believe is sufficient for the purpose of discharging the 

Committee’s responsibilities. Additional meetings are convened as 

required. Details of Directors’ attendance at the Audit Committee 

meetings held during the year are set out below.

Director

ST Downes** 3(3)

WR Neasham (Financial) – by invitation 3(3)

B Nichles (CEO) – by invitation 3(3)

RB Patmore**> 3(3)

G Pretorius** 3(3)

* Non-Executive ** Independent Non-Executive 
> Lead Independent Director

Conclusion
The Audit Committee has satisfied itself that the Company’s internal 

control environment, disciplines and procedures are adequate to 

comply with the Act, to minimise the financial risks of the Group, and 

to provide adequate information in a timeous manner to enable 

management and the Audit Committee to fulfil their responsibilities.

The Audit Committee is of the opinion that its objectives were met 

during the year under review.

Simon Downes

Audit Committee Chairman
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Remuneration Committee report

I have pleasure in presenting the Remuneration Committee report for 

the year ended 30 June 2014.

Members
The Remuneration Committee comprises the following members:

•  Ralph Patmore (Chairman) – Lead Independent, Non-Executive 

Director

• Alan R Burke – Non-Executive Director and Chairman of the Board

• Simon Downs – Independent, Non-Executive Director

• Gerrit (“Boel”) Pretorius – Independent, Non-Executive Director

In addition to the above members, the Group Chief Executive Officer 

and the Group Financial Director attend Remuneration Committee 

meetings by invitation, but may not participate in any discussions 

regarding their own remuneration.

Role of the Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee operates in terms of a formal charter 

approved by the Board.

The specific responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include:

•  To provide a mandate for the Group’s annual remuneration 

increases;

•  To ensure that the Directors and senior executives are appropriately 

remunerated;

•  Authority for matters relating to employee benefits;

•  Approval of short and long-term employee incentive schemes at 

both executive and divisional level.

ARB Remuneration Policy and Philosophy
The Company’s philosophy is to set appropriate remuneration and 

profit incentive levels, taking into account levels of responsibility, 

market remuneration surveys and the need to attract, motivate and 

retain Directors, executives and individuals of a high calibre. 

The Group’s remuneration policy is endorsed annually, by means of a 

non-binding advisory vote, by shareholders.

Executive Directors’ remuneration
Executive remuneration comprises three components:

•  Guaranteed pay, specifically a monthly basic cash salary including 

employee benefits such as retirement funding and medical aid 

contributions;

•  A cash-based short-term or performance incentive, linked to either 

a predetermined level of profit growth or a minimum required 

return on opening equity which, if achieved, is paid annually after 

finalisation of the Group’s audited results; and

•  A long-term incentive, being the cash-settled share appreciation 

rights plan.

Executive Directors’ guaranteed pay is reviewed annually by the 

Remuneration Committee. Salaries are compared to available industry 

surveys and pay levels of other South African companies to ensure 

sustainable performance and market competitiveness. The individual 

salaries of Directors are reviewed annually in light of their own 

performance, experience, level of responsibility and Group 

performance. Executive Directors do not receive Directors’ fees for 

attending Board and sub-committee meetings.

Executive Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 30 June 2014  

are detailed in note 24 on page 76 of the annual financial statements.

Other matters
The total remuneration for the year of the three highest paid employees 

who are not Directors of the Company is set out below:

Employee 1 2 812 116

Employee 2 2 249 440

Employee 3 2 037 888

TOTAL 14 074 125

Directors’ service contracts
Executive Directors are appointed in terms of written letters of 

appointment which endure indefinitely, are subject to termination on 

either one or two months’ notice and which contain a restraint of trade 

undertaking.

Succession planning
The Remuneration Committee reviews the Group’s succession plan 

and communicates any areas of concern to the Risk Committee.

Non-Executive Directors’ fees
Non-Executive Directors are appointed in terms of written letters of 

appointment. In accordance with the recommendations of King III and 

international best practice, Non-Executive Directors’ fees comprise a 

combination of a fixed annual retainer and meeting attendance fees. 

Non-Executive Directors do not receive short-term incentives nor do 

they participate in any long-term incentive schemes.

The fees paid to Non-Executive Directors for the year ended  

30 June 2014 are detailed in note 24 on pages 76 and 77 of the annual 

financial statements. These fees were approved by the Remuneration 

Committee, the Board of Directors and shareholders at the Company’s 

last Annual General Meeting. At the Annual General Meeting to be 

held on 22 October 2014 shareholders will be asked to pass a special 

resolution to approve the fees of Non-Executive Directors for the year 

ending 30 June 2015 as set out in the accompanying Notice of Annual 

General Meeting.

Meetings of the Remuneration Committee
During the year the Remuneration Committee met three times, which 

the Directors believe is sufficient for the purpose of discharging the 

Committee’s responsibilities. Additional meetings are convened as 
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required. Details of Directors’ attendance at the Remuneration 

Committee meetings held during the year are set out below.

Director

AR Burke* 3(3)

ST Downes** 3(3)

WR Neasham (Financial) – by invitation 3(3)

B Nichles (CEO) – by invitation 3(3)

RB Patmore**> 3(3)

G Pretorius** 2(3)

* Non-Executive ** Independent Non-Executive 
> Lead Independent Director

Ralph Patmore

Remuneration Committee Chairman
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Social and Ethics Committee report

I have pleasure in presenting the Social and Ethics Committee report 

for the year ended 30 June 2014.

Appointment
In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2008, the 

Board established a Social and Ethics sub-committee during the 2012 

fi nancial year.

Members
The Social and Ethics Committee comprises the following members:

•  Gerrit (“Boel”) Pretorius (Chairman) – Independent, Non-Executive 

Director;

• Simon Downes – Independent, Non-Executive Director;

•  Shannon Bester – Financial Director of ARB Electrical Wholesalers; 

and

•  Shanna Hechter – Group Human Resources Manager (resigned 

after year-end). 

In addition to the above members, the Group Financial Director 

attends Social and Ethics Committee meetings by invitation.

Role of the Social and Ethics Committee
The Committee is governed by a formal charter and its primary 

objective is to provide oversight of the impact which the Company’s 

activities have on the environment, consumers, employees, 

communities, stakeholders and all other members of the public by 

recognising that the ultimate objective of managing organisational 

integrity is to build an ethical corporate culture.

The specifi c responsibilities of the Social and Ethics Committee 

include, inter alia:

• To build and sustain an ethical corporate culture in the Group;

• To promote good corporate citizenship;

•  To care for the environment, health and public safety, including the 

impact of the Group’s activities and of its products;

•  To monitor the Group’s labour services and employment services; 

and 

•  To ensure that the Group’s code of conduct and ethics related 

policies are complied with.

Activities and meetings of the Social and Ethics 
Committee
During the year, the Social and Ethics Committee considered or 

reviewed the following aspects;

• Development of a Group intranet;

• The Group’s Health and Safety compliance levels;

•  The various subsidiaries’ B-BBEE scorecards and transformation 

strategies;

• The ARB Electrical bursary scheme;

• The Group’s donations and CSI initiatives;

• ARB Electrical’s learnership programme; and

• The various subsidiaries’ environmental impact.

During the year the Social and Ethics Committee met twice, which the 

Directors believe is suffi cient for the purpose of discharging the 

Committee’s responsibilities. Additional meetings are convened as 

required. Details of members' attendance at the Social and Ethics 

Committee meetings held during the year are set out below.

Member

ST Downes** 2(2)

G Pretorius** 2(2)

SL Bester 1(2)

S Hechter 2(2)

WR Neasham (Financial) – by invitation 2(2)

** Independent Non-Executive

Gerrit (“Boel”) Pretorius

Social and Ethics Committee Chairman
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Independent auditors' report

To the Shareholders of ARB Holdings Limited and its 
subsidiaries
We have audited the consolidated and separate financial statements of 

ARB Holdings Limited set out on pages 51 to 90, which comprise the 

statements of financial position as at 30 June 2014, and the statements 

of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and 

statements of cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes, 

comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other 

explanatory information.

Directors' responsibility for the Consolidated Financial 
Statements
The Company's Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair 

presentation of these consolidated and separate financial statements 

in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and 

the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa, and for such 

internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the 

preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements that 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated and 

separate statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 

accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards 

require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the 

consolidated and separate financial statements are free of material 

misstatement.

An audit involved performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 

about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The 

procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgement, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 

assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the 

entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 

in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 

effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes 

evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 

reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as 

well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated and separate financial statements 

present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated and separate 

financial position of ARB Holdings Limited as at 30 June 2014, and its 

consolidated and separate financial performance and consolidated 

and separate cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 

International Financial Reporting Standards, and the requirements of 

the Companies Act in South Africa.

Other reports required by the Companies Act
As part of our audit of the consolidated and separate financial 

statements for the year ended 30 June 2014, we have read the 

Directors' report, the Audit Committee's report and the statement of 

the Company Secretary for the purpose of identifying whether there 

are material inconsistencies between these reports and the audited 

consolidated and separate financial statements. These reports are the 

responsibility of the respective preparers. Based on reading these 

reports we have not identified material inconsistencies between these 

reports and the audited consolidated and separate financial 

statements. However, we have not audited these reports and, 

accordingly, do not express an opinion on these reports.

PKF Durban

Registered Auditors Chartered Accountants (SA) 

Practice number: 906352E

Partner: TC Marti-Warren RA CA(SA)

Durban

19 August 2014
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Directors' responsibilities and approval

The Directors are required by the Companies Act of South Africa to 

maintain adequate accounting records and are responsible for the 

content and integrity of the annual fi nancial statements and related 

fi nancial information included in this report. It is their responsibility 

to ensure that the consolidated annual fi nancial statements satisfy 

the fi nancial reporting standards as to form and content and present 

fairly the consolidated and separate statement of fi nancial position, 

results of operations and business of the Group, and explain the 

transactions and fi nancial position of the business of the Group at the 

end of the fi nancial year. The consolidated annual fi nancial statements 

are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied 

throughout the Group and supported by reasonable and prudent 

judgements and estimates.

The Directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for 

the system of internal fi nancial control established by the Company 

and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control 

environment. To enable the Directors to meet these responsibilities, 

the Board sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the 

risk of error or loss in a cost effective manner. The standards include 

the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defi ned 

framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate 

segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These 

controls are monitored throughout the Group and all employees are 

required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the 

Group's business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable 

circumstances is above reproach.

The focus of risk management in the Group is on identifying, assessing, 

managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the Group. 

While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the Group endeavours 

to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, 

systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within 

predetermined procedures and constraints.

The Directors are of the opinion, based on the information and 

explanations given by management and the external auditors, that 

the system of internal control provides reasonable assurance that the 

fi nancial records may be relied on for the preparation of the consolidated 

and separate annual fi nancial statements. However, any system of 

internal fi nancial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, 

assurance against material misstatement or loss. The going-concern 

basis has been adopted in preparing the fi nancial statements. Based on 

forecasts and available cash resources the Directors have no reason to 

believe that the Group will not be a going concern in the foreseeable 

future. The consolidated fi nancial statements support the viability of 

the Group.

The fi nancial statements have been audited by the independent 

auditing fi rm, PKF Durban, who have been given unrestricted access 

to all fi nancial records and related data, including minutes of all 

meetings of shareholders, the Board of Directors and committees of 

the Board. The Directors believe that all representations made to the 

independent auditor during the audit were valid and appropriate. 

The external auditors' unqualifi ed audit report is presented on 

page 44.

The consolidated and separate annual fi nancial statements as set out 

on pages 46 to 90 were approved by the Board on 19 August 2014 and 

were signed on their behalf by:

 

AR Burke B Nichles

Non-Executive Chairman Group Chief Executive Offi cer

Statement of the Company Secretary
I certify, to the best of my knowledge and belief, that the requirements as stated in section 88(2) of the Companies Act, 2008 of South Africa, 

have been met and that all returns, as required of a public company in terms of the aforementioned Act, have been submitted to the Companies 

and Intellectual Property Commission and that such returns are true, correct and up to date.

Mario Louw

Company Secretary

19 August 2014
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Directors' report

The Directors present their report for the year ended 30 June 2014.

1.  Nature of business and operations
ARB Holdings Ltd is a holding and investment company which  

owns fixed property and vehicles for letting, as well as investments 

in closely related trading and distribution businesses.

ARB Electrical Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd, a majority owned 

subsidiary (74%), is the Company's largest operating subsidiary. 

It is a black empowered electrical wholesaler operating in 

southern and South Africa offering a wide range of locally 

manufactured and imported products including power and 

instrumentation cabling, overhead line hardware and conductor, 

insulators, transformers and general electrical contracting 

materials. Clients range across large and heavy industry, 

parastatals, major construction groups, mining houses and 

electrical contractors.

ARB IT Solutions (Pty) Ltd, a wholly-owned subsidiary, services 

all the Group's IT requirements and sells computer hardware, 

software support services and an accounting management 

system known as Xact.

ARB Global (Pty) Ltd, a wholly-owned subsidiary, sells a range 

of locally manufactured and imported electrical products 

across South African borders.

Eurolux (Pty) Ltd, a majority owned subsidiary (60%), imports 

and distributes electrical light fittings, lamps and related 

accessories principally in South Africa.

CED-Consolidated Electrical Distributor (Pty) Ltd, a wholly-

owned subsidiary, is the distributor for the CHINT low voltage 

products in the SADC region.

2.  Financial results
The operating results and consolidated statement of financial 

position of the Group are fully set out in the attached financial 

statements and do not, in our opinion, require any further 

comment.

3.  Events after reporting date
The Directors are not aware of any significant events which 

occurred subsequent to year-end and up to the date of this 

report.

4.  Directors' interest in contracts
No material contracts in which Directors have an interest were 

entered into during the year other than the transactions 

detailed in note 27 to the annual financial statements.

5.  Share capital
Authorised share capital:
The authorised share capital amounts to R100 000, being  

1 000 000 000 ordinary shares of 0,01 cents each. There were  

no changes in the authorised share capital during the year 

under review.

Issued share capital:
The issued share capital amounts to R23 500, being 235 000 000 

ordinary shares of 0,01 cents each. There were no changes in 

the issued share capital during the year under review.

6.  Management by third and related parties
Neither the business of the Company nor its subsidiaries, nor 

any part thereof, has been managed by a third person or a 

company in which a Director had an interest during the year 

under review.

7.  Dividends
A final dividend was declared and paid to shareholders during 

the year under review of R61 570 000 (26,20 cents per share) 

[2013: R32 195 000 (13,70 cents per share)].

Subsequent to year-end, the Board declared a final dividend to 

shareholders of 20,1 cents per share. This is in line with the 

Company's dividend policy to distribute up to a maximum of 

forty per cent of net profit after taxation, taking into account 

distributable reserves and cash available for distribution. The 

Board also resolved to declare a special dividend of 10,0 cents 

per share.

8.  Directors
The Directors of the company during the year and to the date of 

this report are as follows:

AR Burke – Non-Executive Chairman

B Nichles – Group Chief Executive Officer

WR Neasham – Group Financial Director

ST Downes – Independent Non-Executive Director

RB Patmore – Lead Independent Non-Executive Director

G Pretorius – Independent Non-Executive Director

JR Modise – Non-Executive Director

9.  Secretary
The Secretary of the Company is M Louw, whose business and 

postal address are the following: 

11 Larch Nook, Zwartkop X4, Centurion, 0046

PO Box 23305, Gezina, 0031
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10. Subsidiaries
% Held Number of shares held

Name and nature of business

Issued 

capital 

(R) 2014 2013 2014 2013

Subsidiaries of ARB Holdings Ltd
ARB Electrical Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd 10 000 74 74 7 400 7 400
(Co. reg. 2004/012797/07)
(Electrical wholesaler)
ARB IT Solutions (Pty) Ltd 100 100 100 100 100
(Co. reg. 2007/017066/07)
(IT service provider)
ARB Global (Pty) Ltd 100 100 100 100 100
(Co. reg. 2008/008202/07)
(Import/export electrical wholesaler)
Eurolux (Pty) Ltd 1 900 60 60 1 140 1 140
(Co. reg. 2000/019019/07)
(Import/export lighting wholesaler)
CED – Consolidated Electrical Distributor (Pty) Ltd 120 100 100 120 120
(Co. reg. 2012/185983/07)
(Import/export electrical wholesaler)
Subsidiaries of ARB Electrical Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd
Industrial Cable Suppliers (Pty) Ltd 184 100 100 184 184
(Co. reg. 2005/040265/07)
(Electrical wholesaler)
Elektro Vroomen (Pty) Ltd 3 000 100 100 2 000 2 000
(Co. reg. 1959/001860/07)
(Electrical wholesaler)
Subsidiaries of Eurolux (Pty) Ltd
Cathay Lighting International (Pty) Ltd 120 100 100 120 120
(Co. reg. 2004/014460/07)
(Import/export lighting wholesaler)
N-Ex Trading (Pty) Ltd 102 100 100 102 102
(Co. reg. 2005/028424/07)
(Electronic equipment trader)
Njabulo Cables (Pty) Ltd 120 100 100 120 120
(Co. reg. 2007/020504/07)
(Import/export electrical wholesaler)

2014 2013

The Company's share of the aggregate profits after tax from subsidiaries 97 434 053 73 136 640

All subsidiaries are incorporated in the Republic of South Africa.
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11. Auditors
PKF Durban, Chartered Accountants (SA), Registered Auditors, 

will continue in office as auditors of the Company in accordance 

with section 90(1) of the Companies Act, 2008 of South Africa, 

subject to shareholder approval at the upcoming Annual  

General Meeting.

12.  Directors’ shareholding in the issued share capital 
of the Company

Number of shares held

Percentage 
heldDirector

Direct
 beneficially

Indirect
 beneficially

2014
Alan R Burke* 
(Chairman) 18 523 077 100 519 313 50.7
Byron Nichles (CEO) – 2 550 000 1.1
Simon Downes *> – 600 000 0.3
William Neasham 
(Group Financial 
Director) 4 861 539 75 000 2.1
Clinton Cockerell ** 11 753 846 24 000 5.0
Jason Burke ** 65 200 – 0.0
Derrick Muller *** 2 170 000 – 0.9
Blayne Burke** 65 200 – 0.0
Shannon Bester** 10 000 – 0.0

2013
Alan R Burke* 
(Chairman) 18 523 077 100 519 313 50.7
Byron Nichles (CEO) – 2 550 000 1.1
Simon Downes *> – 479 669 0.2
William Neasham 
(Group Financial 
Director) 4 861 539 75 000 2.1
Craig Robertson 
(resigned 1 July 2012) 12 439 719 244 008 5.4
Clinton Cockerell ** 12 153 846 24 000 5.2
Jason Burke ** 62 700 – 0.0
Derrick Muller *** 2 170 000 – 0.9
Blayne Burke** 62 700 – 0.0
Shannon Bester** 10 000 – 0.0

* Non-Executive  > Independent
** Director of subsidiary, ARB Electrical Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd
*** Director of subsidiary, ARB IT Solutions (Pty) Ltd

No shares were traded by any Director from 30 June 2014 until 

the date of this report, except for Clinton Cockerell who disposed 

of 4 500 shares on 26 June 2014 which was effected in the share 

register after 30 June 2014.

13. Borrowings
On behalf of the Group, the Directors have established credit 

facilities with various financial institutions for use by the Company 

and its subsidiary companies. The Directors did not exceed any 

authorised levels of borrowings during the year under review.

14. Settlement of share options
During the year, the Directors approved the settlement of the 

remaining share options by offering the participants to participate 

in the Share Appreciation Rights Scheme or a cash settlement. 

The cash settlement of R792 000 as a result of this has been 

charged to profit and loss during the year.

15. Special resolutions
The following special resolutions were passed by the Company 

during the year under review:

Special resolution 1: General authority to repurchase 
Company shares
RESOLVED THAT the Directors of the Company be and are hereby 

authorised, by way of a general authority, to repurchase on behalf 

of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries, ordinary shares 

issued by the Company, in accordance with the Companies Act, 

and in particular, subject to section 48(8)(b) thereof, the Company's 

Memorandum of Incorporation, as amended or substituted, and 

the Listings Requirements of the JSE, and provided that:

•  any such acquisition of ordinary shares shall be effected 

through the order book operated by the JSE trading system 

and done without any prior understanding or arrangement 

between the Company and the counter-party;

•  this general authority shall only be valid until the Company's 

next Annual General Meeting, provided that it shall not extend 

beyond 15 months from the date of the passing of this special 

resolution;

•  an announcement setting out such details as may be required 

in terms of the Listings Requirements of the JSE will be 

published on SENS once the Company or any of its subsidiaries 

has acquired ordinary shares constituting, on a cumulative 

basis, 3% of the initial number of ordinary shares in issue as at 

the time the general authority was granted and for each 3% in 

aggregate of the initial number of shares acquired thereafter;

•  in terms of the general authority, the acquisition of ordinary 

shares in any one financial year may not exceed, in aggregate, 

20% of the Company's issued share capital of that class, at the 

time the approval is granted, and the acquisition of shares by a 

subsidiary of the Company, in any one financial year, may not 

exceed, in aggregate, 10% of the number of issued shares of 

the Company of that class;

•  in determining the price at which the Company's ordinary 

shares are acquired by the Company and/or any of its 

subsidiaries in terms of this general authority, the maximum 
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premium at which such ordinary shares may be acquired will 

be 10% of the weighted average market price at which such 

ordinary shares are traded on the JSE, as determined over the 

five business days immediately preceding the date of the 

acquisition of such ordinary shares by the Company and/or any 

of its subsidiaries;

•  a resolution shall be passed by the Board of Directors that it 

has authorised the repurchase, that the Company and its 

subsidiaries have passed the solvency and liquidity tests as 

required by section 46 of the Companies Act and that, since the 

test was performed, there have been no material changes to 

the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries;

•  the Company will only appoint one agent to effect any 

repurchase(s) on its behalf; and

•  the Company and/or its subsidiaries will not acquire the 

Company's shares during a prohibited period as defined in 

paragraph 3.67 of the Listings Requirements of the JSE unless 

they have in place a repurchase programme where the dates 

and quantities of securities to be traded during the relevant 

period are fixed (not subject to any variation) and full details of 

the programme have been disclosed in an announcement on 

SENS prior to the commencement of the prohibited period.

Special resolution 2: Non-Executive Directors' 
remuneration for the year ending 30 June 2014
RESOLVED THAT the remuneration of Non-Executive Directors, 

in the form of fees for their services as Directors, for the year 

ending 30 June 2014 as set out below, be and is hereby approved 

as contemplated in section 66(9) of the Companies Act:

Chairman of the Board

•  Retainer of R220 000 per annum

•  R25 000 per Board meeting chaired

•  R10 000 per sub-committee meeting attended

Lead Independent Director

•  Retainer of R158 000 per annum

•  R10 000 per Board or sub-committee meeting attended

Non-Executive Director

•  Retainer of R138 000 per annum

•  R10 000 per Board or sub-committee meeting attended

Sub-committee Chairman

•  R15 000 per sub-committee meeting chaired

Special resolution 3: Financial assistance for 
subscription of securities
RESOLVED THAT the Company be and is hereby authorised, in 

terms of a general authority contemplated in section 44(3)(a)(ii) 

of the Companies Act for a period of two years from the date of 

this resolution, to provide direct or indirect financial assistance 

by way of a loan, guarantee, the provision of security or otherwise 

as defined in section 44 of the Companies Act to any person for 

the purpose of, or in connection with, the subscription of any 

option, or any securities, issued or to be issued by the Company 

or a related or inter-related company, or the purchase of any 

securities of the Company or a related or inter-related company, 

subject to the Board of Directors of the Company being satisfied 

that:

(i)  pursuant to section 44(3)(b)(i) of the Companies Act, 

immediately after providing such financial assistance, the 

Company would satisfy the solvency and liquidity test (as 

contemplated in section 4(1) of the Companies Act);

(ii)  pursuant to section 44(3)(b)(ii) of the Companies Act, the 

terms under which such financial assistance is proposed to be 

given are fair and reasonable to the Company; and

(iii)  any conditions or restrictions with respect to the granting of 

such financial assistance set out in the Company’s 

Memorandum of Incorporation and/or the Listings 

Requirements of the JSE have been complied with.

Special resolution 4: Financial assistance to 
Directors, prescribed officers, Group incentive 
scheme participants and related or inter-related 
companies and corporations
RESOLVED THAT the Company be and is hereby authorised, in 

terms of a general authority contemplated in section 45(3)(a)(ii) 

of the Companies Act for a period of two years from the date of 

this resolution, to provide direct or indirect financial assistance 

as defined in section 45(1) of the Companies Act to the following 

categories of persons:

(i)  a Director or prescribed officer of the Company or of a 

related or inter-related company;

(ii)  a related or inter-related company or corporation;

(iii)  a member of a related or inter-related company or 

corporation;

(iv)  a beneficiary participating in any Group incentive scheme; 

and/or

(v)  a person related to any person contemplated in (i) to (iv) 

above, subject to the Board of Directors of the Company 

being satisfied that:

(a)  pursuant to section 45(3)(b)(i) of the Companies Act, 

immediately after providing such financial assistance, 

the Company would satisfy the solvency and liquidity test 

(as contemplated in section 4(1) of the Companies Act);

(b)  pursuant to section 45(3)(b)(ii) of the Companies Act, the 

terms under which such financial assistance is proposed 

to be given are fair and reasonable to the Company; and
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(c)  any conditions or restrictions with respect to the granting 

of such financial assistance set out in the Company's 

Memorandum of Incorporation and/or the Listings 

Requirements of the JSE have been complied with.

The following special resolutions were passed by the Company's 

subsidiaries during the year under review:

• ARB Electrical Wholesalers (Pty) Limited:

–  General authority to provide direct or indirect financial 

assistance

• Eurolux (Pty) Limited:

–  General authority to provide direct or indirect financial 

assistance

• CED-Consolidated Electrical Distributor (Pty) Limited:

–  General authority to provide direct or indirect financial 

assistance

• ARB IT Solutions (Pty) Limited:

–  General authority to provide direct or indirect financial 

assistance

• ARB Global (Pty) Limited:

–  General authority to provide direct or indirect financial 

assistance
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Group Company

Figures in R Note(s) 2014 2013 2014 2013

Assets
Investment property 3 – – 163 230 732 145 162 955
Property, plant and equipment 4 205 525 741 193 621 122 7 697 782 11 844 464
Intangible assets 5 83 971 012 84 411 012 – –
Investment in subsidiaries 6 – – 78 007 720 78 007 720
Deferred taxation 15 13 188 062 11 859 022 – –

302 684 815 289 891 156 248 936 234 235 015 139

Current assets
Inventory 7 391 348 367 341 664 080 – –
Taxation overpaid 122 403 371 335 – –
Deferred lease income 8 – – – 3 193 226
Loans receivable 17 – – 72 702 134 46 703 474
Trade and other receivables 9 341 923 670 311 679 041 10 515 342 883
Cash and cash equivalents 10 197 583 559 202 790 340 546 518 60 849 521

930 977 999 856 504 796 73 259 167 111 089 104

Total assets 1 233 662 814 1 146 395 952 322 195 401 346 104 243

Equity and liabilities
Equity and reserves
Share capital 11 23 500 23 500 23 500 23 500
Share premium 116 149 999 116 149 999 116 149 999 116 149 999
Revaluation reserve 60 100 099 60 557 266 62 061 693 60 560 672
Capital reserve 12 – – 26 234 082 26 234 082
Accumulated profits 536 121 874 479 500 982 94 072 870 103 686 031

Attributable to ARB ordinary shareholders 712 395 472 656 231 747 298 542 144 306 654 284
Non-controlling interests 199 838 706 172 855 383 – –

912 234 178 829 087 130 298 542 144 306 654 284

Non-current liabilities
Deferred taxation 15 34 127 052 37 893 015 15 558 818 17 268 807

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 16 284 117 924 275 045 109 7 007 821 2 996 388
Vendor – loan account 13 18 466 2 259 274 – –
Taxation payable 2 724 914 1 237 435 886 590 14 737
Loans payable 17 – – 200 028 19 170 027
Deferred lease payments 18 440 201 836 541 – –
Bank overdraft 10 79 37 448 – –

287 301 584 279 415 807 8 094 439 22 181 152

Total equity and liabilities 1 233 662 814 1 146 395 952 322 195 401 346 104 243

Statements of financial position
at 30 June 2014
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Group Company

Figures in R Note(s) 2014 2013 2014 2013

Revenue 2 216 658 993 1 944 540 972 27 986 940 28 853 444
Cost of sales (1 689 708 863) (1 519 421 012) – –

Gross profit 526 950 130 425 119 960 27 986 940 28 853 444
Other income 4 878 033 5 807 081 15 079 823 18 558 255
Overheads (328 798 592) (270 451 546) (17 128 579) (11 680 186)

Profit before interest and taxation 19 203 029 571 160 475 495 25 938 184 35 731 513
Dividend received – subsidiary – – 31 200 000 18 500 000
Interest received 21 11 442 210 10 418 170 6 701 478 5 656 599
Interest paid 22 (189 316) (971 079) (1 965 201) (785 777)

Profit before taxation 214 282 465 169 922 586 61 874 461 59 102 335
Taxation 23 (59 708 250) (46 242 292) (8 416 601) (10 448 709)

Profit for the year 154 574 215 123 680 294 53 457 860 48 653 626

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified into profit or loss
Revaluation of property (1 347 708) 8 657 662 – –
Taxation 890 541 2 270 360 – –

Total other comprehensive income (457 167) 10 928 022 – –

Total comprehensive income 154 117 048 134 608 316 53 457 860 48 653 626

Profit for the year attributable to:
Non-controlling interests 36 383 323 28 550 671
ARB ordinary shareholders 118 190 892 95 129 623

154 574 215 123 680 294

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Non-controlling interests 36 383 323 28 550 671
ARB ordinary shareholders 117 733 725 106 057 645

154 117 048 134 608 316

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share (cents) 25.1 50,29 40,48
Diluted earnings per share (cents) 25.1 50,29 40,42
Headline earning per share (cents 25.2 50,28 39,55
Diluted headline earnings per share (cents) 25.2 50,28 39,49
Dividends per share (cents) 25.4 26,20 13,70
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Figures in Rand

Share 

capital

Share 

premium

Revaluation 

reserve

Accumulated 

profits

Equity 

attributable

to ARB

 ordinary 

shareholders

Non-

controlling 

interests Total

Group
Balance at 1 July 2012 23 500 116 149 999 49 629 244 416 566 359 582 369 102 150 804 712 733 173 814
Total comprehensive  
income for the year – – 10 928 022 95 129 623 106 057 645 28 550 671 134 608 316

Profit for the year – – – 95 129 623 95 129 623 28 550 671 123 680 294
Other comprehensive  
income – – 10 928 022 – 10 928 022 – 10 928 022

Dividends – – – (32 195 000) (32 195 000) (6 500 000) (38 695 000)

Balance at 30 June 2013 23 500 116 149 999 60 557 266 479 500 982 656 231 747 172 855 383 829 087 130

Balance at 1 July 2013 23 500 116 149 999 60 557 266 479 500 982 656 231 747 172 855 383 829 087 130

Total comprehensive  
income for the year – – (457 167) 118 190 892 117 733 725 36 383 323 154 117 048

Profit for the year – – – 118 190 892 118 190 892 36 383 323 154 574 215
Other comprehensive  
income – – (457 167) – (457 167) – (457 167)

Dividends – – – (61 570 000) (61 570 000) (9 400 000) (70 970 000)

Balance at 30 June 2014 23 500 116 149 999 60 100 099 536 121 874 712 395 472 199 838 706 912 234 178

Figures in Rand

Share

capital

Share 

premium

Revaluation 

reserve

Capital 

reserve

Accumulated 

profits Total

Company
Balance at 1 July 2012 23 500 116 149 999 46 339 620 26 234 082 101 448 457 290 195 658
Total comprehensive income for the year – – – – 48 653 626 48 653 626
Dividends – – – – (32 195 000) (32 195 000)
Revaluation of investment properties – – 14 221 052 – (14 221 052) –

Balance at 30 June 2013 23 500 116 149 999 60 560 672 26 234 082 103 686 031 306 654 284

Balance at 1 July 2013 23 500 116 149 999 60 560 672 26 234 082 103 686 031 306 654 284

Total comprehensive income for the year – – – – 53 457 860 53 457 860
Dividends – – – – (61 570 000) (61 570 000)
Revaluation of investment properties – – 1 501 021 – (1 501 021) –

Balance at 30 June 2014 23 500 116 149 999 62 061 693 26 234 082 94 072 870 298 542 144
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Group Company

Figures in R Note(s) 2014 2013 2014 2013

Profit for the year 154 574 215 123 680 294 53 457 860 48 653 626
Adjustments for: 
Interest paid 189 316 971 079 1 965 201 785 777
Income tax 59 708 250 46 242 292 8 416 601 10 448 709
Amortisation of intangible assets 440 000 – – –
Depreciation 11 495 977 7 989 590 1 512 776 2 171 699
Interest received (11 442 210) (10 418 170) (6 701 478) (5 656 599)
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (57 874) (32 296) – (48 358)
Change in fair value of property – – (1 845 518) (10 033 358)
Dividends received – – (31 200 000) (18 500 000)
Operating lease smoothing (396 340) 332 810 3 193 226 1 375 696
Bargain purchase price  – (2 928 092) – – 

Operating cash flow before working capital changes 214 511 334 165 837 507 28 798 668 29 197 192
Working capital changes
Increase in inventories (49 684 287) (19 079 000) – –
Increase in trade and other receivables (30 244 629) 35 746 248 332 368 (284 796)
Increase in trade and other payables 9 072 815 14 651 164 4 011 433 1 096 971 

Cash generated by operating activities 143 655 233 197 155 919 33 142 469 30 009 367
Interest received 11 442 210 10 418 170 6 701 478 5 656 599
Interest paid (189 316) (971 079) (1 965 201) (785 777)
Dividends received – – 31 200 000 18 500 000
Dividends paid (70 970 000) (38 695 000) (61 570 000) (32 195 000)
Income tax paid (62 176 300) (49 328 336) (9 254 737) (9 839 839)

Net cash from operating activities 21 761 827 118 579 674 (1 745 991) 11 345 350 

Cash flows from investing activities
Investment property acquired 3 – – (16 222 259) (3 700 599)
Property, plant and equipment acquired 4 (28 767 527) (23 600 024) (41 963) (260 294)
Intangible assets acquired 5 – (440 000) – –
Investment properties improved – – – (1 392 337)
Proceeds on disposals of property, plant and equipment 4 077 096 4 338 063 2 675 869 1 981 420
Proceeds on disposal of investment properties – – – 2 060 000
Subscription for subsidiary share capital – – – (120)
Significant business combinations effected – (59 641 825) – –

Net cash utilised in investing activities (24 690 431) (79 343 786) (13 588 353) (1 311 930)

Cash flows from financing activities
Loans (repaid)/raised (2 240 808) (370 812) (18 969 999) (84 922 785)
Repayment of interest-bearing loan – (15 481 702) – –
Loans receivable advances – – (25 998 660) (6 164 768) 

Net cash utilised in financing activities (2 240 808) (15 852 514) (44 968 659) (91 087 553)

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (5 169 412) 23 383 374 (60 303 003) (81 054 133)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 202 752 892 179 369 518 60 849 521 141 903 654 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 10 197 583 480 202 752 892 546 518 60 849 521



// 55 ARB Integrated report 2014

Accounting policies
 for the year ended 30 June 2014

1.  General information
The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), the SAICA Financial 

Reporting Guides as issued by the Accounting Practices Committee, the Financial Reporting Pronouncements as issued by the Financial 

Reporting Standards Council and the Companies Act, 71 of 2008 of South Africa. These policies have been applied consistently to all years 

presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.  Basis of preparation
The annual financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis and incorporate the principal accounting policies listed below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions 

that may affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated 

assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the 

results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from 

other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 

recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision only affects that period, or in the period of the revision and future 

periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas 

where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in note 2.1.

Adoption of new and revised pronouncements
In the current year, the Group has adopted all new and revised IFRSs as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and 

the IFRS Interpretations Committee that are relevant to its operations and effective for annual reporting periods beginning on 1 July 2013. 

The adoption of these new and revised IFRSs has not resulted in any significant changes to the Group's accounting policies, except for 

additional disclosures.

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2014, the following IFRSs were adopted:

IFRS/IFRIC Title and details Effective

IAS 1 (Amendment) Presentation of Financial Statements (Annual 
Improvements to IFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle)

Annual periods commencing on or  
after 1 January 2013

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements Annual periods commencing on or  
after 1 January 2013

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities Annual periods commencing on or  
after 1 January 2013

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement Annual periods commencing on or  
after 1 January 2013

IFRS 7 (Amendment) Disclosures – Offsetting Financial Assets  
and Financial Liabilities

Annual periods commencing on or  
after 1 January 2013

IFRS 10, IFRS 11, IFRS 12  
(Amendments)

Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint 
Arrangements and Disclosure of Interests  
in Other Entities: Transition Guidance

Annual periods commencing on or  
after 1 January 2013

IAS 19 (as revised in 2011) Employee Benefits Annual periods commencing on or  
after 1 January 2013

IAS 27 (as revised in 2011) Amendment from Issue of IFRSs 10, 11 and 12 Annual periods commencing on or  
after 1 January 2013

IAS 32 (Amendment) Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial 
Liabilities

Annual periods commencing on or  
after 1 January 2013

IAS 32 (Amendment) Financial instruments: Presentation (Annual 
Improvements to IFRSs 2009–2011 Cycle)

Annual periods commencing on or  
after 1 January 2013

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
The Group has not applied the following new, revised or amended pronouncements that have been issued by the IASB as they are not yet 

effective for the financial year beginning 1 July 2013 (the list does not include information about first-time adopters of IFRS since they are 
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not relevant to the Group). The Board anticipates that the new standards, amendments and interpretations will be adopted in the Group's 

consolidated financial statements when they become effective. The Group has assessed, where practicable, the potential impact of all these 

new standards, amendments and interpretations that will be effective in future periods.

IFRS/IFRIC Title and details Effective

IFRS 2 Share-based payments (Annual  
Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle)

Annual periods commencing on or  
after 1 July 2014

IFRS 3 Business Combinations (Annual  
Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle)

Annual periods commencing on or  
after 1 July 2014

IFRS 8 Operating Segments (Annual Improvements  
to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle)

Annual periods commencing on or  
after 1 July 2014

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Annual  
Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle)

Annual periods commencing on or  
after 1 July 2014

IFRS 13 Fair value Measurement (Annual 
Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle)

Annual periods commencing on or  
after 1 July 2014

IFRS 15 Revenue Annual periods commencing on or  
after 1 January 2017

IFRS 9, IFRS 7 (Amendments) Mandatory Effective Date of IFRS 9  
and Transition Disclosures

Annual periods commencing on or  
after 1 January 2018

IAS 16 Property, plant and equipment (Annual 
Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle)

Annual periods commencing on or  
after 1 July 2014

IAS 24 Related party disclosures (Annual 
Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle)

Annual periods commencing on or  
after 1 July 2014

IAS 38 Intangible Assets (Annual Improvements to 
IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle)

Annual periods commencing on or  
after 1 July 2014

IAS 40 Investment Property (Annual Improvements  
to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle)

Annual periods commencing on or  
after 1 July 2014

IAS 27 Separate Financial statements Annual periods commencing on or 
after 1 January 2014

IAS 36 (Amendment) Recoverable amount, Disclosures of  
non-financial assets

Annual periods commencing on or  
after 1 January 2014

All applicable standards will be complied with in the financial statements of the period ending 30 June 2015. Compliance with these 

amendments, revisions and improvements require additional disclosure compared to that required in terms of existing IFRS. Management 

will perform an assessment of the impact of all applicable standards that will apply for the period ending 30 June 2015.

2.1   Accounting estimates and judgements

The estimates and judgements that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and 

liabilities within the next financial year are as follows:

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Impairment of inventory

The inventory obsolescence provision is management's estimate, based on historic sales trends and its assessment of quality and 

volume, and the extent to which the merchandise for resale on hand at reporting date will not be sold or will be sold below cost.

Impairment of trade receivables

Provision is made for doubtful debts based on management's estimate of the prospect of recovering the debt. Where management 

has determined that the recovery of the debt is doubtful, the amount is provided for immediately.
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Residual values and useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is depreciated over its useful life taking into account residual values where appropriate. Assessments 

of useful lives and residual values are performed annually after considering factors such as relevant market information, the condition 

of the asset and management's consideration. In assessing the residual values, the Group considers the remaining life of the assets, 

their projected disposal value and future market conditions.

• Motor vehicles

The Group has a policy of utilising all motor vehicles for a period of five years. It is estimated that motor vehicles have a residual 

value approximating 20% – 60%, depending on their age, of their initial purchase price based on historical sales trends.

• Delivery vehicles

The Group has a policy of utilising all delivery vehicles for a period of four years. It is estimated that delivery vehicles have a residual 

value approximating 20% – 30% of their initial purchase price based on historical sales trends.

• Plant and equipment

Due to the specialised nature of the Group's plant and equipment, the residual values of these assets have been estimated to be nil. 

The Group estimates that the useful life of these assets, being the period of time for which the assets can be utilised, without 

significant modifications, replacements or improvements, is five to 15 years based on the current levels of use and repairs and 

maintenance costs incurred.

Impairment of intangible assets and goodwill
The Group tests for impairment at each reporting date or more frequently if there are indicators that the intangible assets and 

goodwill may be impaired.

• Software development costs

The Group has classified the development costs of its ERP software package as an intangible asset, which it has determined as 

having a useful life of 10 years.

• Goodwill

The recoverable amount of a cash generating unit is determined based on value-in-use calculations. For this calculation, the 

discounted cash flow method is used, taking into account financial forecasts approved by management over a five-year period. Key 

assumptions applied in value-in-use of the cash generating unit's revenue, gross profit and cost forecasts are based on 

management's views and estimates. These cash flows are then discounted and compared to the current carrying value and, if 

lower, the assets are impaired to the present value of the cash flows. A discount rate of 20% has been used, taking into account the 

level of risk associated with the cash generating unit.

• Trademarks – Eurolux Brand

The recoverable amount of the intangible asset is determined using the relief from royalties methodology. Key assumptions applied 

when using this method is the historical growth rate of revenue. The average growth rates used are 10% for the five-year period  

and then 4% beyond the five-year forecast period. The discount rate of 20% has been used, based on the cost of equity to Eurolux 

(Pty) Ltd. The trademark is considered to have an indefinite useful life as it already has been in existence for over 20 years and it is  

self-evident that a trademark can endure for many decades.

• Trademarks – Horizon Brand

The recoverable amount of the intangible asset was determined based on cost as the asset was acquired in June 2013.  

The trademark has been amortised in full during the year.

Revaluation of land and buildings and investment properties
The Group values the land and buildings and investment properties with reference to current market conditions, recent sales 

transactions of similar geographical locations and the present value of future rental income.

Fair value measurement and valuation process
The measurement of non-financial assets at fair value takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits 

by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and 

best use.
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The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure 

fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value 

hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

• Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

•  Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly 

observable

• Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers 

have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the 

fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining the fair value of various assets and liabilities are disclosed 

in notes 3, 4 and 28.

Critical judgements in applying the company's accounting policies
Operating lease commitments

The Company has entered into leases over properties, motor vehicles and equipment. As management has determined that the 

Company has not obtained substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the properties, motor vehicles and equipment, the 

leases have been classified as operating leases and accounted for accordingly.

Contingent liabilities

Management applies its judgement to advice it receives from its attorneys, advocates and other advisors in assessing if an obligation 

is probable, more likely than not, or remote. This judgement application is used to determine if the obligation is recognised as a 

liability in the form of a provision or disclosed as a contingent liability.

Control over subsidiaries

An assessment of control was performed by the Group based on whether the Group has the practical ability to direct the relevant 

activities unilaterally. In making the judgement, the relative size and dispersion of other vote holders, potential voting rights held by 

them or others, rights from other contractual arrangements were considered. After the assessment, the Group concluded that they 

had a dominant voting interest to direct the relevant activities of the subsidiaries and it would take a number of vote holders to outvote 

the Group, therefore the Group has control over the subsidiaries.

2.2  Basis of consolidation
These financial statements are the consolidated financial statements of ARB Holdings Ltd and entities controlled by it and its 

subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the investor has power over the investee, is exposed or has rights to variable returns from its 

involvement with the investee and has the ability to use its power to affect its returns. If facts and circumstances indicate that there 

are changes to one or more of the elements of control, the investor shall reassess whether it controls the investee.

An investor can have power over an investee even if it holds less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee. All facts and 

circumstances are considered in assessing whether or not voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, for example, 

through:

• contractual arrangements with other vote holders;

•  rights from other contractual arrangements that indicate that the Company has the current ability to direct the relevant activities 

of the investee;

• the size of the Company's holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of other vote holders; or

• potential voting rights held by the Company that are substantive.

Investment in subsidiaries
Consolidation of a subsidiary begins from the date the investor gains control of an investee and ceases when the investor loses 

control of an investee.

The purchase or acquisition method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of  

the acquisition is measured as the fair value of assets transferred, equity instruments issues and liabilities incurred at the date 

of exchange.

Accounting policies (continued)
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Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains and losses on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position separately from the equity 

attributable to equity owners of the parent company. Non-controlling shareholders' interest may initially be measured either at fair 

value or at the non-controlling shareholders' interests proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree's identifiable net assets. 

The choice of measurement basis is made on each acquisition individually. Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-

controlling interests is the amount of those interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling interests' share of subsequent 

changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed to non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling 

interests having a deficit balance.

When the Group ceases to have control of a subsidiary, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value at the date 

when control is lost with the adjustment being recognised in profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal of the controlling 

interest. All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the 

Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary.

Business combinations
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration for acquisition is measured at the fair 

values of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Company in order to obtain control of the 

acquiree (at the date of exchange). Costs incurred in connection with the acquisition are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. 

Where a business combination is achieved in stages, previously held interests in the acquiree are remeasured to fair value at the 

acquisition date (date the Group obtains control) and the resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. Adjustments are made 

to fair values to bring the accounting policies of acquired businesses into alignment with those of the Group. The costs of integrating 

and reorganising acquired businesses are charged to the post acquisition profit or loss.

If the initial accounting is incomplete at the reporting date, provisional amounts are recorded. These amounts are subsequently 

adjusted during the measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities are recognised when new information about its existence 

is obtained during this period.

Goodwill
Goodwill on acquisitions comprises the excess of the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred, the fair value of any 

previously held interests and the recognised value of the non-controlling interest in the acquiree over the net of the acquisition date 

amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually. Gains and losses on 

the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

2.3  Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment, except for land and buildings, is stated at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated 

impairment losses. Depreciation is computed by allocating the depreciable amount of an asset on a systematic basis over its useful 

life and is applied separately to each identifiable component. Residual values and useful lives are assessed at the end of every 

financial year and the year's depreciation determined.

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment are reviewed annually for an indication whether or not the relevant asset is 

impaired. If any such indication exists and where the carrying amount exceeds the estimated recoverable amount, the assets or cash-

generating units are written down to their recoverable amounts. Impairment losses and reversals are recognised directly in the 

statement of comprehensive income under the line item "other expenses" unless such reversals relate to previously recognised 

revaluation reserves in equity.

Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes are stated in the 

statement of financial position at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation and less any subsequent 

accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amounts do not differ 

materially from those that would be determined using fair values at the reporting date.

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of such land and buildings is credited in equity to the properties' revaluation reserve 

except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss in which case the 

increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged. A decrease in the carrying amount arising on 
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the revaluation of such land and buildings is charged to profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the 

properties' revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that asset.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over their useful lives as follows:
Plant and equipment 5 to 15 years
Office furniture and fittings 6 years
Office equipment 5 to 6 years
Computer equipment 3 years
Leasehold improvements over the term of the lease
Buildings 50 years
Vehicles 4 to 5 years

Land is not depreciated.

Where the estimated residual value of an asset is above its carrying value, no depreciation is raised.

2.4  Intangible assets
An intangible asset is recognised when:

• it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the entity; and

• the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. 

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit to 

the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows. Amortisation is not provided for these intangible assets. For 

all other intangible assets, amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over their useful life.

The carrying value of intangible assets is reviewed for impairment annually or more frequently if there are indicators that the 

intangible assets may be impaired.

2.5  Impairment
The carrying amounts of the assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. 

If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the recoverable amount is estimated as the 

higher of the net selling price and value in use.

In assessing value in use, the expected future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that 

reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the asset. An impairment loss is recognised 

whenever the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount. Impairment losses and reversals of impairment losses are separately 

disclosed in the statement of comprehensive income, above the profit before tax subtotal.

For an asset that does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is 

determined for the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount 

of the cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate used to determine the recoverable 

amount, however not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation) had no 

impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

2.6  Investment property
Investment property in the Company, which is property held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, is measured initially at 

cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is measured at fair value. Gains or losses 

arising from changes in fair value of investment property are included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

2.7  Leased assets
Leases of assets under which all the risks and benefits of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are classified as operating 

leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor by way of 

penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in which termination takes place.

Accounting policies (continued)
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Assets held for operating leases are depreciated over their estimated useful lives. Income is recognised on a straight-line basis over 

the lease term unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which benefits are diminished.

2.8  Inventory
Inventory consists of power and instrumentation cable, overhead line conductor and equipment, general electrical contracting 

materials and lamps and light fittings purchased for resale and is valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost is determined 

using the weighted average cost basis. Adequate provision is made for obsolete, redundant and slow moving inventory.

2.9  Financial instruments
The Group classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a financial liability or 

an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement. Financial instruments are recognised when 

the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or 

issue of the financial instrument, except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, which are initially measured at fair 

value, excluding transaction costs which are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred 

and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss include financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon 

initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the 

purpose of selling or repurchasing in the short term. Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss comprise derivative 

financial instruments, namely interest rate swaps and forward exchange contracts. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets 

at fair value through profit and loss are stated at fair value. Movements in fair values are recognised in profit and loss, unless they 

relate to derivatives designated and effective as hedging instruments, in which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss 

depends on the nature of the hedging relationship. The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments in fair value 

hedges of recognised assets and liabilities and firm commitments, and in cash flow hedges of highly probable forecast transactions 

and foreign currency risks relating to firm commitments.

Fluctuations in the fair value of forward exchange contracts used to hedge currency risk of future cash flows, and their fair value of 

foreign currency monetary items on the statement of financial position, are recognised directly in other expenses or other income. 

This policy has been adopted as the relationship between the forward exchange contracts and the item being hedged does not meet 

certain conditions in order to qualify as a hedging relationship.

Trade receivables
Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 

effective interest rate method, less provision for impairment. Trade receivables are reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated 

irrecoverable amounts. Interest on overdue trade receivables is recognised as it accrues.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash equivalents comprise short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which 

are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. An investment with a maturity of three months or less is normally classified 

as being short-term. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities.

Trade payables
Trade payables are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest  

rate method.

Bank overdrafts and interest-bearing borrowings
Bank overdrafts and interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred and 

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate method is a method of 

calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest 

rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability.
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Impairment of financial assets
All financial assets measured at amortised cost are assessed for indicators of impairment at each reporting date.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statements of financial position when there is a legally 

enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle 

the liability simultaneously.

2.10 Employee benefits 
Share-based payments 
Equity settled:
Options are measured at fair value at grant date using the Black Scholes Pricing Market Model. The fair value is expensed on a 

straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on an estimate of the number of options that will eventually vest.

Equity settled share based payments are not adjusted for subsequent changes in the fair value of the instruments granted but  

rather the number of equity instruments that are granted is adjusted based on the fulfilment of the attached non-market related 

vesting conditions.

Cash settled:
Share-linked instruments have been granted to certain employees in the Company. The fair value of the amount payable to the 

employee is recognised as an expense with a corresponding increase in liabilities. The fair value is initially measured at grant date 

and expensed over the period during which the employees are required to provide services in order to become unconditionally entitled 

to payment.

The fair value of the instruments granted is measured using the Black Scholes Pricing Market Model, taking into account the terms 

and conditions upon which the instruments are granted. The liability is remeasured at each reporting date and at settlement date. 

Any changes in the fair value of the liability are recognised as employees' remuneration in profit or loss.

Short-term employee benefits
The cost of all short-term benefits is recognised during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

The provisions for employee entitlements to wages, salaries and annual leave represent the amount which the Company has a 

present obligation to pay as a result of employees' services provided to the reporting date. The provisions have been calculated at 

undiscounted amounts based on current wage and salary rates.

Retirement benefits
The Company and its subsidiaries contribute to defined contribution funds. Contributions to defined contribution funds are charged 

against income as incurred.

2.11 Taxation
Current tax
The charge for current tax is based on the results for the year adjusted for items which are tax exempt or are not tax deductible. Tax 

is calculated using rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided on the comprehensive basis computed as the difference between the tax base and carrying amounts of 

assets and liabilities. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised 

for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the 

deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The Group does not recognise deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax assets on temporary differences associated with investments in 

subsidiaries where the parent is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is not considered 

probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future. It is the Group's policy to reinvest undistributed profits 

arising in Group companies.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or 

the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

2.12 Revenue
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied:

• the Company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

•  the Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective 

control over the goods sold;

• the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

• it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company; and

• the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents the amounts receivable for goods 

and services provided in the normal course of business, net of trade discounts and volume rebates, and value added tax.

Interest is recognised, in profit or loss, using the effective interest rate method.

Dividends are recognised, in profit or loss, when the Company's right to receive payment has been established.

2.13 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, for which it is 

probable that an outflow of economic benefits will occur, and when a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

Where the effect of discounting is material, provisions are discounted. The discount rate used is a pre-tax rate.

2.14 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs, incurred in respect of assets that require a substantial period to prepare for its intended use, are capitalised up to 

the date that the development of the asset is substantially complete in order for the asset to be ready for its intended use. Borrowing 

costs are capitalised at the rates applicable to the related liability. Other borrowing costs are recognised directly in profit and loss 

when incurred.

2.15 Cost of sales
When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which the related 

revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised 

as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from 

an increase in net realisable value, is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period 

in which the reversal occurs.

The related cost of providing services recognised as revenue in the current period is included in cost of sales.

2.16 Related parties
All subsidiaries, associated companies, major shareholders and key management personnel of the Group are related parties. A list 

of all transactions with major subsidiaries, associated companies, major shareholders and key management personnel is included 

in note 27. All transactions entered into with subsidiaries and associated companies have been eliminated in the consolidated 

financial statements. Directors' and key management personnel emoluments as well as transactions with other related parties are 

set out in notes 24 and 27 respectively. There were no other material contracts with related parties.

2.17 Dividends
Dividend distributions to the Company's shareholders are recognised as a liability in the Company's financial statements in the  

period in which the dividends are approved by the company's Directors.

2.18 Contingencies and commitments
Transactions are classified as contingent liabilities where the Company's obligations depend on uncertain events and principally 

consist of contract specific third party obligations underwritten by banking institutions. Items are classified as commitments where 

the Company commits itself to future transactions, particularly in the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.
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2.19 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, call deposits and cash floats. Cash and cash equivalents are measured at 

amortised cost.

2.20 Foreign currency transactions
Foreign currency transactions are converted to the respective functional currency at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the 

transaction. Gains or losses on translation are recognised in profit or loss. At the end of the reporting period, foreign currency 

monetary items are translated using the closing rate. Exchange differences arising on settlement of monetary items or on translating 

monetary items at rates different from those at which they were translated on initial recognition during the period or in previous 

annual financial statements are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

2.21 Earnings per share
Earnings per share is based on attributable profit for the year divided by the weighted number of ordinary shares in issue during the 

year. Fully diluted earnings per share is presented when the inclusion of potential ordinary shares has a dilutive effect on the earnings 

per share.

2.22 Headline earnings per share
Headline earnings per share is based on the same calculation as in 2.21 above except that attributable profit specifically excludes 

items as set out in Circular 02/2013: "Headline Earnings" issued by the South African Institute of Chartered Accountants. Fully diluted 

headline earnings per share is presented when the inclusion of potential ordinary shares has a dilutive effect on headline earnings 

per share.
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Notes to the annual financial statements
 for the year ended 30 June 2014

Group Company

Figures in Rand 2014 2013 2014 2013

3. Investment property
Opening carrying value – – 145 162 955 132 133 337
Additions at cost – – 16 222 259 5 092 936
Disposals at carrying value – – – (2 096 676)
Net valuation – – 1 845 518 10 033 358

– Revaluation – – (1 347 708) 8 657 662
– Deferred lease smoothing – – 3 193 226 1 375 696

Closing carrying value  – – 163 230 732 145 162 955

Described as:
• Sub 20 of Lot 1543, Isipingo, situate at 10 Mack Road, Prospecton, in extent 23 500 square metres;
•  Remainder of Erf 3461, Durban North, Registration Division FU, situate at 1461 North Coast Road, Durban North, in extent 4 171 square 

metres;
• Sub 12 of Lot 2131, Pietermaritzburg, situate at 307 Boom Street, Pietermaritzburg, in extent 3 528 square metres;
• Erf 7704, Richards Bay (extension 24), situate at 63 Dollar Drive, Richards Bay, in extent 4 210 square metres;
• Erf 19168, East London, situate at 27 Rayon Road, East London, in extent 3 610 square metres;
• Lot 322, Alrode Extension 2, Johannesburg, situate at 8 Bosworth Street, Johannesburg, in extent 13 220 square metres;
• Erf 6794, Montague Gardens, Cape Town, situate at 14 – 16 Track Crescent, Cape Town, in extent 6 856 square metres;
•  Erf 21, Riverside Industrial Park Township Registration Division JT, situate at 15 Waterfall Avenue, Riverside Industrial Park, Nelspruit, in 

extent 4 687 square metres;
• Erf 115 Waterval East Extension 4, Rustenburg, situate at 10 Kgwebo Street, Mabe Business Park, in extent 2 856 square metres.
• Erf 849 and 850, Zwartkop Extension 4, situate at 11 Larch Close, Centurion, in extent 1 226 and 1 004 square metres respectively;
• Erf 772, Gezina, situate at 600 Frederika Street, Gezina, in extent 5 104 square metres;
• Erf 466, Wolmer, situate at 745 President Steyn Street, Pretoria North, in extent 2 552 square metres; and
• Portion 1 of Erf 1827, Pretoria West, situate at 154 Soutter Street, Pretoria West, in extent 1 249 square metres.
• Lot 119 Reuven Extension 1, situated at 25/27 Andrea Road, Reuven, Johannesburg, in extent 4 649 square metres.

The fair value of properties is determined every three years and updated annually by an independent professionally qualified valuator,  
Glen MacMillan (MIVSA; SACV No 2964). In determining the valuations at 30 June 2014, the valuator referred to current market conditions, 
recent sales transactions of similar properties in similar geographical locations and the present value of future rental income expected to 
be earned in respect of the properties in their current condition. The cash flows were estimated based on external evidence of current 
rentals for similar properties in similar locations. In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of the property is 
their current use. There has been no change in the valuation technique used during the year. The fair value hierarchy of investment property 
has been determined to be a level 2 input.

2014 2013

Figures in Rand Cost
Accumulated 
depreciation

Carrying
 value Cost

Accumulated 
depreciation

Carrying 
value

4. Property, plant and equipment
Group
Land and buildings 163 230 732 – 163 230 732 154 924 531 – 154 924 531
Plant and equipment 21 625 238 14 196 084 7 429 154 20 182 885 12 531 879 7 651 006
Vehicles 40 338 024 12 377 845 27 960 179 38 339 321 14 515 894 23 823 427
Office furniture and fittings 9 118 604 6 596 662 2 521 942 8 176 714 5 731 741 2 444 973
Leasehold improvements 1 962 482 1 048 016 914 466 1 777 465 839 231 938 234
Office equipment 4 580 855 3 110 829 1 470 026 3 604 897 2 681 947 922 950
Computer equipment 9 532 136 7 532 894 1 999 242 9 634 701 6 718 700 2 916 001

250 388 071 44 862 330 205 525 741 236 640 514 43 019 392 193 621 122
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Notes to the annual financial statements (continued)

 for the year ended 30 June 2014

4. Property, plant and equipment (continued)
The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment can be reconciled as follows:

Figures in Rand

Carrying 
value at the 

beginning 
of the year Additions Revaluation Disposals Depreciation

Carrying
value 

at the end 
of the year

2014
Land and buildings 154 924 531 9 805 592 (1 347 708) (151 683) – 163 230 732
Plant and equipment 7 651 006 2 393 379 – – (2 615 231) 7 429 154
Vehicles 23 823 427 12 391 254 – (3 669 098) (4 585 404) 27 960 179
Office furniture and fittings 2 444 973 1 497 777 – (165 786) (1 255 022) 2 521 942
Leasehold improvements 938 234 622 096 – – (645 864) 914 466
Office equipment 922 950 1 010 826 – – (463 750) 1 470 026
Computer equipment 2 916 001 1 046 603 – (32 656) (1 930 706) 1 999 242

193 621 122 28 767 527 (1 347 708) (4 019 223) (11 495 977) 205 525 741

2013
Land and buildings 136 702 259 11 661 286 8 657 662 (2 096 676) – 154 924 531
Plant and equipment 5 422 355 3 959 402 – (158 906) (1 571 845) 7 651 006
Vehicles 15 722 715 13 062 200 – (2 022 406) (2 939 082) 23 823 427
Office furniture and fittings 1 814 155 1 782 952 – (14 485) (1 137 649) 2 444 973
Leasehold improvements 638 713 511 901 – – (212 380) 938 234
Office equipment 1 033 596 294 771 – (1 376) (404 041) 922 950
Computer equipment 1 537 466 3 115 046 – (11 918) (1 724 593) 2 916 001

162 871 259 34 387 558 8 657 662 (4 305 767) (7 989 590) 193 621 122

Land and buildings
Described as:
• Sub 20 of Lot 1543, Isipingo, situate at 10 Mack Road, Prospecton, in extent 23 500 square metres;
•  Remainder of Erf 3461, Durban North, Registration Division FU, situate at 1461 North Coast Road, Durban North, in extent 4 171 square 

metres;
• Sub 12 of Lot 2131, Pietermaritzburg, situate at 307 Boom Street, Pietermaritzburg, in extent 3 528 square metres;
• Erf 7704, Richards Bay (extension 24), situate at 63 Dollar Drive, Richards Bay, in extent 4 210 square metres;
• Erf 19168, East London, situate at 27 Rayon Road, East London, in extent 3 610 square metres;
• Lot 322, Alrode Extension 2, Johannesburg, situate at 8 Bosworth Street, Johannesburg, in extent 13 220 square metres;
• Erf 6794, Montague Gardens, Cape Town, situate at 14 – 16 Track Crescent, Cape Town, in extent 6 856 square metres;
•  Erf 21, Riverside Industrial Park Township Registration Division JT, situate at 15 Waterfall Avenue, Riverside Industrial Park, Nelspruit, in 

extent 4 687 square metres;
• Erf 115 Waterval East Extension 4, Rustenburg, situate at 10 Kgwebo Street, Mabe Business Park, in extent 2 856 square metres.
• Erf 849 and 850, Zwartkop Extension 4, situate at 11 Larch Close, Centurion, in extent 1 226 and 1 004 square metres respectively;
• Erf 772, Gezina, situate at 600 Frederika Street, Gezina, in extent 5 104 square metres;
• Erf 466, Wolmer, situate at 745 President Steyn Street, Pretoria North, in extent 2 552 square metres; and
• Portion 1 of Erf 1827, Pretoria West, situate at 154 Soutter Street, Pretoria West, in extent 1 249 square metres.
• Lot 119 Reuven Extension 1, situated at 25/27 Andrea Road, Reuven, Johannesburg, in extent 4 649 square metres.

The fair value of properties is determined every three years and updated annually by an independent professionally qualified valuator,  
Glen MacMillan (MIVS; SACV No 2964). In determining the valuations at 30 June 2014, the valuator referred to current market conditions, 
recent sales transactions of similar properties in similar geographical locations and the present value of future rental income expected to 
be earned in respect of the properties in their current condition. The cash flows were estimated based on external evidence of current 
rentals for similar properties in similar locations. In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of the property is 
their current use. There has been no change in the valuation technique used during the year. The fair value hierarchy of land and buildings 
has been determined to be a level 2 input.

If the cost model had been applied, the carrying value of land and buildings would have been R86 416 994 (2013: R70 194 736).
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4. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Included in additions in the prior year are the following which were acquired as part of the significant business combinations effected:

Figures in Rand 2013

Land and buildings 6 416 666
Plant and equipment 1 056 320
Vehicles 2 443 827
Office furniture and fittings 299 781
Office equipment 31 516
Computer equipment 539 424

10 787 534

2014 2013

Figures in Rand Cost
Accumulated 
depreciation

Carrying
 value Cost

Accumulated 
depreciation

Carrying 
value

Company
Plant and equipment 4 207 066 2 533 475 1 673 591 4 165 103 2 276 480 1 888 623
Vehicles 12 594 672 6 570 481 6 024 191 19 774 561 9 818 720 9 955 841

16 801 738 9 103 956 7 697 782 23 939 664 12 095 200 11 844 464

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment can be reconciled as follows:

Figures in Rand

Carrying value 
at the beginning 

of the year Additions Disposals Depreciation

Carrying 
value at the 

end of the year

2014
Plant and equipment 1 888 623 41 963 – (256 995) 1 673 591
Vehicles 9 955 841 – (2 675 869) (1 255 781) 6 024 191

11 844 464 41 963 (2 675 869) (1 512 776) 7 697 782

2013
Plant and equipment 1 924 164 260 294 (4 001) (291 834) 1 888 623
Vehicles 13 728 091 – (1 892 385) (1 879 865) 9 955 841

15 652 255 260 294 (1 896 386) (2 171 699) 11 844 464

2014 2013

Figures in Rand Cost
Accumulated 
amortisation

Carrying 
value Cost

Accumulated 
amortisation

Carrying 
value

5. Intangible assets
Group
Goodwill 23 909 955 – 23 909 955 23 909 955 – 23 909 955
Trademark – Horizon brand 440 000 (440 000) – 440 000 – 440 000
Software development costs 1 561 057 – 1 561 057 1 561 057 – 1 561 057
Trademark – Eurolux brand 58 500 000 – 58 500 000 58 500 000 – 58 500 000

84 411 012 (440 000) 83 971 012 84 411 012 – 84 411 012
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5. Intangible assets (continued)
The carrying amounts of intangible assets can be reconciled as follows:

Figures in Rand

Carrying value 
at the beginning 

of the year Additions Amortisation

Carrying value 
at the end of 

the year

2014

Goodwill 23 909 955 – – 23 909 955

Trademark – Horizon brand 440 000 – (440 000) –

Software development costs 1 561 057 – – 1 561 057

Trademark – Eurolux brand 58 500 000 – – 58 500 000

84 411 012 – (440 000) 83 971 012

2013

Goodwill 18 409 954 5 500 001 – 23 909 955

Trademark – Horizon brand – 440 000 – 440 000

Software development costs 1 561 057 – – 1 561 057

Trademark – Eurolux brand 58 500 000 – – 58 500 000

78 471 011 5 940 001 – 84 411 012

Intangible assets have been valued as stated in notes 2.1 and 2.4.

Software development costs capitalised have been brought into use. Impairment tests were conducted on the carrying value based on 
forecast cash flows and no impairment was considered necessary.

Impairment tests relating to the Eurolux trademark and goodwill were conducted. Management has based their assumptions on past 
experience which is detailed in note 2.1. The Eurolux trademark is believed to have an indefinite useful life as the brand is increasing its 
market share and there is no forseeable limit to the period that this brand will be generating economic benefits for the Group.

Management has calculated its cash flow and revenue projection over a five-year period. Revenue after the five-year period has been 
extrapolated based on estimated growth rates disclosed below. These growth rates do not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the 
industry or market in which the Group operates. Other key assumptions used in the projection are as follows:

Electrical Lighting Corporate

Growth rates
– 1 to 5 years 10% 10% 10%
– 5 years and beyond – 4% –
Discount rates 20% 20% 20%

Management has based their assumptions on past experience and external sources of information, such as industry sector reports and 
market expectations.

The Horizon trade name was acquired in June 2013 and has been brought into use and amortised in the current year. The carrying amount 
of goodwill allocated to each reportable segment is as follows:

Figures in Rand Electrical Lighting Corporate Total

2014
Goodwill 5 500 001 18 409 954 – 23 909 955
Software development costs – – 1 561 057 1 561 057
Trademark – 58 500 000 – 58 500 000

5 500 001 76 909 954 1 561 057 83 971 012

2013
Goodwill 5 500 001 18 409 954 – 23 909 955
Software development costs – – 1 561 057 1 561 057
Trademark 440 000 58 500 000 – 58 940 000

5 940 001 76 909 954 1 561 057 84 411 012
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Group Company

Figures in Rand 2014 2013 2014 2013

6. Investment in subsidiaries
ARB Electrical Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd – at cost – – 7 400 7 400
7 400 ordinary shares of R1 each
ARB IT Solutions (Pty) Ltd – at cost – – 100 100
100 ordinary shares of R1 each
ARB Global (Pty) Ltd – at cost – – 100 100
100 ordinary shares of R1 each
Eurolux (Pty) Ltd – at cost – – 78 000 000 78 000 000
1 140 ordinary shares
CED-Consolidated Electrical Distributor (Pty) Ltd – at cost – – 120 120
120 ordinary shares of no par value

– – 78 007 720 78 007 720

Set out below is the summarised information in respect of each subsidiary with material non-controlling interest. The subsidiaries are 
incorporated in, and their principal place of operation is, South Africa. The summarised information below is presented before intercompany 
eliminations and adjustments on consolidation:

ARB Electrical 
Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd

Eurolux (Pty) Ltd

Figures in Rand 2014 2013 2014 2013

% of interest and voting rights held by non-controlling interest 26 26 40 40
Profit for the year allocated to non-controlling interest 26 110 451 20 474 126 10 272 872 8 076 545
Accumulated non-controlling interests at the end  
of the reporting period 143 366 648 124 016 197 39 624 058 31 991 186
Dividend paid to non-controlling interest 6 760 000 6 500 000 2 640 000 –
Total revenue 1 841 112 290 1 661 583 495 350 815 274 281 176 507
Profit for the year 100 424 845 78 746 639 25 682 177 20 159 023
Total assets 801 138 337 714 689 412 183 788 137 153 526 909
Total liabilities 249 728 152 237 704 063 84 727 979 72 467 419
Net cash from operating activities 34 953 492 101 755 789 3 183 719 (1 532 223)

Refer to note 10 to the Directors' report for the issued share capital, percentage held and number of shares held of each subsidiary.

Group Company

Figures in Rand 2014 2013 2014 2013

7. Inventory
Merchandise for resale 404 084 131 353 475 483 – –
Allowance for impairment (12 735 764) (11 811 403) – –

391 348 367 341 664 080 – –

Inventory has been valued as stated in note 2.8.
Impairment allowance
Allowance for impairment in respect of inventory can be 
reconciled as follows:
Opening balance 11 811 403 10 692 158 – –
Impairment recognised in profit and loss 924 361 1 119 245 – –

Closing balance 12 735 764 11 811 403 – –

The following factors were considered in determining the amount of the impairment of inventory: 
• Historic sales trends
• Merchandise for resale on hand at reporting date which will not be sold, or will be sold below cost.



Annual financial statements

70 // ARB Integrated report 2014

Notes to the annual financial statements (continued)

 for the year ended 30 June 2014

Group Company

Figures in Rand 2014 2013 2014 2013

8. Deferred lease income
Arising on the straight-lining of income earned  
under operating leases:
– Current portion – – – 3 193 226

Net deferred lease income – – – 3 193 226

9. Trade and other receivables
Gross trade receivables 338 886 668 309 587 802 – –
Other receivables 3 284 151 5 878 022 – –
Prepayments 2 679 409 1 669 167 10 515 342 883
Deposits 581 256 455 307 – –
VAT refundable 3 699 366 3 011 388 – –

349 130 850 320 601 686 10 515 342 883
Allowance for impairment (7 207 180) (8 922 645) – –

341 923 670 311 679 041 10 515 342 883

The carrying value of trade and other receivables  
approximated their fair value due to the short-term  
nature of these instruments.
Impairment allowance
Allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables  
can be reconciled as follows:
Opening balance 8 922 645 8 111 023 – –
Provision utilised (5 003 361) (1 384 989) – –
Reversal of provisions (3 833 273) (5 918 468) – –
New provisions raised 7 121 169 8 115 079 – –

Closing balance 7 207 180 8 922 645 – –

The following table illustrates the relationship between aged gross trade receivables and the impairment allowance:

Group

 2014 2013

Figures in Rand
Gross trade 
receivables

Impairment 
allowance

Gross trade 
receivables

Impairment 
allowance

Not past due 285 785 719 1 152 821 261 673 673 237 187
Past due 0 to 30 days 29 790 431 1 514 292 25 186 906 365 578
Past due 30 to 60 days 10 621 375 1 330 482 9 282 090 929 959
Past due 60 days + 12 689 143 3 209 585 13 445 133 7 389 921

338 886 668 7 207 180 309 587 802 8 922 645

The following factors were considered in determining  
the amount of the impairment of trade receivables:  
Financial difficulties
Abscondences
Disputes
Exposure to credit risk
Gross trade receivables represent the
maximum credit exposure 338 886 668 309 587 802
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9. Trade and other receivables (continued)
The gross trade receivables at the reporting date by type of customer was spread across the following categories: 
• Government/parastatals/municipalities
• Large industry/mining sector
• Large contractors
• Small contractors
• Wholesalers
• Export customers
• Retail and hardware chains

The group's trade receivable balances with government, retail and hardware chains, parastatals, municipalities, large industry, the mining 
sector and large contractors, reduces the Group's exposure to credit risk.

Credit risk in respect of small contractors and wholesalers is controlled through the use of credit vetting agencies and the setting and 
monitoring of credit limits by senior financial management.

Credit risk in respect of ARB Electrical Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd's and ARB Global (Pty) Ltd's export customers is reduced through the use  
of credit insurance, whereas Eurolux (Pty) Ltd and CED-Consolidated Electrical Distributor (Pty) Ltd maintain credit insurance in respect of 
all customers.

The credit risk in respect of other receivables is considered by the Directors to be minimal as it relates to transactions with major corporations 
within the Republic of South Africa.

Credit evaluations are performed using the reports and tools of credit vetting agencies, amongst other things, on new customers and 
existing customers requiring credit above their previously authorised levels. Listings of overdue customer balances are reviewed daily and 
any customer exceeding their credit terms must settle their overdue balance before any further credit is extended. Overdue trade receivables 
are handed over to attorneys for collection as soon as it becomes apparent that recovery may be uncertain.

The Group has an overdraft facility in terms of which certain subsidiaries have ceded their book debts in favour of Nedbank Ltd as security 
for this facility. This facility was utilised at 30 June 2014 to the value of R79 (2013: R37 448).

Group Company

Figures in Rand 2014 2013 2014 2013

10. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and  
balances with banks and investment managers. Cash and cash 
equivalents included in the statement of cash flows comprise  
the following statement of financial position amounts:
Favourable cash balances
Cash on hand 147 396 238 969 1 000 1 000
Bank balances 197 436 163 202 551 371 545 518 60 848 521

197 583 559 202 790 340 546 518 60 849 521

Overdraft
Bank overdraft (79) (37 448) – –

(79) (37 448) – –

197 583 480 202 752 892 546 518 60 849 521

11. Share capital
Authorised
1 000 000 000 ordinary shares of 0,01 cents each 100 000 100 000 100 000 100 000

Issued
235 000 000 ordinary shares of 0,01 cents each 23 500 23 500 23 500 23 500

The Directors are authorised, until the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, to issue and allot 10% of the unissued shares for any purpose 
and upon such terms and conditions as they deem fit.
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Group Company

Figures in Rand 2014 2013 2014 2013

12. Capital reserve
The capital reserve is the profit arising from the sale of  
the operations of ARB Electrical Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd in  
2004 to a subsidiary in terms of a Broad-Based Black  
Economic Empowerment transaction. – – 26 234 082 26 234 082 

13. Vendor – loan account
Fredcor Trust 18 466 2 259 274 – –

This loan represents amounts payable to the previous shareholder of Elektro Vroomen (Pty) Ltd.

14. Employee benefits
Defined contribution plan
It is the policy of the Group to provide retirement benefits to all its employees. A number of defined contribution provident and pension funds, 
all of which are governed by the Pensions Fund Act of 1956, exist for this purpose. These include the Alexander Forbes Retirement Fund, 
Investment Solutions, Liberty Corporate Provident Fund and Momentum Funds at Work. All the schemes are funded by Group contributions, 
which are charged to the statement of comprehensive income as they are incurred. The total Group contribution to such schemes in 2014 
was R10 428 776 (2013: R9 633 401) and for the Company was R408 862 (2013: R358 283).

Share appreciation rights
The Directors elected to introduce a Share Appreciation Rights ("SAR") Plan in previous years. These plans are 100% cash-settled and no 
shares will be subscribed for or alloted in terms hereof.

The details of the SAR's granted for each plan are detailed below:

Plan 3 Plan 2 Plan 1
Number of SARs Number of SARs Number of SARs

Group Company Group Company Group Company

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 10 385 000 2 100 000 1 158 400 160 000 2 784 000 600 000
Current year transactions
– exercised (2 161 000) (508 000) (289 600) (40 000) (928 000) (200 000)
– granted 770 000 440 000 – – – –
– forfeited/declined (350 000) – – – – –

Outstanding at the end of the year 8 644 000 2 032 000 868 800 120 000 1 856 000 400 000

The fair value was calculated using the Black Scholes Pricing Market Model. The assumptions used in determining fair value of each SAR 
granted are summarised below:

Estimated fair value
Share price R6,50 R6,50 R6,50
Grant price R4,72 R3,84 R3,11
Expected SAR life 5 years 5 years 5 years

The risk-free rate of 7,80% has been assumed, based on the prevailing return on a five-year government retail bond as at 1 March 2014.

The volatility of 30% was determined based on the historical volatility of the company's share price over the previous year. The dividend yield 
of 2.99% is based on the dividends paid over the previous year.

The share price of R6,50 is the determined 30 day VWAP of ARB Holdings shares for June 2014.

Group Company

Figures in Rand 2014 2013 2014 2013

Exercised and accrued 3 378 600 1 315 600 748 000 240 000
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Group Company

Figures in Rand 2014 2013 2014 2013

15. Deferred taxation
Balance at the beginning of the year (26 033 993) (34 201 486) (17 268 807) (15 934 834)
Movements during the year attributable to:
Investment properties – – (638 659) (2 047 046)
Doubtful debt allowance (360 249) 170 441 – –
Leave pay and bonus accrual 1 330 416 495 472 48 482 (3 051)
Incentive accrual 1 509 326 – 638 400 –
Inventory obsolescence allowance 34 579 188 381 – –
Property, plant and equipment 740 340 3 394 362 425 033 200 740
Intangible assets (2 873) (5 670) – –
Prepayments 79 521 (626 416) – –
Assessed loss (271 126) 4 653 368 – –
Provision for credit notes 117 100 86 340 – –
Lease smoothing effect (110 975) (1 195 184) 894 103 385 195
Interest accrual 190 173 445 028 – –
Share appreciation rights 1 838 771 561 371 342 630 130 189

Balance at the end of the year (20 938 990) (26 033 993) (15 558 818) (17 268 807)

The balance comprises:
Investment properties – – (15 308 404) (14 669 745)

– Revaluation of investment properties – – (14 338 564) (13 994 068)
– Building allowance – – (969 840) (675 677) 

Doubtful debt allowance 1 513 507 1 873 756 – –
Leave pay and bonus accrual 3 345 108 2 014 692 109 621 61 139
Incentive accrual 1 509 326 – 638 400 –
Inventory obsolescence allowance 1 346 904 1 312 325 – –
Assessed loss 4 517 737 4 788 863 – –
Provision for credit notes 550 944 433 844 – –
Lease smoothing effect 114 184 225 159 – (894 103)
Interest accrual 839 185 649 012 – –
Property, plant and equipment (19 641 588) (20 381 928) (1 471 254) (1 896 287)
Intangible assets (16 817 096) (16 814 223) – –
Prepayments (617 343) (696 864) – –
Share appreciation rights 2 400 142 561 371 472 819 130 189

 (20 938 990) (26 033 993) (15 558 818) (17 268 807)

Deferred tax liability (34 127 052) (37 893 015) (15 558 818) (17 268 807)
Deferred tax asset 13 188 062 11 859 022 – –

(20 938 990) (26 033 993) (15 558 818) (17 268 807)

16. Trade and other payables
Accruals 7 330 144 8 959 681 361 473 1 671 227
Payroll accruals 12 564 213 5 033 070 3 547 975 –
Share appreciation rights 8 571 936 2 004 896 1 688 640 464 961
Leave pay and bonus accrual 9 666 813 5 853 797 391 505 218 356
Rental deposits – – – 54 088
Trade payables 240 670 204 250 668 854 – 753
VAT payable 4 879 344 1 517 616 786 457 465 899
Other payables 435 270 1 007 195 231 771 121 104

284 117 924 275 045 109 7 007 821 2 996 388

The carrying value of trade and other payables approximated their fair value due to the short-term nature of these obligations.
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Group Company

Figures in Rand 2014 2013 2014 2013

17. Loans receivable/(payable)
CED – Consolidated Electrical Distributor (Pty) Ltd – – 7 500 961 8 517 909
ARB Global (Pty) Ltd – – 674 058 (1 644 888)
Eurolux (Pty) Ltd – – 38 081 595 38 185 565
ARB IT Solutions (Pty) Ltd – – (200 028) (3 838 932)
ARB Electrical Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd – – 26 445 520 (13 686 207)

– – 72 502 106 27 533 447

Current assets – – 72 702 134 46 703 474
Current liabilities – – (200 028) (19 170 027)

– – 72 502 106 27 533 447

The intercompany loans are unsecured, bear interest at 
rates linked to prime and have no fixed terms of repayment. 
These loans are neither past due nor impaired.

18. Deferred lease payments
Arising on the straight-lining of payments made under 
operating leases:
Long-term portion – – – –
Current portion 440 201 836 541 – –

Net deferred lease payments 440 201 836 541 – –

19. Profit before interest and taxation
Profit before interest and taxation is arrived at after  
taking into account the following items:
Income
Lease rentals 622 090 677 657 27 986 940 28 853 444
Fair value adjustment to investment properties – – 1 845 518 10 033 358
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment 57 874 32 296 – 85 034
Exchange rate profits on foreign exchange 5 634 835 19 158 – –
Bargain purchase price – 2 928 092 – –
Expenditure
Exchange rate losses on foreign exchange 3 814 300 3 917 844 – –
Depreciation 11 495 976 7 989 590 1 512 776 2 171 699
Auditors' remuneration
– audit fees 1 189 705 1 081 500 412 050 277 000
– other services – 141 437 – 29 524
Operating lease charges
– Premises 14 347 096 14 795 385 942 924 610 536
Allowance for impairment – inventory 924 361 1 119 245 – –
Allowance for impairment – trade receivables (1 715 465) 811 622 – –
Share appreciation rights 11 189 309 3 729 211 2 411 159 822 161
Loss on sale on investment property – – – 36 676
Direct operating expenses of investment property
– that generated rental income – – 951 883 587 472
– that did not generate rental income – – 31 879 66 830

20. Staff costs
Short-term employee benefits 133 480 815 98 961 335 993 694 988 468
Contributions to retirement funds 10 050 665 9 314 780 30 751 39 662
Other employment benefits 9 855 805 5 785 754 348 648 141 969
Other staff costs 10 406 289 10 501 284 3 503 679 252 162

163 793 574 124 563 153 4 876 772 1 422 261
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20. Staff costs (continued)
Short-term employee benefits comprise salaries, commissions, share appreciation rights and bonuses paid.

Other employment benefits comprise travel allowances, fringe benefits on the use of Company vehicles and contributions to medical  
aid funds.

Other staff costs comprise accruals raised but not paid in respect of the future liability for share appreciation rights and other bonuses,  
as well as staff training and related expenditure.

Group

2014 2013

Number Number

Average number of persons employed by the Group during the year: 886 754

Group Company

Figures in Rand 2014 2013 2014 2013

21. Interest received
Eurolux (Pty) Ltd – – 3 672 762 2 460 836
CED – Consolidated Electrical Distributor (Pty) Ltd – – 758 354 73 380
South African Revenue Services 11 905 48 222 – –
Financial institutions and trade receivables 11 430 305 10 369 948 2 270 362 3 122 383

11 442 210 10 418 170 6 701 478 5 656 599

22. Interest paid
Financial institutions 188 940 959 831 – –
South African Revenue Services 376 11 248 – –
ARB IT Solutions (Pty) Ltd – – 204 752 109 935
ARB Electrical Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd – – 1 760 449 602 442
ARB Global (Pty) Ltd – – – 73 400

189 316 971 079 1 965 201 785 777

23. Taxation
SA normal tax
– Current taxation 63 962 738 44 862 522 10 126 590 9 114 737
– Prior year overprovision (44 356) – – –
Deferred taxation
– Current year temporary differences (4 219 485) 1 440 675 (1 709 989) 1 333 972
– Prior year underprovision 9 353 (60 905) – –

Tax for the year 59 708 250 46 242 292 8 416 601 10 448 709

Reconciliation of rate of taxation % % % %

South African normal taxation rate 28.00 28.00 28.00 28.00
Adjusted for:
Special allowances (0.21) (0.83) 0.00 0.00
Exempt income 0.00 0.00 (14.12) (8.76)
Non-deductible expenses 0.09 0.08 0.00 0.03
Prior year overprovision (0.02) (0.04) 0.00 0.00
Revaluation of investment properties at CGT rate 0.00 0.00 (0.28) (1.59)

Net reduction (0.14) (0.79) (14.40) (10.32)
Effective rate of taxation 27.86 27.21 13.60 17.68

In one of the subsidiaries, the taxation charge in the current year has been reduced by R968 307 as a result of a portion of a taxation loss 
utilised. The value of the unutilised taxation loss amounts to R16 134 775.
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Group Company

Figures in Rand 2014 2013 2014 2013

24. Directors' emoluments
Emoluments received
Salary 3 781 113 3 157 856 3 781 113 3 157 856
Directors' fees 1 502 000 1 095 000 1 502 000 1 095 000
Contributions to retirement funds 378 111 318 621 378 111 318 621
Other employment benefits 340 776 348 515 340 776 348 515
Share appreciation rights and incentives 1 700 480 357 200 1 700 480 357 200

Total emoluments received 7 702 480 5 277 192 7 702 480 5 277 192

Figures in Rand Salary
Directors' 

fees

Contri-
butions to

retirement 
funds

Share 
appreciation 

rights and 
incentives

Other 
employment 

benefits Total

Received as follows:
Group
2014
Executive Directors
B Nichles 2 179 098 – 217 910 1 173 080 202 992 3 773 080
WR Neasham 1 602 015 – 160 201 527 400 137 784 2 427 400
Non-Executive Directors
AR Burke – 390 000 – – – 390 000
ST Downes – 333 000 – – – 333 000
JR Modise – 168 000 – – – 168 000
G Pretorius – 298 000 – – – 298 000
RB Patmore – 313 000 – – – 313 000

3 781 113 1 502 000 378 111 1 700 480 340 776 7 702 480

2013
Executive Directors
B Nichles 1 806 280 – 182 250 357 200 195 246 2 540 976
WR Neasham 1 351 576 – 136 371 – 153 269 1 641 216
Non-Executive Directors
AR Burke – 330 000 – – – 330 000
ST Downes – 235 000 – – – 235 000
JR Modise – 110 000 – – – 110 000
G Pretorius – 185 000 – – – 185 000
RB Patmore – 235 000 – – – 235 000

3 157 856 1 095 000 318 621 357 200 348 515 5 277 192

Company
2014
Executive Directors
B Nichles 2 179 098 – 217 910 1 173 080 202 992 3 773 080
WR Neasham 1 602 015 – 160 201 527 400 137 784 2 427 400
Non-Executive Directors
AR Burke – 390 000 – – – 390 000
ST Downes – 333 000 – – – 333 000
JR Modise – 168 000 – – – 168 000
G Pretorius – 298 000 – – – 298 000
RB Patmore – 313 000 – – – 313 000 

3 781 113 1 502 000 378 111 1 700 480 340 776 7 702 480
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Figures in Rand Salary
Directors' 

fees

Contri-
butions to

retirement 
funds

Share 
appreciation 

rights and 
incentives

Other 
employment 

benefits Total

24. Directors' emoluments 
(continued)
2013
Executive Directors
B Nichles 1 806 280 – 182 250 357 200 195 246 2 540 976
WR Neasham 1 351 576 – 136 371 – 153 269 1 641 216
Non-Executive Directors
AR Burke – 330 000 – – – 330 000
ST Downes – 235 000 – – – 235 000
JR Modise – 110 000 – – – 110 000
G Pretorius – 185 000 – – – 185 000
RB Patmore – 235 000 – – – 235 000

3 157 856 1 095 000 318 621 357 200 348 515  5 277 192

Group

Figures in Rand 2014 2013

25. Earnings and dividends per share
25.1 Basic and diluted earnings per share

Basic earnings as disclosed 118 190 892 95 129 623
Weighted number of shares 235 000 000 235 000 000
Diluted number of shares 235 000 000 235 340 000
Basic earnings per share (cents) 50,29 40,48
Diluted earnings per share (cents) 50,29 40,42

25.2 Headline and diluted headline earnings per share
Basic earnings as disclosed 118 190 892 95 129 623
Surplus on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net of taxation) (41 669) (23 253)
Bargain purchase price – (2 928 092)
Minority interest therein 10 834 757 611

Headline earnings 118 160 057 92 935 889

Headline earnings per share (cents) 50,28 39,55
Diluted headline earnings per share (cents) 50,28 39,49

25.3 Reconciliation of weighted and diluted 
number of shares
Issued shares at the beginning of the year 235 000 000 235 000 000

Weighted average number of shares 235 000 000 235 000 000
Dilutive effect of share options – 340 000

Diluted number of shares 235 000 000 235 340 000

There is no dilutive effect of share options in the current year as all the remaining  

share options were cash settled in December 2013 at a cost of R792 000 which  

has been charged to comprehensive income.

25.4 Dividends per share
Dividends declared during the year 61 570 000 32 195 000
Number of shares 235 000 000 235 000 000

Dividends per share (cents) 26,20 13,70

The final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2014 which was only declared after year-end has not been included as a liability in the 
financial statements.
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26. Significant business combinations during the previous year
Industrial Cable Suppliers (Pty) Ltd
On 1 July 2012, the Company's subsidiary, ARB Electrical Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd, acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Industrial Cable 
Suppliers (Pty) Ltd. Industrial Cable Suppliers (Pty) Ltd is engaged in electrical wholesaling and operates principally in South Africa with 
branches in Johannesburg and Rustenburg.

The revenue and profit before taxation of Industrial Cable Suppliers (Pty) Ltd, included in the Group statement of comprehensive income in 
the prior year was R181 496 954 and R4 876 251, respectively.

Group

Figures in Rand 2014 2013

The acquisition date fair values of the assets acquired and  
liabilities assumed and the consideration transferred, were:
Property, plant and equipment – 9 767 504
Inventory – 67 835 570
Trade and other receivables – 44 734 882
Deferred taxation – 2 456 119
Trade and other payables – (48 618 885)
Taxation payable – (1 876 752)
Cash and cash equivalents – (20 983 904)
Interest-bearing borrowings – (14 395 129)

– 38 919 405
Bargain purchase price – (2 928 092)

Total consideration transferred in cash – 35 991 313

Cash paid on acquisition
– purchase price – 35 991 313
– cash and cash equivalents refinanced – 20 983 904

– 56 975 217

Acquisition-related costs
Due diligence – 126 369
Legal costs – 27 055
Press announcements – 102 650
Competition Commission filing fee – 50 000

– 306 074

A gain of R2 928 092 on acquisition was recognised. The gain resulted from the fair value of inventory and trade receivables being determined 
at acquisition date compared to the agreed values on negotiation which led to a lower purchase price being negotiated. The gain was 
included in other income in profit or loss in the prior year.

Elektro Vroomen (Pty) Ltd
On 1 January 2013, the Company's subsidiary, ARB Electrical Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd, acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Elektro 
Vroomen (Pty) Ltd. Elektro Vroomen (Pty) Ltd is engaged in electrical wholesaling and operates principally in South Africa with branches in 
Bloemfontein and Kathu.

The revenue and profit before taxation of Elektro Vroomen (Pty) Ltd, included in the Group statement of comprehensive income in the prior 
year was R16 385 484 and R378 197, respectively. If Elektro Vroomen (Pty) Ltd was included from the beginning of their financial year, the 
revenue would have been R32 770 968 and the loss before interest and taxation would have been R756 394.
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Figures in Rand 2014 2013

26. Significant business combinations during the previous year (continued)
The acquisition date fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed  
and the consideration transferred, were:
Property, plant and equipment – 1 020 030
Inventory – 3 661 178
Trade and other receivables – 2 246 026
Deferred taxation – 4 820 800
Trade and other payables – (11 235 580)
Cash and cash equivalents – (2 666 607)
Shareholder loans – (3 276 587)
Long-term borrowings – (69 260)

– (5 500 000)
Goodwill – 5 500 001

Total consideration transferred in cash – 1

Cash paid on acquisition
– purchase price – 1
– cash and cash equivalents refinanced – 2 666 607

– 2 666 608

Acquisition-related costs
Due diligence – 65 000
Legal costs – 20 730
Press announcements – 25 022

– 110 752

27. Related party transactions
The subsidiaries of the Group are identified in note 10 to the Directors' report. All of these entities are related parties to the Company.
Details of material transactions with related parties are disclosed below and also as follows:
Interest received Note 21
Interest paid Note 22
Directors' emoluments Note 24
Investments in subsidiaries Note 6
Loans receivable from subsidiaries Note 17
Loans payable to subsidiaries Note 17
Directors' shareholding Note 12 to the Directors' report

Figures in Rand
Relationship 
to Company Nature of business 2014 2013

Other transactions not disclosed 
elsewhere
Rentals paid to ARB Holdings Ltd by
Industrial Cable Suppliers (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Electrical wholesaler 746 325 270 400
ARB Electrical Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Electrical wholesaler 29 288 719 28 851 886
ARB IT Solutions (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary IT service provider 296 499 367 939
Elektro Vroomen (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Electrical wholesaler 67 947 –
CED – Consolidated Electrical  
Distributor (Pty) Ltd

Subsidiary Export/import electrical 
wholesaler

61 037 –

Rentals paid to ARB Electrical 
Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd by
Elektro Vroomen (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Electrical wholesaler 32 000 –
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Figures in Rand
Relationship 
to Company Nature of business 2014 2013

27. Related party transactions 
(continued)
Rentals paid by Eurolux (Pty) Ltd to
Riverport Investments (Pty) Ltd Common shareholders Property owning 5 804 473 5 374 512
Rapiprop 110 (Pty) Ltd Common shareholders Property owning 4 738 197 4 387 218
Purchases made by ARB IT  
Solutions (Pty) Ltd from
Protime Computer Systems cc Common Director/

member
IT service provider 89 000 96 000

Purchases made by ARB Electrical 
Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd from
ARB IT Solutions (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary IT service provider 5 071 369 5 089 781
ARB Global (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Export/import electrical 

wholesaler
30 330 946 1 223 713

Industrial Cable Suppliers (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Electrical wholesaler 17 878 755 19 507 561
Elektro Vroomen (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Electrical wholesaler 5 393 566 2 392 540
Eurolux (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Export/import lighting 

wholesaler
10 582 108 9 569 824

CED – Consolidated Electrical  
Distributor (Pty) Ltd

Subsidiary Export/import electrical 
wholesaler

4 650 108 678 614

Sales made by ARB Electrical 
Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd to
ARB IT Solutions (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary IT service provider 1 086 2 609
Industrial Cable Suppliers (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Electrical wholesaler 39 651 459 54 001 316
Elektro Vroomen (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Electrical wholesaler 24 173 666 6 086 371
The Burke Investment Trust Shareholder Investment trust 97 324 1 358 537
Eurolux (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Export/import lighting 

wholesaler
24 290 35 120

CED – Consolidated Electrical  
Distributor (Pty) Ltd

Subsidiary Export/import electrical 
wholesaler

104 073 34 979

ARB Global (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Export/import electrical 
wholesaler

10 478 617 –

Management fee paid to  
ARB Holdings Ltd by
ARB Electrical Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Electrical wholesaler 12 273 705 7 689 863
ARB IT Solutions (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary IT service provider 180 000 180 000
ARB Global (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Export/import electrical 

wholesaler
60 000 60 000

Eurolux (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Export/import lighting 
wholesaler

540 600 510 000

CED – Consolidated Electrical  
Distributor (Pty) Ltd

Subsidiary Export/import electrical 
wholesaler

180 000 –

Management fee paid to ARB Electrical 
Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd by
Industrial Cable Suppliers (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Electrical wholesaler 360 000 –
Sales made by ARB Global (Pty) Ltd to
CED – Consolidated Electrical  
Distributor (Pty) Ltd

Subsidiary Export/import electrical 
wholesaler

4 862 349 5 527 474

Elektro Vroomen (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Electrical wholesaler 12 451 –
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27. Related party transactions 
(continued)
Sales made by ARB IT  
Solutions (Pty) Ltd to
ARB Global (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Export/import electrical 

wholesaler
1 295 1 830

CED – Consolidated Electrical  
Distributor (Pty) Ltd

Subsidiary Export/import electrical 
wholesaler

213 987 26 855

Industrial Cable Suppliers (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Electrical wholesaler 252 380 –
Elektro Vroomen (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Electrical wholesaler 603 448 –
Sales made by CED – Consolidated 
Electrical Distributor (Pty) Ltd to
Industrial Cable Suppliers (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Electrical wholesaler 4 000 –
Elektro Vroomen (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Electrical wholesaler 54 620 –
Eurolux (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Export/import lighting 

wholesaler
20 402 –

Sales made by Elektro Vroomen  
(Pty) Ltd to
Industrial Cable Suppliers (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Electrical wholesaler 47 204 –
Sales made by Industrial Cable  
Suppliers (Pty) Ltd to
Elektro Vroomen (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Electrical wholesaler 246 154 –
Purchases made by Eurolux (Pty) Ltd from
Industrial Cable Suppliers (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Electrical wholesaler 4 000 –
Elektro Vroomen (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Electrical wholesaler 4 307 –
Sales made by Eurolux (Pty) Ltd to
Industrial Cable Suppliers (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Electrical wholesaler 135 805 –
Elektro Vroomen (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Electrical wholesaler 601 242 –

Key management personnel
Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the 
Group, directly and indirectly, and include Directors of the subsidiaries, Divisional Directors, Regional Managers, Branch Managers and 
Department Managers.

Group Company

Figures in Rand 2014 2013 2014 2013

Short-term employment benefits 26 273 706 20 919 762 – –
Contributions to retirement funds 2 299 277 1 765 219 – –
Other employment benefits 2 846 336 2 412 636 – –

31 419 319 25 097 617 – –

Short-term employment benefits comprise salaries, commission and bonuses paid.

Other employment benefits comprise travel allowances, fringe benefits on the use of the Company's vehicles and contributions to medical  
aid funds.

Information regarding the earnings of Directors, Executive and Non-Executive, have been disclosed separately in note 24.
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Non-financial 

instruments
Loans and 

receivables
Liabilities at 

amortised cost
Carrying

 value

28. Financial risk management
Classification of financial instruments
Group
Assets
2014
Trade and other receivables 3 699 366 338 224 304 – 341 923 670
Cash and cash equivalents – 197 583 559 – 197 583 559

2013
Trade and other receivables 3 011 388 308 667 653 – 311 679 041
Cash and cash equivalents – 202 790 340 – 202 790 340

Liabilities
2014
Trade and other payables 23 118 093 – 260 999 831 284 117 924
Vendor loan account – – 18 466 18 466
Deferred lease payments – – 440 201 440 201
Bank overdraft – – 79 79

2013
Trade and other payables 9 376 309 – 265 668 800 275 045 109
Bank overdraft – – 37 448 37 448
Vendor loan account – – 2 259 274 2 259 274
Deferred lease payment – – 836 541 836 541

Company
Assets
2014
Loan receivable – 72 702 134 – 72 702 134
Trade and other receivables – 10 515 – 10 515
Cash and cash equivalents – 546 518 – 546 518

2013
Deferred lease income – 3 193 226 – 3 193 226
Loans receivable – 46 703 474 – 46 703 474
Trade and other receivables – 342 883 – 342 883
Cash and cash equivalents – 60 849 521 – 60 849 521

Liabilities
2014
Trade and other payables 2 866 602 – 4 141 219 7 007 821
Loans payable – – 200 028 200 028

2013
Trade and other payables 1 149 216 – 1 847 172 2 996 388
Loans payable – – 19 170 027 19 170 027
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28. Financial risk management (continued)
The Group's operations expose it to a number of financial risks, namely credit, liquidity, interest rate, foreign exchange and commodity price 
risk. The Group has financial risk management processes in place to protect against and minimise the potential adverse effects of these 
financial risks. This note presents information regarding the exposure to each of these risks and processes for managing them.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss if a customer or counter-party to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and 
arises principally from the Group's gross trade receivables and cash and cash equivalents held at banking institutions.

The Group trades only with recognised, creditworthy third parties and it is the Group's policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit 
terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, trade receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result 
that the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant. The Group also believes that it has no significant exposure to credit risk due to the 
large number of customers comprising the Company's customer base and their dispersion across different industries and geographical 
areas. Credit risk in respect of ARB Electrical Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd's and ARB Global (Pty) Ltd's export customers is reduced through the 
use of credit insurance, whereas Eurolux (Pty) Ltd and CED – Consolidated Electrical Distributor (Pty) Ltd maintain credit insurance in 
respect of all their customers. The maximum exposure is the carrying amount as disclosed in note 9.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Group, the Group's exposure to credit risk arises from default of the 
counter-party, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments.

To limit this exposure, the Group's cash is placed only with reputable financial institutions of high credit standing and limits its exposure to 
only four counter-parties.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.

The Group ensures, as far as possible, that it has sufficient liquidity available to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due. Daily and 
monthly cash flow requirements are monitored to ensure sufficient cash is available on demand or that access to facilities is available to 
meet expected operational expenses. Any surplus cash is appropriately invested. The Group maintains a balance between continuity of 
funding and flexibility through the use of bank facilities and intercompany funding.

In addition, the subsidiaries have primary and secondary banking facilities of R107 000 000 and R70 000 000 respectively available to finance 
any working capital requirements.

In terms of the Company's Memorandum of Incorporation, there is no limit on the group's authority to raise interest-bearing debt.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in the interest rate will affect the Group's income or value of its financial instruments, namely its 
cash and cash equivalents and interest-bearing borrowings.

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relate primarily to the borrowing obligations and loans receivable 
within the Group, with a variable interest rate. As part of the process of managing the Group's interest rate risk, interest rate characteristics 
of new borrowings and the refinancing of existing borrowings are positioned according to expected movement in the interest rate. Full 
details of interest rates relating to borrowings and loans receivable are detailed in notes 10 and 17.

Surplus cash and cash equivalents exposed to interest rate risk are placed with institutions and facilities which yield the highest rate of 
return, but which are still within acceptable risk parameters.

The Group's income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in the interest rates.



Annual financial statements

84 // ARB Integrated report 2014

Notes to the annual financial statements (continued)

 for the year ended 30 June 2014

Group Company

Figures in Rand 2014 2013 2014 2013

28. Financial risk management (continued)
Sensitivity analysis 
Net loans payable
Increase of 100 basis points would result in a  
reduction of profit before tax of – (18 885) – –
Decrease of 200 basis points would result in an
improvement of profit before tax of – 37 769 – –

Net loans receivable
Increase of 100 basis points would result in  
an improvement of profit before tax of – – 725 021 275 334
Decrease of 200 basis points would result in  
a reduction of profit before tax of – – (1 450 042) (550 669)

Net cash and cash equivalents
Increase of 100 basis points would result in  
an improvement of profit before tax of 1 975 836 2 027 529 5 465 608 495
Decrease of 200 basis points would result in  
a reduction of profit before tax of (3 951 672) (4 055 057) (10 930) (1 216 990)

Foreign exchange risk
ARB Global (Pty) Ltd and ARB Electrical Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd hedge their exposure to foreign currency risk against stronger currencies by 
entering into forward exchange contracts where there is a pre-determined selling price. Such exposure arises from purchases in currencies 
other than in South African Rands. It is the Group's policy to make use of forward exchange contracts to eliminate the currency exposure on 
any individual transaction for which the payment is anticipated to be more than one month after the Group has entered into a firm commitment 
for a purchase. The forward exchange contracts must be in the same currency as the hedged item.

Forward exchange contracts which relate to future commitments:

Amount in foreign currency purchased Forward exchange rate Maturity date

USD 125 288,13 1 USD = R10,739 30 June – 11 July 2014
USD 7 240,00 1 USD = R10,775 23 June – 3 July 2014
EUR 331 998,00 1 EUR = R15,344 7 July – 18 July 2014

The liabilities relating to these forward exchange contracts are disclosed in trade and other payables and are not material.

There have been no forward exchange contracts in respect of the following orders in foreign currency:

Expected payoff date

EUR 26 334 31 October 2014
EUR 126 740 14 October 2014

The Group reviews its foreign exchange exposure, including commitments, on an ongoing basis. The Group expects its foreign exchange 
contracts to hedge foreign exchange exposure.
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28. Financial risk management (continued)
Sensitivity analysis
Change in USD
Increase of 10% in the rate would result in a  
reduction of profit before tax of (142 348) (671 747) – –
Decrease of 10% in the rate would result in  
an improvement of profit before tax of 142 348 671 747 – –

Change in AUD
Increase of 10% in the rate would result in a  
reduction of profit before tax of – (19 964) – –
Decrease of 10% in the rate would result in  
an improvement of profit before tax of – 19 964 – –

Change in Euro
Increase of 10% in the rate would result in  
a reduction of profit before tax of (509 418) (142 730) – –
Decrease of 10% in the rate would result in  
an improvement of profit before tax of 509 418 142 730 – –

Commodity price risk
Exposure to commodity price risk is reduced through the rationalisation of inventory levels of copper, aluminium and steel-related products. 
Stockholding levels of affected products are maintained at an average of two to three months.

Financial liabilities
Maturity analysis
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

Group Company

Figures in Rand 2014 2013 2014 2013

Payable in 1 to 12 months
Trade and other payables 260 999 831 265 668 600 4 141 219 1 847 172
Loan payable – – 200 028 19 170 027
Vendor – loan account 18 466 2 259 274 – –
Deferred lease payments 440 201 836 541 – –
Bank overdraft 79 37 448 – –

261 458 577 268 801 863 4 341 247 21 017 199

Capital management
The Group considers equity and long-term interest-bearing borrowings as capital.

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the entity's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to 
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products 
and services commensurately with the level of risk.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The Group changes the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light 
of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, 
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, repurchase shares or 
sell assets to reduce debt.

There were no changes in the Group's approach to capital management during the year. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed 
capital requirements.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by capital. Net debt 
is calculated as total debt (as shown in the statement of financial position) less cash and cash equivalents.

Capital comprises all components of equity.



Annual financial statements

86 // ARB Integrated report 2014

Notes to the annual financial statements (continued)

 for the year ended 30 June 2014

28. Financial risk management (continued)
The debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at 30 June was as follows:

Group Company

Figures in Rand 2014 2013 2014 2013

Total debt 321 428 636 317 271 374 23 653 257 39 449 959
Cash and cash equivalents (197 583 480) (202 752 892) (546 518) (60 849 521)

Net debt 123 845 156 114 518 482 23 106 739 (21 399 562)

Total equity 912 234 178 829 087 130 298 542 144 306 654 284

Debt to adjusted capital ratio 0,14:1 0,14:1 0,08:1 –0,07:1

The Group's debt-to-capital ratio during 2014 remained constant when compared to the prior year.

Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are categorised in its entirety into the  
following three levels of the fair value hierarchy based on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement  
in its entirety:
• Level 1: fair value measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical financial assets or liabilities;
•  Level 2: fair value measured using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the financial asset or 

liability, either directly or indirectly; and
•  Level 3: fair value measured using inputs for the financial asset or liability that are not based on observable market data.

Figures in Rand Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets and liabilities that are not measured at fair 
value on a recurring basis:
Group
2014
Financial assets
Loans and receivables
Trade and other receivables – – 338 224 304 338 224 304
Cash and cash equivalents – 197 583 559 – 197 583 559
Financial liabilities
Liabilities at amortised cost
Trade and other payables – – 260 999 831 260 999 831
Bank overdraft – 79 – 79
Vendor loan account – – 18 466 18 466
Deferred lease payments – – 440 201 440 201

2013
Financial assets
Loans and receivables
Trade and other receivables – – 308 667 653 308 667 653
Cash and cash equivalents – 202 790 340 – 202 790 340
Financial liabilities
Liabilities at amortised cost
Trade and other payables – – 265 668 800 265 668 800
Bank overdraft – 37 448 – 37 448
Vendor loan account – – 2 259 274 2 259 274
Deferred lease payments – – 836 541 836 541
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28. Financial risk management (continued)
Company
2014
Financial assets
Loans and receivables
Loan receivable – – 72 702 134 72 702 134
Trade and other receivables – – 10 515 10 515
Cash and cash equivalents – 546 518 – 546 518
Financial liabilities
Liabilities at amortised cost
Trade and other payables – – 4 141 219 4 141 219
Loans payable – – 200 028 200 028

2013
Financial assets
Loans and receivables
Loan receivable – – 46 703 474 46 703 474
Trade and other receivables – – 342 883 342 883
Cash and cash equivalents – 60 849 521 – 60 849 521
Deferred lease income – – 3 193 226 3 193 226
Financial liabilities
Liabilities at amortised cost
Trade and other payables – – 1 847 172 1 847 172
Loans payable – – 19 170 027 19 170 027

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities disclosed under level 3 have been determined in accordance with generally accepted 
pricing models. All the above financial instruments are short-term in nature and their fair values approximate their carrying values.

29. Guarantees and contingent liabilities
A Group cross surety between ARB Holdings Ltd, ARB Global (Pty) Ltd and ARB Electrical Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd to the value of R25 000 000 
has been issued in favour of Rand Merchant Bank for facilities granted.

An unlimited Group cross deed of suretyship between ARB Holdings Ltd, ARB Electrical Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd, ARB IT Solutions (Pty) Ltd 
and ARB Global (Pty) Ltd has been issued in favour of Nedbank for facilities granted.

A limited guarantee to the value of R42 000 000 has been issued by ARB Holdings Ltd to Nedbank Ltd for the obligations of Eurolux (Pty) Ltd.

A limited guarantee to the value of R12 000 000 has been issued by Eurolux (Pty) Ltd to Nedbank Ltd for the obligations of Cathay Lighting 
(Pty) Ltd.

Guarantees issued by Nedbank Ltd on behalf of subsidiaries amounted to R3 653 879.

30. Commitments
Group
Operating lease commitments
The Group has eight (2013: eight) operating lease agreements in place as follows:
•  The Pretoria East property, described as Shop 1 and Office 1, Paragon Centre, 191 Corobay Avenue, Waterkloof Glen, is leased monthly 

from 1 March 2014 to 28 February 2016 from an external party. The period of the lease is 24 months and its average monthly instalment 
of R38 090 is payable in advance.

•  The Eurolux Johannesburg property, described as 10 Milkyway Avenue, Linbro Business Park, Sandton, is leased monthly from  
1 January 2012 to 30 November 2021 from a related party. The period of the lease is nine years and 11 months. However, the lease 
commitments have been calculated over a period of 36 months, as the lease is to be reviewed after each 36 month period to ensure that 
the rentals remain market related. The average monthly instalment of R466 021 is payable in advance.

•  The Eurolux Cape Town property, described as 9 Racecourse Road, Milnerton, is leased monthly from 1 January 2012 to  
30 November 2021 from a related party. The period of the lease is nine years and 11 months. However, the lease commitments have been 
calculated over a period of 36 months, as the lease is to be reviewed after each 36 month period to ensure that the rentals remain market 
related. The average monthly instalment of R380 413 is payable in advance.

•  The Polokwane property, described as Unit 4C in Building 4, Danielle Close, Corporate Park II, is leased monthly from an external  
party from 1 June 2010 until such time as the new Polokwane premises are ready for occupation. The average monthly instalment of  
R36 750 is payable monthly in advance.
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30. Commitments (continued)
Group (continued)
•  The CED Johannesburg property, described as Unit 5 and 6, Coronarium Business Park, Corporate North, Randjesfontein, is leased 

monthly from 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015 from an external party. The period of the lease is 24 months and the average monthly 
instalment of R43 759 is payable in advance.

•  The Bloemfontein property, described as Erf 29282, Bloemfontein CBD (78 – 80 Nelson Mandela Drive) is leased from 1 January 2013 to 
31 December 2014. The period of the lease is 24 months and the average monthly instalment of R140 400 is payable in advance.

•  The Kathu property is leased from an external party and is described as Erf 4344, Kathu – Kameeldoring Development, Kathu. The lease 
period is for 60 months, starting 1 July 2014 and ending 30 June 2019. The average monthly instalment of R37 363 is payable in advance.

•  The Rustenburg property, described as Unit H, Delta Place, 17 Kgwebo Avenue, Mabe Business Park, is leased monthly from 1 July 2014 
to 30 September 2014. The period of the lease is three months and the average monthly instalment of R28 186 is payable in advance.

Up to 1 year 1 to 5 years 5 to 10 years Total

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable 
operating leases are as follows:
2014
Pretoria East 535 999 378 148 – 914 147
Cape Town – Eurolux 4 920 435 19 681 740 11 891 051 36 493 226
Johannesburg – Eurolux 6 027 722 24 110 888 14 566 995 44 705 605
Johannesburg – CED 406 161 – – 406 161
Bloemfontein 874 800 – – 874 800
Kathu 367 196 1 874 574 – 2 241 770
Rustenburg 84 559 – – 84 559

Total 13 216 872 46 045 350 26 458 046 85 720 268

2013
Nelspruit 266 683 – – 266 683
Pretoria East 318 280 – – 318 280
Bellville 198 756 – – 198 756
Cape Town – Eurolux 4 738 197 19 681 740 16 811 486 41 231 423
Johannesburg – Eurolux 5 804 473 24 110 888 20 594 716 50 510 077
Bloemfontein 1 684 800 874 800 – 2 559 600
Kathu 333 815 – – 333 815
Rustenburg 169 118 – – 169 118

Total 13 514 122 44 667 428 37 406 202 95 587 752

Capital commitments
After year-end the Group has:
•  signed purchase orders to purchase three delivery vehicles, including full maintenance plans, amounting to R1 446 028 including VAT; and
•  to complete construction of the new branch at Rustenburg amounting to R6 213 079 including VAT. This capital expenditure for construction 

of buildings will be financed through the operations of the business.

Company
Operating lease commitments
The Company has thirteen (2013: eleven) operating leases agreements in place with a subsidiary. The premises are leased monthly  
from 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2017. The period of the leases is 36 months and the average aggregate monthly instalment is R1 955 653  
(2013: R1 557 142).
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Up to 1 year 1 to 5 years Total

30. Commitments (continued)
Company (continued)
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable  
operating leases are as follows:
2014
Durban 6 867 960 15 645 899 22 513 859
Durban North 420 360 957 622 1 377 982
East London 1 038 240 2 365 214 3 403 454
Johannesburg – Alrode 2 986 560 6 803 682 9 790 242
Johannesburg – Reuven 1 191 120 2 713 490 3 904 610
Richards Bay 1 308 720 2 981 395 4 290 115
Pietermaritzburg 1 304 880 2 972 647 4 277 527
Cape Town 1 940 400 4 420 425 6 360 825
Nelspruit 1 320 000 2 882 352 4 202 352
Pretoria West 402 240 916 343 1 318 583
Pretoria North 668 940 1 523 912 2 192 852
Pretoria Gezina 1 300 560 2 962 805 4 263 365
Centurion 765 000 1 742 746 2 507 746

Total 21 514 980 48 888 532 70 403 512

2013
Durban 7 487 880 – 7 487 880
Durban North 563 183 – 563 183
East London 1 309 716 – 1 309 716
Johannesburg – Alrode 4 099 068 – 4 099 068
Richards Bay 1 368 636 – 1 368 636
Pietermaritzburg 1 995 108 – 1 995 108
Cape Town 2 386 692 – 2 386 692
Pretoria West 334 553 – 334 553
Pretoria North 684 708 – 684 708
Pretoria Gezina 973 525 – 973 525
Centurion 675 865 – 675 865

Total 21 878 934 – 21 878 934

31. Segment report
IFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reporting on operating divisions of the Group that are regularly 
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in order to allocate resources to the segments and to assess their performance.

Based on the management's monthly significant reporting segments, the segment report has been prepared by operating segment. As a 
result, the primary reporting format is by business segments with no secondary reporting format.
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Notes to the annual financial statements (continued)

 for the year ended 30 June 2014

The following table presents revenue and profit information and certain asset and liability information regarding the Group's business segments 
for the years ended 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013 respectively:

Electrical Lighting Corporate

Inter-

company 

elimination and 

reallocation Total

31. Segment report (continued)
2014
Revenue
Segment revenue 1 875 876 648 350 815 274 35 057 534 (45 090 463) 2 216 658 993
Inter-segment revenue (100 085) (11 305 712) (33 062 576) 44 468 373 –

Sales to external customers 1 875 776 563 339 509 562 1 994 958 (622 090) 2 216 658 993

Results
Profit before interest and taxation 138 631 237 39 511 427 26 732 425 (1 845 518) 203 029 571
Investment income – – 26 200 000 (26 200 000) –
Interest received 11 196 920 79 061 6 701 478 (6 535 249) 11 442 210
Interest paid (1 271 441) (3 690 693) (1 762 431) 6 535 249 (189 316)

Profit before taxation 148 556 716 35 899 795 57 871 472 (28 045 518) 214 282 465
Taxation (41 139 366) (10 217 618) (8 695 763) 344 497 (59 708 250)

Profit for the year 107 417 350 25 682 177 49 175 709 (27 701 021) 154 574 215

Segment assets 827 198 603 183 788 137 324 890 701 (102 214 627) 1 233 662 814
Segment liabilities 268 171 891 84 727 979 27 031 562 (58 502 796) 321 428 636
Entity-wide disclosure
Sub-Saharan revenue 179 271 722 18 777 960 – – 198 049 682

2013
Revenue
Segment revenue 1 678 576 097 281 176 507 38 697 502 (53 909 134) 1 944 540 972
Inter-segment revenue (7 470 876) (10 062 462) (35 698 139) 53 231 477 –

Sales to external customers 1 671 105 221 271 114 045 2 999 363 (677 657) 1 944 540 972

Results
Profit before interest and taxation 101 300 810 30 497 891 30 052 490 (1 375 696) 160 475 495
Investment income – – 18 500 000 (18 500 000) –
Interest received 7 869 261 102 368 5 656 599 (3 210 058) 10 418 170
Interest paid (1 020 623) (2 481 548) (678 966) 3 210 058 (971 079)

Profit before taxation 108 149 448 28 118 711 53 530 123 (19 875 696) 169 922 586
Taxation (28 912 828) (7 959 688) (9 754 975) 385 199 (46 242 292)

Profit for the year 79 236 620 20 159 023 43 775 148 (19 490 497) 123 680 294

Segment assets 733 653 478 153 526 909 352 781 487 (93 565 922) 1 146 395 952
Segment liabilities 253 044 099 72 467 419 40 566 463 (48 769 159) 317 308 822
Entity-wide disclosure
Sub-Saharan revenue 99 796 573 14 402 671 – – 114 199 244
Geographical information
All trading activities and non-current assets of the segments are domiciled in South Africa. 

No single customer contributes more than 10% of the Group's revenue.



// 91 ARB Integrated report 2014

6
Analysis of shareholders  ..............................92

Shareholders' diary  ......................................93

Notice of Annual General Meeting  ................94

Electronic receipt of communications 

and notices ....................................................103

Form of proxy ................................................105

Notes to the form of proxy .............................106

Corporate information  ..................................107

Glossary of terms  .........................................IBC

Shareholder 
information



92 // ARB Integrated report 2014

Shareholder information

Analysis of shareholders
as at 30 June 2014

Shareholder spread

Number of 

shareholdings

% of Total 

shareholdings

Shares 

held

% 

Held

1 – 1 000 shares 324 23.13 189 327 0.08
1 001 – 10 000 shares 725 51.75 2 962 883 1.26
10 001 – 100 000 shares 244 17.42 7 797 664 3.32
100 001 – 1 000 000 shares 80 5.71 26 155 611 11.13
1 000 001 shares and over 28 1.99 197 894 515 84.21

Total 1 401 100.00 235 000 000 100.00

Distribution of shareholders
Trusts 102 7.28 107 029 496 45.54
Individuals 1 144 81.66 74 708 827 31.79
Institutions and asset managers 65 4.64 35 804 854 15.24
Other 14 1.00 9 273 982 3.95
Private companies and close corporations 76 5.42 8 182 841 3.48

Total 1 401 100.00 235 000 000 100.00

Shareholder type
Non-public shareholders  16 1.14  141 217 175 60.09

Directors and associates (direct interest)  8 0.57 37 523 862 15.97
Directors and associates (indirect interest)  8 0.57 103 693 313 44.12

Public shareholders  1 385 98.86 93 782 825 39.91

Total 1 401 100.00 235 000 000 100.00

Beneficial shareholders with a holding greater than 3% of the shares in issue

Shares 

held

% 

Held

Mr AR Burke 119 042 390 50.66
Mr CM Cockerell 11 777 846 5.01
Mr CC Robertson 10 362 760 4.41
Golden Hind Partnership 8 178 005 3.48

Total 149 361 001 63.56
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Shareholders' diary

Listed on JSE 20 November 2007

Announcement of interim results 13 February 2014

Financial year-end  30 June 2014

Announcement of annual results 20 August 2014

Last day to trade in order to be eligible to receive the dividend 5 September 2014

Record date in respect of the dividend 12 September 2014

Dividend payment date 15 September 2014

Integrated report posted 16 September 2014

Annual General Meeting 22 October 2014
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
 for the year ended 30 June 2014

ARB HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Registration number: 1986/002975/06)

Share code: ARH

ISIN: ZAE000109435

(“ARB” or “the Company”)

Notice
Notice is hereby given to the shareholders of ARB that the Annual General Meeting of ARB will be held at the Company’s registered office located 

at 10 Mack Road, Prospecton, Durban, 4110 on Wednesday, 22 October 2014 at 10:00 to (i) deal with such business as may lawfully be dealt with 

at the meeting, (ii) the presentation of the Directors' report, the annual financial statements, the Audit Committee report and the Social and 

Ethics Committee report of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2014 (contained in the Integrated report of the Company for the same period, 

of which this notice forms a part ("the Integrated report") and (iii) consider and, if deemed fit, to pass, with or without modification, the ordinary 

and special resolutions set out hereunder in the manner required by the Companies Act, 2008, as amended (“the Companies Act”), as read with 

the Listings Requirements of the JSE Limited (“JSE”).

Kindly note that meeting participants (including shareholders and proxies) are required in terms of section 63(1) of the Companies Act to 

provide reasonably satisfactory identification before being entitled to attend or participate in a shareholders’ meeting. Forms of identification 

include valid identity documents, driver’s licenses and passports.

Record dates, voting and proxies
Please take note of the following important dates with regard to the Annual General Meeting:

Record date for the purposes of receiving this notice Friday, 5 September 2014
Distribution of the Integrated report Tuesday, 16 September 2014
Record date for voting purposes Friday, 17 October 2014
Last day to lodge proxy forms (by 10:00) Monday, 20 October 2014
Annual General Meeting to be held at 10:00 Wednesday, 22 October 2014
Results of AGM published on SENS Wednesday, 22 October 2014

A shareholder of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint one or more proxies (who need not 

be a shareholder of the Company) to attend, vote and speak in his/her stead. On a show of hands, every shareholder of the Company present in 

person or represented by proxy shall have one vote only. On a poll, every shareholder of the Company present in person or represented by proxy 

shall have one vote for every ordinary share held in the Company by such shareholder. 

Dematerialised shareholders who have elected own-name registration in the sub-register through a Central Securities Depository Participant 

(“CSDP”) and who are unable to attend but wish to vote at the Annual General Meeting, should complete and return the attached form of proxy 

and lodge it with the transfer secretaries of the Company at least 48 hours prior to the Annual General Meeting.

Shareholders who have dematerialised their shares through a CSDP or broker, other than through own-name registration and who wish to 

attend the Annual General Meeting must instruct their CSDP or broker to issue them with the necessary written authority to attend. If such 

shareholders are unable to attend but wish to vote at the Annual General Meeting they should provide their CSDP or broker with their voting 

instructions in terms of the agreement entered into between that shareholder and his/her CSDP or broker.

Forms of proxy may also be obtained on request from the Company’s transfer secretaries. The completed forms of proxy must be deposited at, 

posted or faxed to the transfer secretaries at the address below, to be received at least 48 hours prior to the Annual General Meeting. Any 

shareholder who completes and lodges a form of proxy will nevertheless be entitled to attend and vote in person at the Annual General Meeting 

should the shareholder subsequently decide to do so.

Ordinary resolutions

1. Ordinary resolution 1: Presentation of annual financial statements
“RESOLVED that the annual financial statements of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2014, including the Directors’ report, the 

Auditors’ report and the Audit Committee’s report and the Social and Ethics Committee report, be and are hereby received.”

2. Ordinary resolution 2: General authority to issue shares for cash
“RESOLVED that, subject to not less than 75% of the votes of those shareholders present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote being cast 

in favour of this resolution, the Directors be and are hereby authorised by way of a general authority to issue any authorised but unissued 

Shareholder information
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ordinary shares for cash, at such times, at such prices and for such purposes as they may determine, at their discretion, provided that any 

such general authority shall be valid only until the next Annual General Meeting of the Company or 15 months from the date of the passing 

of this resolution, whichever is the earlier and subject to the requirements of the Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation, as amended or 

substituted, the Companies Act and the Listings Requirements of the JSE, including the following limitations:

•  the issue of the shares must be made to persons qualifying as public shareholders as defined in the Listings Requirements of the JSE and 

not to related parties;

•  the shares which are the subject of the issue for cash must be of a class already in issue, or where this is not the case, must be limited to 

such shares or rights that are convertible into a class of shares already in issue;

•  the number of shares issued for cash shall not in the aggregate during the period of this authority exceed 11 750 000 ordinary shares, being 

5% of all the shares in the Company’s issued ordinary share capital as at the date of this notice, excluding treasury shares. Any equity 

securities issued under this authority during the period of its validity shall be deducted from the above number of ordinary shares and the 

authority shall be adjusted accordingly to represent the same allocation ratio in the event of a sub-division or consolidation of equity 

securities during such period;

•  the maximum discount at which such ordinary shares may be issued is 10% of the weighted average price at which such ordinary shares 

have traded on the JSE, as determined over the 30 business days immediately preceding the date that the price of the issue is determined 

or agreed to by the Directors of the Company and the party subscribing for the shares; and

•  after the Company has issued shares for cash which represent, on a cumulative basis within the period of this authority, 5% of the number 

of shares in issue prior to that issue, the Company shall publish an announcement containing full details of the issue (including the number 

of shares issued, the average discount to the weighted average traded price of the shares for the 30 business days prior to the date that the 

price of the issue is determined or agreed to by the Directors and the effect of the issue on net asset value per share, net tangible asset 

value per share, earnings per share, headline earnings per share and, if applicable, diluted earnings and headline earnings per share), 

or any other announcements that may be required in such regard in terms of the Listings Requirements of the JSE as applicable from time 

to time.”

3. Ordinary resolution 3: Placing unissued shares under the control of the Directors
“RESOLVED that the authorised but unissued ordinary shares in the capital of the Company be and are hereby placed under the control and 

authority of the Directors of the Company and that the Directors be and are hereby authorised, by way of a general authority, to issue and 

otherwise dispose of such unissued ordinary shares at their discretion, subject always to:

•  ordinary resolution 2, to the extent applicable, in the case of an issue of shares for cash;

•  the provisions of the Companies Act, the Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation, as amended or substituted, and the Listings 

Requirements of the JSE; and

•  such Directors’ authority being limited to a maximum number of unissued ordinary shares equal to 5% of the number of ordinary shares in 

issue from time to time, provided that this limitation will not apply to the issue of ordinary shares in terms of any share incentive scheme 

and accordingly:

–  in calculating the number of ordinary shares issued in any financial year for purposes of determining whether the aforementioned 5% 

threshold has been reached, any ordinary shares issued in terms of the rules of any share incentive scheme shall not be included in the 

calculation; and

–  the number of ordinary shares which Directors are authorised to issue in terms of any share incentive scheme shall not be subject to 

limitation other than in terms of the rules applicable to any such scheme.”

4. Ordinary resolution 4: Re-election of retiring Director
“RESOLVED that Gerrit (“Boel”) Pretorius, who retires by rotation in terms of the Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation, as amended or 

substituted, and who, being eligible, offers himself for re-election, be and is hereby re-elected as a Director of the Company.”

A brief curriculum vitae of Gerrit (“Boel”) Pretorius is set out on page 15 of the Integrated report of which this notice forms part.

5. Ordinary resolution 5: Re-election of retiring Director
“RESOLVED that Jacob Modise, who retires by rotation in terms of the Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation, as amended or substituted, 

and who, being eligible, offers himself for re-election, be and is hereby re-elected as a Director of the Company.”

A brief curriculum vitae of Jacob Modise is set out on page 15 of the Integrated report of which this notice forms part.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting (continued)

 for the year ended 30 June 2014

6. Ordinary resolution 6: Election of Audit Committee members
“RESOLVED that shareholders elect, each by way of a separate vote, the following Non-Executive Directors as members of the Audit 

Committee, with effect from the end of this Annual General Meeting:

•  Simon Downes (Chairman) – Independent Non-Executive Director

•  Ralph Patmore – Independent Non-Executive Director

•  Gerrit (“Boel”) Pretorius – Independent Non-Executive Director – subject to his re-election in terms of ordinary resolution 4."

Brief curriculum vitae of the Independent Non-Executive Directors offering themselves for election as members of the Audit Committee are 

set out on pages 14 and 15 of the Integrated report of which this notice forms part.

7. Ordinary resolution 7: Reappointment of auditors and fixing of remuneration
“RESOLVED that the Audit Committee be and is hereby authorised to reappoint PKF Durban as the auditors of the Company and its subsidiaries 

and Tania Marti-Warren, being a partner of PKF Durban, as the individual designated auditor, until the conclusion of the Company’s next 

Annual General Meeting and, in addition, the Audit Committee be and is hereby authorised to determine and pay the auditors’ remuneration.”

8. Ordinary resolution 8: Signature of documents
“RESOLVED that any Director of the Company or the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorised to settle the terms of and sign all such 

documentation and do all such things as may be necessary for or incidental to the implementation of the ordinary and special resolutions 

which are passed by the shareholders.“

9. Ordinary resolution 9: Endorsement of ARB remuneration policy (non-binding advisory vote)
“RESOLVED that shareholders endorse, by way of a non-binding advisory vote, the Company’s remuneration policy as outlined in the 

Remuneration Committee report set out on pages 40 and 41 of the Integrated report of which this notice forms part.”

Save for ordinary resolution 2, a 50% majority of votes cast by those shareholders present or represented and voting at the Annual General 

Meeting is required for the ordinary resolutions as set out in this notice to be adopted.

Special resolutions

1. Special resolution 1: General authority to repurchase Company shares
“RESOLVED that the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised, by way of a general authority, to repurchase on behalf of the 

Company and/or any of its subsidiaries, ordinary shares issued by the Company, in accordance with the Companies Act, and in particular, 

subject to section 48(8)(b) thereof, the Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation, as amended or substituted, and the Listings Requirements 

of the JSE, and provided that:

•  any such acquisition of ordinary shares shall be effected through the order book operated by the JSE trading system and done without any 

prior understanding or arrangement between the Company and the counter-party;

•  this general authority shall only be valid until the Company’s next Annual General Meeting, provided that it shall not extend beyond 15 

months from the date of the passing of this special resolution;

•  an announcement setting out such details as may be required in terms of the Listings Requirements of the JSE will be published on SENS 

once the Company or any of its subsidiaries has acquired ordinary shares constituting, on a cumulative basis, 3% of the initial number of 

ordinary shares in issue as at the time the general authority was granted and for each 3% in aggregate of the initial number of shares 

acquired thereafter; 

•  in terms of the general authority, the acquisition of ordinary shares in any one financial year may not exceed, in aggregate, 20% of the 

Company’s issued share capital of that class, at the time the approval is granted, and the acquisition of shares by a subsidiary of the 

Company, in any one financial year, may not exceed, in aggregate, 10% of the number of issued shares of the Company of that class;

•  in determining the price at which the Company’s ordinary shares are acquired by the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries in terms of 

this general authority, the maximum premium at which such ordinary shares may be acquired will be 10% of the weighted average market 

price at which such ordinary shares are traded on the JSE, as determined over the five business days immediately preceding the date of the 

acquisition of such ordinary shares by the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries;

•  a resolution shall be passed by the Board of Directors that it has authorised the repurchase, that the Company and its subsidiaries have 

passed the solvency and liquidity tests as required by section 46 of the Companies Act and that, since the test was performed, there have 

been no material changes to the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries;

•  the Company will only appoint one agent to effect any repurchase(s) on its behalf; and

Shareholder information
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•  the Company and/or its subsidiaries will not acquire the Company’s shares during a prohibited period as defined in paragraph 3.67 of the 

Listings Requirements of the JSE unless they have in place a repurchase programme where the dates and quantities of securities to be 

traded during the relevant period are fixed (not subject to any variation) and full details of the programme have been disclosed in an 

announcement on SENS prior to the commencement of the prohibited period.”

Reason for and effect of special resolution 1

The reason for and effect of special resolution 1 is to grant the Directors of the Company a general authority, up to and including the date of 

the next Annual General Meeting of the Company or the expiration of 15 months from the date of the passing of this special resolution, 

whichever is the earlier date, for the acquisition by the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, of shares issued by the Company. A repurchase 

of shares is not contemplated at the date of this notice, however, the Directors believe it to be in the interests of the Company that shareholders 

grant a general authority to provide the Board with the flexibility to facilitate the repurchase of Company shares as and when the Board 

considers it appropriate.

Please refer to the additional disclosure of information contained elsewhere in this notice required in terms of the Listings Requirements of 

the JSE.

2. Special resolution 2: Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration for the year ending 30 June 2015
“RESOLVED that the remuneration of Non-Executive Directors, in the form of fees for their services as Directors, for the year ending  

30 June 2015 as set out below, be and is hereby approved as contemplated in section 66(9) of the Companies Act:

Chairman of the Board •  Retainer of R233 200 per annum
•  R26 500  per Board meeting chaired
•  R10 600 per sub-committee meeting attended

Lead Independent Director •  Retainer of R167 500 per annum
•  R10 600 per Board or sub-committee meeting attended

Non-Executive Director •  Retainer of R146 300 per annum
•  R10 600 per Board or sub-committee meeting attended

Sub-committee Chairman •  R15 900 per sub-committee meeting chaired"

Reason for and effect of special resolution 2

The reason for and effect of special resolution 2 is to approve the remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors in accordance with the 

requirements of the Companies Act and the Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation.

3. Special resolution 3: Financial assistance for subscription of securities
“RESOLVED that the Company be and is hereby authorised, in terms of a general authority contemplated in section 44(3)(a)(ii) of the 

Companies Act for a period of two years from the date of this resolution, to provide direct or indirect financial assistance by way of a loan, 

guarantee, the provision of security or otherwise as defined in section 44 of the Companies Act to any person for the purpose of, or in 

connection with, the subscription of any option, or any securities, issued or to be issued by the Company or a related or inter-related 

company, or the purchase of any securities of the Company or a related or inter-related company, subject to the Board of Directors of the 

Company being satisfied that:

(i)  pursuant to section 44(3)(b)(i) of the Companies Act, immediately after providing such financial assistance, the Company would satisfy 

the solvency and liquidity test (as contemplated in section 4(1) of the Companies Act);

(ii)  pursuant to section 44(3)(b)(ii) of the Companies Act, the terms under which such financial assistance is proposed to be given are fair and 

reasonable to the Company; and

(iii)  any conditions or restrictions with respect to the granting of such financial assistance set out in the Company’s Memorandum of 

Incorporation and/or the Listings Requirements of the JSE have been complied with.”

Reason for and effect of special resolution 3

The reason for and effect of special resolution 3 is to provide the Directors with an authority to provide financial assistance to any person for 

the purpose of, or in connection with, the subscription or purchase of any securities of the Company or a related or inter-related company in 

accordance with section 44 of the Companies Act.
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4.  Special resolution 4: Financial assistance to related or inter-related companies and corporations
“RESOLVED that the Company be and is hereby authorised, in terms of a general authority contemplated in section 45(3)(a)(ii) of the 

Companies Act for a period of two years from the date of this resolution, to provide direct or indirect financial assistance as defined in section 

45(1) of the Companies Act to a related or inter-related company or corporation, subject to the Board of Directors of the Company being 

satisfied that:

(a)  pursuant to section 45(3)(b)(i) of the Companies Act, immediately after providing such financial assistance, the Company would satisfy 

the solvency and liquidity test (as contemplated in section 4(1) of the Companies Act);

(b)  pursuant to section 45(3)(b)(ii) of the Companies Act, the terms under which such financial assistance is proposed to be given are fair and 

reasonable to the Company; and

(c)  any conditions or restrictions with respect to the granting of such financial assistance set out in the Company’s Memorandum of 

Incorporation and/or the Listings Requirements of the JSE have been complied with.”

Reason for and effect of special resolution 4
The reason for and effect of special resolution 4 is to provide the Directors with an authority to provide financial assistance to related or inter-

related companies and corporations in accordance with section 45 of the Companies Act.

A 75% majority of votes cast by those shareholders present or represented and voting at the Annual General Meeting is required for each of 

the special resolutions as set out in this notice to be adopted.

Additional disclosure required in terms of the Listings Requirements of the JSE
The following additional information, some of which might appear elsewhere in the Integrated report of which this notice forms part, is provided 

in terms of the Listings Requirements of the JSE for purposes of considering special resolution 1:

•  Directors and management (refer to pages 14, 15, 98 and 99 of this Integrated report);

•  Major shareholders (refer to page 92 of this Integrated report);

•  Directors’ interests in securities (refer to page 48 of this Integrated report); and

•  Share capital of the Company (refer to page 71 of this Integrated report).

Directors of subsidiary companies
Clinton Cockerell (55) – Executive Director of ARB Electrical Wholesalers

Prior to joining, Clinton spent six years as a sales representative for various businesses in the fasteners industry, gaining extensive knowledge 

and experience in the wholesaling trade. Clinton joined ARB in March 1987 and has been instrumental in establishing and maintaining the sound 

customer base. Clinton was appointed a Director of ARB Electrical Wholesalers in March 1992 and is now responsible for all the purchasing, 

marketing and sales of power cables.

Jason Burke (35) – Executive Director of ARB Electrical Wholesalers 

Jason joined ARB Electrical Wholesalers in October 1997. Jason is a product of ARB’s internal training and development programme. Once Jason 

gained experience, he started developing the Eastern Cape market from the Durban branch. Jason’s ability to penetrate this market prompted 

management to commit to opening a new branch in East London in June 2004, with Jason relocating as Branch Manager. In January 2006, Jason 

was appointed Divisional Director for Overhead Line and relocated back to Durban to take national responsibility for the Overhead Line Division. 

On 1 March 2007, Jason was appointed a Director of ARB Electrical Wholesalers.

Shannon Bester (34) – Executive Director of ARB Electrical Wholesalers and Elektro Vroomen

Shannon qualified as a Chartered Accountant in January 2005 and has been involved with ARB Electrical Wholesalers since 2001, first as an  

audit clerk and then as Audit Manager for PKF Durban. Shannon then joined ARB Electrical Wholesalers in October 2006 as Financial Manager. 

In July 2007, Shannon was promoted to Divisional Director of Finance and Administration, and was promoted to Financial Director on 1 July 2011.

Blayne Burke (32) – Executive Director of ARB Electrical Wholesalers 

Blayne graduated with a Bachelor of Commerce degree in December 2004 and obtained Honours in Financial Analysis and Portfolio Management 

in 2005 both from the University of Cape Town. Subsequent to qualifying, Blayne worked in the banking sectors in the United States and United 

Kingdom before returning to South Africa. Blayne joined ARB in March 2008 as Credit Risk Manager. Blayne assumed responsibility for the 

management of the Gauteng branch in December 2008. In July 2011, Blayne was promoted to head up ARB’s new national procurement function 

and was appointed a Director of ARB Electrical Wholesalers. In July 2012, Blayne was appointed as Chief Operating Officer of ARB Electrical 

Wholesalers and as Chief Executive Officer of ARB Electrical Wholesalers with effect from 1 January 2013.

Notice of Annual General Meeting (continued)

 for the year ended 30 June 2014
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Dumisani Muhlwa (42) – Non-Executive Director of ARB Electrical Wholesalers 

Dumisani is the CEO of Batsomi Investment Holdings (Pty) Limited. Since qualifying as a chartered accountant in 1996, Dumisani has accumulated 

extensive corporate and commercial experience. He was formerly a manager at Sasol Financing (Pty) Limited, prior to which he was Group 

Project Finance Manager at MTN in charge of raising capital for the Group’s expansion into Africa and evaluating new business initiatives. 

Dumisani is also a former corporate finance associate at African Merchant Bank. Dumisani was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of ARB 

Electrical Wholesalers following the acquisition of a 26 % stake in the Company by Batsomi Power in 2005.

Derrick Muller (61) – Executive Director of ARB IT Solutions 

In the late 1980’s Derrick founded Xact IT Solutions, with the primary focus of developing a suite of multi-branch accounting systems. In 1992, 

Alan R Burke approached Derrick to implement a multi-branch communication network and accounting solution for ARB Electrical Wholesalers. 

In 2007, ARB acquired Xact IT Solutions and created ARB IT Solutions. The primary focus of ARB IT Solutions is the management of all ARB’s 

technology requirements and, in addition, the Company also services external clients. 

Peter Willig (51) – Executive Director of Eurolux and Cathay Lighting International (Pty) Limited

Peter has over 20 years of experience in the financial and general management of companies in South Africa since qualifying as a Chartered 

Accountant with Deloitte & Touche in 1991. After 10 years in the corporate world, Peter, together with financial backers and partners, acquired 

Eurolux in March 2002, a regional import and distribution company, turning over R40 million per annum. Over the next 12 years the Company has 

grown to achieve turnover exceeding R350 million per annum. 

Steven Palframan (44) – Executive Director of Eurolux and Cathay Lighting International (Pty) Limited

Steve was appointed a Director of Eurolux in March 2002 when the business was bought from the original founder. His main areas of responsibility 

include all aspects of procurement as well as key chain store accounts from an indent point of view. He was previously Shareholder Liaison 

Officer and Company Secretary of Whetstone Industrial Holdings Limited and until recently served on the Board of Western Cape Cricket  

(Pty) Limited.

Shaun Bouchier (44) – Executive Director of Eurolux and Cathay Lighting International (Pty) Limited

Shaun has a marketing diploma and was previously involved in the water valve industry for 12 years, holding the positions of National Sales 

Manager of Ainsworth Engineering (Pty) Limited, Sales Manager for Independent Valve Marketing CC and Branch Manager for Premier Valves 

(Pty) Limited respectively. Shaun joined Eurolux in June 2002 and was initially tasked with setting up and running the Johannesburg branch. He 

is now based at the Cape Town Head Office, and besides still overseeing the Johannesburg operation, has executive responsibility for sales (both 

local and export) and marketing. 

Leion Venkatas (39) – Executive Director of Elektro Vroomen

Leion joined ARB Electrical Wholesalers in 1996 and was based in the Durban branch until 2006. Leion then relocated to the Gauteng branch as 

sales representative and in 2010 was promoted to Branch Manager of the then new Polokwane branch. With the acquisition of ICS in July 2012, 

Leion relocated back to Gauteng to assume responsibility as Managing Director of ICS. Following the decision to divisionalise ICS’ operations into 

ARB Electrical Wholesalers in early 2014, Leion was appointed to the board of Elektro Vroomen.

Charle Leibbrandt (46) – Executive Director of CED – Consolidated Electrical Distributor (Pty) Limited

Charle started his career at Armscor within the electrical field. Over the years Charle has been employed in various sales and management 

related capacities at Philips SA (Pty) Limited, SA Scale (Pty) Limited, HellermannTyton (Pty) Limited and Hulamin Limited. In July 2011 Charle 

joined ARB Electrical Wholesalers (Pty) Limited initially as Regional Manager: KwaZulu-Natal and later Regional Manager: Inland. In early 2013, 

ARB Holdings Limited secured the exclusive distribution rights to the full range of CHINT’s low voltage products across South Africa and the 

SADC region. A new company, CED – Consolidated Electrical Distributor (Pty) Limited was established to house this new business venture and 

Charle was appointed as Managing Director. Charle holds a Master of Business Administration degree from the Milpark Business School.

BUSINESS ADDRESSES

Company Directors
•  Alan R Burke 10 Mack Road, Prospecton, Durban
•  William (“Billy”) Neasham 10 Mack Road, Prospecton, Durban
•  Byron Nichles 11 Larch Nook, Zwartkop X4, Centurion
•  Simon Downes 1290 South Coast Road, Mobeni, Durban
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•  Ralph Patmore 1172 Aspen Drive, Dainfern, Johannesburg
•  Gerrit (“Boel”) Pretorius 137 Sandstone Drive, Boskloof Eco Estate, Somerset West
•  Jacob Modise Unit 2, Stoney Ridge Office Park, corner Waterford Place and Witkoppen Roads, Kleve Hill

Subsidiary Directors
•  Clinton Cockerell 10 Mack Road, Prospecton, Durban
•  Jason Burke 10 Mack Road, Prospecton, Durban
•  Derrick Muller 10 Mack Road, Prospecton, Durban
•  Shannon Bester 10 Mack Road, Prospecton, Durban
•  Blayne Burke 10 Mack Road, Prospecton, Durban
•  Dumisani Muhlwa Unit 2, Stoney Ridge Office Park, corner Waterford Place and Witkoppen Roads, Kleve Hill
•  Peter Willig 9 Racecourse Road, Milnerton, Cape Town
•  Steven Palframan 9 Racecourse Road, Milnerton, Cape Town
•  Shaun Bouchier 9 Racecourse Road, Milnerton, Cape Town
•  Leion Venkatas 27 Andrea Road, Reuven, Johannesburg
•  Michael Vroomen 80 Nelson Mandela Road, Bloemfontein
•  Charle Leibbrandt 73 Roan Crescent, Corporate Park North, Midrand

Working capital undertaking

The Directors of the Company undertake that they will not implement any repurchase of shares contemplated by special resolution 1 unless for 

a period of 12 months following any such repurchase:

•  The Company and the subsidiaries of the Company (“the Group”) will be able to repay their debts as such debts become due in the ordinary 

course of business;

•  The assets of the Company and Group, fairly valued in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and on a basis consistent 

with the previous financial year, will exceed the liabilities of the Company and Group;

•  The Company and the Group will have adequate share capital and reserves for ordinary business purposes;

•  The Company and the Group will have sufficient working capital for ordinary business purposes; and

•  The sponsor of the Company has, at such time, provided a letter to the JSE confirming the discharge of its responsibilities in respect of this 

working capital statement in terms of schedule 25 (read with in terms of section 2.12) of the Listings Requirements of the JSE.

Litigation statement

The Directors, whose names are given on pages 14 and 15 of this Integrated report of which this notice forms part, are not aware of any legal or 

arbitration proceedings that may have or have had in the recent past, being at least the previous 12 months, a material effect on the financial 

position of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

Directors’ responsibility statement

The Directors, whose names are given on pages 14 and 15 of this Integrated report of which this notice forms part, collectively and individually 

accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information pertaining to special resolution 1 and certify that, to the best of their knowledge and 

belief, there are no facts that have been omitted which would make any statement false or misleading, and that all reasonable enquiries to 

ascertain such facts have been made and that this notice contains all information required by law and the Listings Requirements of the JSE.

Material changes

Other than the facts and developments reported on in this Integrated report, there have been no material changes in the financial or trading 

position of the Company and its subsidiaries since the date of signature of the audit report and up to the date of this notice.

Electronic communications
Please note that in terms of the Companies Act and the Listings Requirements of the JSE, you may elect to receive shareholder communications 

and notices from ARB electronically. If you make this election, notices to shareholders of the Company will be sent to you by email, which may 

include a notice of the availability of documents, records, statements or other shareholder communications on the Company's website, which 

you will then be able to access through the internet. If you do not make this election, printed communications from the Company will be posted 

to you at your registered address. 

Notice of Annual General Meeting (continued)

 for the year ended 30 June 2014

Shareholder information
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Opting to receive information electronically will provide you with faster access to the latest information about ARB, whilst also saving costs for 

the Company and being more environmentally responsible. If you wish to receive future shareholder communications electronically, please 

complete and return the attached form to our transfer secretaries. 

By order of the Board

Mario Louw

Company Secretary

16 September 2014

Registered office

10 Mack Road

Prospecton

Durban, 4110

(PO Box 26426, Isipingo Beach, 4115)

Telephone: +27 31 910 0200

Transfer secretaries

Computershare Investor Services (Pty) Limited

Ground floor

70 Marshall Street

Johannesburg, 2001

(PO Box 61051, Marshalltown, 2107)

Telephone: +27 11 370 5000

Fax: +27 11 688 5248

Email: ecomms@computershare.co.za
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Notes

Shareholder information
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Electronic receipt of communications and notices

ARB HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Registration number: 1986/002975/06)

Share code: ARH

ISIN: ZAE000109435

(“ARB” or “the Company”)

ELECTION TO RECEIVE ELECTRONIC SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATIONS

Please note that in terms of the Companies Act and the Listings Requirements of the JSE, you may elect to receive shareholder communications and notices from ARB 

electronically. If you make this election, notices to shareholders of the Company will be sent to you by email, which may include a notice of the availability of documents, records, 

statements or other shareholder communications on the Company's website, which you will then be able to access through the internet. If you do not make this election, printed 

communications from the Company will be posted to you at your registered address.

Full name of shareholder:

Reference number*:

Telephone numbers:

(office) (home)                           (cellular)

Email address:

I elect to receive notices and other shareholder communications electronically:

Signature:

Date:

* Can be obtained from the envelope in which you received the 2014 Integrated report or please call the transfer secretaries on +27 11 370 5000 for details

The completed form should be returned to the transfer secretaries via post or email:

Computershare Investor Services (Pty) Ltd

PO Box 61051, Marshalltown, 2107

Email: ecomms@computershare.co.za

Telephone: +27 11 370 5000

Fax: +27 11 688 5248
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Form of proxy

ARB HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Registration number: 1986/002975/06)

Share code: ARH

ISIN: ZAE000109435

(“ARB” or “the Company”)

For use at the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of the Company to be held at the Company’s registered office located at 10 Mack Road, Prospecton, Durban, 4110 on 

Wednesday, 22 October 2014 at 10:00 and at any adjournment thereof.

For use by the holders of the Company’s certificated ordinary shares (“certificated shareholders”) and/or dematerialised ordinary shares held through a Central Securities 

Depository Participant (“CSDP”) or broker who have selected own-name registration (“own-name dematerialised shareholders”). 

Not for use by the holders of the Company’s dematerialised ordinary shares who are not own-name dematerialised shareholders. Such shareholders must contact their CSDP or 

broker timeously if they wish to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting in person and request that they be issued with the necessary written authorisation to do so, or 

provide their CSDP or broker with their voting instructions should they not wish to attend the Annual General Meeting in person but wish to be represented thereat.

I/We (full name in block letters) 

of (address) 

being the registered holder(s) of ordinary shares in the issued share capital of the Company, do hereby appoint:

1. of   or failing him/her,

2. of   or failing him/her,

3. the Chairman of the Annual General Meeting,

as my/our proxy to act for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company which will be held for the purpose of considering and, if deemed fit, passing, 

with or without modification, the special and ordinary resolutions to be proposed thereat and at any adjournment thereof, and to vote for and/or against the special and ordinary 

resolutions and/or abstain from voting in respect of the ordinary shares registered in my/our name(s), in accordance with the following instructions:

Number of ordinary shares / votes

In favour of* Against* Abstain*

Ordinary resolutions

1. To receive the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2014

2. To approve a general authority to issue shares for cash

3. To place unissued shares under the Directors’ control

4. To re-elect Gerrit (“Boel”) Pretorius as a Director of the Company

5. To re-elect Jacob Modise as a Director of the Company

6. To elect the Audit Committee members, each by separate vote:

6.1 Simon Downes (Chairman)

6.2 Ralph Patmore

6.3 Gerrit (“Boel”) Pretorius

7. To reappoint the auditors and fix their remuneration

8. To authorise Directors and/or the Company Secretary to act and sign documentation

9. To endorse the ARB remuneration policy – non-binding advisory vote

Special resolutions

1. To approve a general authority for the repurchase of Company shares

2. To approve the remuneration of Non-executive Directors for the year ending 30 June 2015

3. To approve the granting of financial assistance for the subscription or purchase of securities

4.   To approve the granting of financial assistance to related and inter-related companies and corporations

*Please indicate with an “X” in the appropriate spaces above how you wish your votes to be cast. If no indication is given, the proxy will be entitled to vote or abstain as he/she 

deems fit.

Signed at (place)  on (date) 2014

Signature 

Assisted by (where applicable)

Please read the notes on the reverse side.
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Notes to the form of proxy

1. This form of proxy is to be completed only by those shareholders who:

a. hold shares in certificated form; or

b. are recorded in the sub-register in electronic form in their own-name.

2.  Shareholders who have dematerialised their shares, other than own-name dematerialised shareholders, and who wish to attend the Annual General Meeting in person must 

contact their Central Securities Depository Participant (“CSDP”) or broker who will furnish them with the necessary written authority to attend the Annual General Meeting, 

or they must instruct their CSDP or broker as to how they wish to vote in this regard. This must be done in terms of the agreement entered into between the shareholders and 

their CSDP or broker.

3.  Each shareholder is entitled to appoint one or more proxies (who need not be shareholder(s) of the Company) to attend, speak and, on a poll, vote in place of that shareholder 

at the Annual General Meeting.

4.  A shareholder may insert the name of a proxy or the names of two alternate proxies of the shareholder’s choice in the space provided, with or without deleting “the Chairman 

of the Annual General Meeting”. The person whose name stands first on the form of proxy and who is present at the Annual General Meeting will be entitled to act as proxy to 

the exclusion of those whose names follow.

5.  A shareholder’s instructions to the proxy must be indicated by the insertion of the relevant number of votes exercisable by that shareholder in the appropriate box provided. 

Failure to comply with the above will be deemed to authorise the Chairman of the Annual General Meeting, if the Chairman is the authorised proxy, to vote in favour of the 

ordinary and special resolutions at the Annual General Meeting, or any other proxy to vote or to abstain from voting at the Annual General Meeting as he/she deems fit, in 

respect of all the shareholder’s votes exercisable thereat.

6.  A shareholder or his/her proxy is not obliged to vote in respect of all the ordinary shares held by such shareholder or represented by such proxy, but the total number of votes 

for or against the resolutions or in respect of which any abstention is recorded may not exceed the total number of votes to which the shareholder or his/her proxy is entitled.

7.  Documentary evidence establishing the authority of a person signing this form of proxy in a representative capacity must be attached to this form of proxy, unless previously 

recorded by the Company’s transfer secretaries or waived by the Chairman of the Annual General Meeting.

8.  The Chairman of the Annual General Meeting may reject or accept any form of proxy which is completed and/or received other than in accordance with these instructions and 

notes, provided that he is satisfied as to the manner in which a shareholder wishes to vote.

9.  Any alterations or corrections to this form of proxy must be initialled by the signatory(ies). 

10.  The completion and lodging of this form of proxy will not preclude the relevant shareholder from attending the Annual General Meeting and speaking and voting in person 

thereat to the exclusion of any proxy appointed in terms hereof.

11.  A minor must be assisted by his/her parent/guardian unless the relevant documents establishing his/her legal capacity are produced or have been registered by the Company’s 

transfer secretaries.

12.  Where there are joint holders of any shares, only that holder whose name appears first in the register in respect of such shares need sign this form of proxy.

13.  Completed forms of proxy must be lodged with the transfer secretaries at the address provided below at least 48 hours prior to the Annual General Meeting.

ADDITIONAL FORMS OF PROXY ARE AVAILABLE FROM THE TRANSFER SECRETARIES ON REQUEST.

Transfer secretaries

Computershare Investor Services (Pty) Limited

70 Marshall Street

Johannesburg, 2001

(PO Box 61051, Marshalltown, 2107)

Telephone: +27 11 370 5000 

Fax: +27 11 688 5248

Email: ecomms@computershare.co.za

Shareholder information
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Corporate information

Company registration number
1986/002975/06

Share code
ARH

ISIN
ZAE000109435

Website
www.arbhold.co.za

Registered office
10 Mack Road

Prospecton

Durban, 4110

(PO Box 26426, Isipingo Beach, 4115)

Telephone: +27 31 910 0200

Corporate office
11 Larch Nook

Zwartkop X4

Centurion, 0046

(PO Box 23305, Gezina, 0031)

Telephone: +27 12 663 5244

Company Secretary
Mario Louw

11 Larch Nook

Zwartkop X4

Centurion, 0046

(PO Box 23305, Gezina, 0031)

Telephone: +27 12 663 5244

Reporting accountants and auditors
PKF Durban

2nd Floor, 12 on Palm Boulevard

Gateway

Umhlanga Rocks, 4319

(PO Box 1858, Durban, 4000)

Telephone: +27 31 573 5000

Commercial bankers
Nedbank Ltd

90 Ordinance Road

Kingsmead

Durban, 4001

(PO Box 3560, Durban, 4000)

Telephone: +27 31 364 1111

Transfer secretaries
Computershare Investor Services (Pty) Ltd

Ground Floor, 70 Marshall Street

Johannesburg, 2001

(PO Box 61051, Marshalltown, 2107)

Telephone: +27 11 370 5000

Sponsor
Grindrod Bank Limited

3rd Floor, Grindrod Towers

8A Protea Place

Sandton

Johannesburg, 2146

(PO Box 78011, Sandton, 2146)

Telephone: +27 11 459 1860 

Attorneys
Webber Wentzel

10 Fricker Road

Illovo Boulevard

Johannesburg, 2196

(PO Box 61771, Marshalltown, 2107)

Telephone: +27 11 530 5639

Investor relations agency
Keyter Rech Investor Solutions CC

Fountain Grove Office Park

No 5 2nd Road

Hyde Park, 2196

(PO Box 653078, Benmore, 2010)

Telephone: +27 11 447 2993
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Glossary of terms

ARB Electrical Wholesalers ARB Electrical Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd

ARB IT Solutions ARB IT Solutions (Pty) Limited

ARB, the Group, the Company ARB Holdings Limited

Batsomi Power Batsomi Power (Pty) Limited

B-BBEE Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment

CED CED-Consolidated Electrical Distributor (Pty) Limited

CHINT Zhejiang CHINT Electrics Co. Ltd, the largest manufacturer and seller of low-voltage electrical 

products in China

DIY Do-it-yourself

Elektro Vroomen Elektro Vroomen (Pty) Limited

ERP Enterprise Resource Planning

Eurolux Eurolux (Pty) Limited

ICS Industrial Cable Suppliers (Pty) Limited

JSE Johannesburg Stock Exchange

LED Light Emitting Diode

SABS South African Bureau of Standards

SADC Southern African Development Community

SENS Stock Exchange News Service
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www.arbhold.co.za

Registered office

10 Mack Road, Prospecton, Durban, 4110

PO Box 26426, Isipingo Beach, 4115

Telephone: +27 31 910 0200

Facsimile: +27 31 910 0299

Email: info@arbhold.co.za




